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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
tnvestment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investrnent
property located in the UK.

INFRODUCTION

TR Properiy Investment Trust plc (the “Company” ot the
“Trust™) was formed 1n 1205 and has been a dedicated
praperty investor since 1982 The Company 1s an
fnvestment Trust and its shares are premium hsted on the
tondon Stock Exchange

BENCHMARK

fhe benchmark 1s the FTSE EPRA/NARFIT Developed
Europe Capped Iet Total Return Index in Sterhng

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve its ofyeclive by investing in
shares and secunlies of properly companies and property
refated businesses on an intermational basis, although,
with a Pan-European benchmaik, the majanty of the
investments will be located 0 that geographical area The
Company aiso nvests in investment property :ocated in
the UK anty.

Further delalls of the investment Policies, the Assel
Allocation Guidelines and palicies regarding the use of
gednng are sel outin the Strateqic Report an page 25 and
the entire portfolic 15 shown on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company’s
alternalive investment (und manager ("AIFM™) wath
portiohc management delegated Lo Thames River Capiial
LLP {"the Portfolio Manager” or "the Manage:r™). Marcus
Ehayre-hudge has managed the corticio since 1 Apnl
2077 and been parl of the Fund Management team since
1997

INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all independent of the Manager and
meet reqularty to consider investment strategy, to monitor
adherence to the stated objective and mvestment polices
and ta review performance Delails of how the Board
operales and fulfils its responsibilittes are sel out In the
Report of the Cirectars on page 41

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Highlights for the current vear are set out
opposite and Historical Performance car be found on
page 3 Key Performance Indicators are sel out In the
Strategic Report on pages 76 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts its affarrs so that its
shares can be recommended by independent Financral
Advisers ("IFAS™) i the UK Lo ordinary retail investors in
accordance wilh the Finanaal Conduct Authenty ("FCAT)
rules in relation to non-manstream investment produgis
and intends to continue to do so The shares are excluded
from the FCAS restrictions, which apply o non-mainstream
investment products, because they are shares in an
authorised investment trust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General sharehalder information and details of how to
ivest 1n TR Property Investment Trust plc, including an
investment through an ISA of saving scheme, can he
found on pages 111 and 12 This mfarmation can also be
found on the Trust's websie www irproperty com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended
31 March

Year ended
11 March

_ _ - o 2021 2026 Change
Balance Sheet T
Net asset value per share 417.97p 358.11p +16.7%
Shareholders' funds (£'000) 1,326,433 1,136,453 +16.7%
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m) 3174 3174 +«0.0%
Netdebts - 16.5% 76% -
Share Price
Share price 392.50p 37.50p +23.6%
ﬂq@g@talisalion ) ) - E,Ziﬁmrﬁ‘* ”‘__ELG()Sm o +23.6%

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

e 201 w0  change
Revenue
Revenue eamnings pef share - wsmp  wep 6%
Dividends?
interim dividend per share 5.20p 5.20p +0,0%
Final dividend per shate 9.00p 8.80p +2.3%
TcLaI_diLid_eniEeEtEr_e - _7 azwp o0p +14%
Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total return®s +20.7% “11.5%
Benchmark tolai return? +15.9% -14.0%
Share price total return*¢ - . +283%  68%
ongoing Charges®s
Including performance fee +1.40% +0.80%
Excluding performance fee +0.65% +0.61%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +0.63% +0.59%

1. Net debt s the total value of loan notes, loans {including notional expesure to CFDs and Tatal Return Swap) less cash as a psoportion ol net asset value,

2. Dwidends per shate are the dividends In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021, An intenm dividend of 5.20p was paid in January 2021. A final dividend of
S00p (2020 8.80p) will be paid on 4 August 2027 1o shareholders on the reqister on 18 june 2021

The shares will be quated ex-dividend on 17 june 2021

3. The NAY Total Return for the year 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company fram the relevant ex-dividend date Drvidends are deemed
to be remvested on the ex-dividend date as this 1s the pratocol used by the Campany's benchmark and other indices

4. The Shate Price Total Return 1s calculated by teinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Lompany trom the relevant ex-dividend date.

5 0ngoing Charges are caiculated in accordance with the AIC methadology. The Ongeing Charges ratias provided in the Company’s Key Information Decument 2re
calculsted 1n line with the PRIIPs regulation which 1s different 1o the AIC methadalogy

&  Considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure s defined on page 8.

2 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Historical Performance

For the years ended 31 March

20Mm 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)
!{W‘:’ 15_4 - M-_§.5 N5 224 283 8.2 8.0 1_5_._5_"#7'_ _9:! -:!15
Benchmark® 15.2 -8.9 178 14.% 233 5.4 6.5 10.2 56 <140
Share Price®© 12.6 -85 258 327 295 -1.6 21 255 6.2 -16.8
shareholders’ funds (£'m)
Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 118 1,256 1,328 1,136
Ordinary shares 53 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 118 1,256 1,328 1,136
Sigma shares® 139 M8 - - ’ i - -
Ordinary shares
Net revenue (pence per share)
Earnings 6.94 707 6.74 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62
Dividends® 6.00 6.60 7.00 745 770 8.35 10.50 12.20 13.50 14.00_
NAV per share (pence) 20710 183.60 21525 251?4 _____3_'I_§.12 33586 35242 39564 41854 358.1]1
share price (pence) 177710 15450 186.30 24750  310.56 29750 31450 38250 354.00
Indices of growth
Share pricet®! 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179
Net Asset Value® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 191 202 173
Dividend Net® 100 10 7 124 128 139 175 203 225 233
RPI 100 104 107 110 m 12 16 120 123 126
Benchmark® 100 87 99 105 lgﬁ 130 134 144 147 123

Figures have been prepared in accordance with {FRS.

(A) The NAV Total Return for each year is caiculated by reinvesting 1he dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protacol used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices. This 15 cansidered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

(B) Benchmark Index. composite index comprising the FISE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed

Eutope Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capital.

(C) The Shate Price lotal Return 15 calculated by remnvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012

(E) Bividends per share in the year 1o which their declaration relates and not the year they were paid.

(F) Share prices orly. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(@

-~

(H) Price only value of the indices set out in {B) gbove.

Capital only values These do not reflect dividends paid.

TR PROPERTY HNVESTMENT TRUST
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

Whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which fargely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

4 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRCGDUCTION

The starl of this reporting penod was very dose to the
recent COVID-19 influenced nadir of global equity markets
In March 2020 Since then equity markets have been
determinedly focused on the future rathet than reflecting
on the more iImmediate economic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic As a result, I'm able to repart
healthy returns for the year with a net asset value {"hWAY")
total return of 20 7%, well anead of the benchmark 1otal
refurn of 15 9%, The share prnice tolal relurn was even
stronger al 28 3% as the discount narrowed over the year

Stock markels have aken great comfort from the hyge
amount of central bank stmulus and state aid for both
corporates ang individuals Since November 2020, this
sense of suppart has been augmented by optimsm
following the arnouncements and subsequent rollout of 3
range ol vacane programmes

The crigis has forced a dramatic change i Lhe vway we work,
consume and relax Qver the last year our management team
has pondered nat only the pace of these changes atross a
wide range of property sectors but alsa therr sustamability
once the world reverls to "the new normal”

Over the last quarter of the financial year under review
and mto the start of the new one, we have seen very
dramalic snare price movernents as iNvestors rotated
from companies offening the safety of secure income
towards tnose offernng grealer rsk, paricularly where tie
companies were trading at laige discounts to therr assel
value Your marager’s report will examine ;- more detai
now the portfoho structure has evoived thigugh these
thematic mations



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Farnmngs for the vear were 12 25p per share, 16% lowel
than the prior year earmings of 14.62p

The headline earnings per share figure 1s shghtly deceptive,
eamnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous year,
but a sigmificant tax refund and some further pnor penod
withholding tax recovenes reduced Lhe revenue tax charge
from an effective rate of 11.3% 10 2020 to just 1.9% for the
financial year to March 2021 Furlher detalls of this are set
out in the Manager’s Repart

The Board has announced a final dividend of 900p per
share, bringing the full year dividend to 14 20p per share
(2020 14 00p} an overall increase of 14% on the prior year
dividend The Board s conscous of the mcome aspizalions
of sume ol our investor base and, although this dividend

15 not fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves avallable As long as the Board has & reasonahle
expectation of income 1eturming to previous levels n the
medium term, the Board 15 happy 1o maintain @ modest
level of dividend progression.

REVENUE QUTLOOK

Wil our portfolio, the manager anticipales income

for the year to March 2022 to be spiit into three broadly
equal paits with one third suffering a reduction and in
some cases significant cuts or even suspensions, a third
with income returning to pre-pandemic levelis, and the
balance offering some level of increase We do not expect
total income levels to return to pre-COVID-19 fevels within
the current financial year althgugh we do expect an
improvernent relative to 2020721

After allowing for the proposed dividend, revenue seserves
will still amount 1o 12 18p per share giving pienty of
capacity for the board to supplement the dividend again

N 2021/22, providing a return ta pre-Covid levels can
reasonably he anlicipated in the medium term

ordinary Share ¢lass Performance: Total Return over 10 years {rebased)

200 W Benchmark Total Return [l TR Property Share Price Total Return

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14

Mar-15

TR Property Net Asset Value Total Return

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-2t
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Manager’s Report

1A

Marcus Phayie-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervaiued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a stiong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The et Assel Value towal return for the year 1o 31 March
2027 was 20 7%, ahead of the benchmark total return of
15 9%. At the intenm stage, | reparted that Conlinental
Eurapean property cormpanies had significantly
outperformed their UK counterparts (returns of 11 3% v

2 1%). The second hall saw the complele reverse The UK's
performance in the second hall was so stsong that the

12 month perfarmance of 191% (in GBP) outperformed
Conunental turope at 18 7% {in EUR)

The inial impact of the pandemic on Furopean real estale
equities saw the benchmark fall 36% from the pre-Cowd
peak of 190 Febiuary 16 the frough on 18 March 2020 Cuwr
finanaial vear therefore started ciose to these depressed
levels and the steady recavery since then is reflected in
the healthy figures for the year under review However it
15 worlh rioting that collectively the sectar remains neariy
15% below the pre-Covid peak

This extraordinary year ias cledity been like no other and

the guit in pertormance of the aifferent real estats sectors
(and then respeciive fsted companies) redisires the same

adjective. The vear can he neatly drided into pre aird post
the vacaine announcement

From fdarch to OctoBer investons fotused on owning
sustalrable, pandemic picol income such as 1esidential,
supermarkets and heaithcare alongside lagistics,
warehousing and industaal where the undeilying tenants’
businesses had remainec open and 10 Many ases

were thirang Consamer faang sectors such as retall,
rastayrants, rote! and esure were shurned We diwvige our
unerse of pan Bdropean real £3iate COMDaries nto 24
bespoke ginups and oven the 7 monrths from the trough o
18th Maich 2020 our lagistics / incustrial group returned
=545, German resigentia, -50%. healthcare «360- whilst
LK retan 21 450 and Eulop=an retan “2tared jusl T
tondon Celan elso suffered f2'ing 267 a3 Louns™ levels
(hoir domestic and te~auonal) cof aosad

owvever, o™ hovenoer anwerds we saw 4 (oTete
volte face as investors focused on the possitiiy of
& NOMMAENSInG 2conomic outiook post fre vac e
breakthrough in cur world that meant buying pack Lo
the consumer fackig seciors Stocks exposed o these



seclors had been standing at farge discounts qiven the
market’s expectation of further assel value declines and
they cnjoyed siynihicant prce recovery Stocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesbury, who had both carned cut
emergency capital raises (more on this later), enjoyed
100% and 85% price appreciation from their respective
{pre-vaccne announcement) capital raise prices

The Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandermic with overweights \o European PRS (prvate
rented secton) particularty in Germany. supenmarkets

(UK and Nordics), healthcare (mainty UK) and togistics /
industnial across both the UK and Europe These exposures
drove much of the relative outpediormance from March to
November

London exposed stocks suffered particularly as office
workers nave not returned (we estimate office utilisation
rates atl ¢25% versus a Continental average of over 50%)
and tis combined with the collapse in tounsm (both
domestic and international} has temporanly hollowed out
our global city Our UK office expasure was concentrated
In decentrahsed offices through CLS and McKay whilst

we avoided London retail focused names such as Capco
and Shaftesbury as welt as those businesses with shorl
occupational leases such as Workspace,

As the Tehef / reopening / 1eflalion” trade gathered
momentuin, | closed our underweight exposure to
Furopean shopping centres, bought tack into some Central
Lendon retall and renewed our exposure 1o office maikets
particularly those cities with the sharter commute times
Essentially | was still shying away from the laigest two
conurbatiens (Lendon and Pans) whilst adding Lo smaller
ones such as Madnd and Dublin and maintaning exposue
to decentralised office sectors In the UK, Sweden and
Germany

Ihe pandemic has turned much 'on 1ts head” and in our
corner of the equity market 1t was the performance of
Swiss property companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicled Tradiionaily a safe haven,
these stocks did rot nitally recover from the March lows
with mvestars focused on the prodlematic retail exposure
of the {argest listed companres We continue to be
underweight the group
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Anather positive surprise has been n self-storage which
reporled very steady numbers through Lle worst of the
year Whilst our stock selection in the UK was correct
(Safestore {otal return +27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
ruraway suceess was Shurguard, the Continenat player
relurning +48%, which we didn’l own In our defence, the
slock enjoyed strong demand from index trackers as it
entered vancous benchmarks midyear.

Most of 2020 was an undeistandably subdued

penod far M&A corporate activity with one particular
exceplion. Norwegian offices Entra (where we were a
top 20 shareholder) was the subject of a dding war
between twa Swedish listed players, Castellum and
samhallsbyggnadsbolaget {also known as SBB) wWhilst
neither successfully gained control. the share piice lotal
return was 57%, our most successful investment in the
period.

The portfolio has some geanng This was reduced In
February and mMarch 2020 but has subsequenty returned
lo pre-pandemic levels, Why have geanng in volatile
brres? The Trust continues Lo take advantage of its

tlosed ended structure and holds a number of ihquid
small cap stocks These well-run compantes (even when
exposed o outperforming subsectors) often suffer from
hmited investor attention, being deemed too small. As a
consequence, in nsing markets they often underperform
their larger brethren (in market parlance their 'beta’ (s less
than one). Adding some gearing helps compensate for
these lower beta names Our experience 1s that over time
the underiying property fundamentals will be recagnised
and, If not, then the market wil! take them pnivate or
merge them together Our physical property exposure also
sits outside our benchmark and additional geanng ensures
that we are nol underexposed to eguities versus our
benchmark given that a proportion of capital is invested in
physical propertly

OFFICES

a1 all the segments of the commeraal real estale
landscape, the future demand for offices remains the
hardest to forecast The two undeniable consequences of
the pandermic, for this asset class, kgs been the realisation
that emplayees of corporates of all sizes can work
remately {for long periods) +f required and secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9



Manager’s Report =1 n:

the next generation of 'best in dass’ office accormnmadation
will be uihsed very differently with lenants having new
priorties. Budl into these demands walt bo the overarching
need for energy efliciency. carbon neutrality and
sustainabihity through the Iife cycle of the bu!dmg

The take up hiqures for the last year (across the 15 major
cibies we maonitor) offers Iittle comparative value qeen the
nabihty for businesses to physically relecate in many of
these matkets from March 2020 Taking Lordon 3s a case
i point, Savills reported that West End take up fell from
Adm sa foin 2009 to 17mn 2020 Office ubilsation rates
through 2020 andinto 2021 have vaaned hugely A hroad
rule of thumb was that the larger the aly (and the fanger
the average commute bme) the lowe Lhc office ulnisation
rate Generally the smaller cihies also had higher ievels of
commuting by private transport or where workers were
using overground public franspont Scandinavian and Swiss
Glies have seen almost normalised utibsation tates whilst
tondon and Pans temain sub 30% {ooking forward, what
15 important 1o us 1s the amaount of new space which was
scheduled to complete {construction was haned for very
short penods in most markets) and whetr*er thefe aie
signs of demand as we move Nt the post vacane penod

tooking acioss Furope as a whole, the combined effect of
reduced leasing activity and construclion completions led
to 100bgs increase 10 vacandy (o an average of 6 9% (BNP
data). This single statisue clearly tides a wide range of
ievels Unsurprisingly, London and Pans fave experienced
the greatest increases from 5% 1o rearly 8% bul Dublin
collects the wooden spopn wiln varancy Inceasing 1o
aver 9% This is a good example of a small market where
2 {tlemporary) demand strike mee's a numher of large
completins gnd refushyshments However the hisionically
aw levels of vacanicy in many aligs urior (o the pancemic
Nave nsuialed Most markels, with Modes: Gownwardg
movements 10 pnme 1enis recorged acoss the Germnear
3G 6, wilar. Maand, Osla Amsterdant ana Stecchonmm

Tne delivery of rew office bundings has 1[53 been
aetfarred, pautlwlr“v o tall humdws The hew, Lordon

Arcpnecture’s annual Tail Buinonas Suivey 12cormed

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

7% dechne in planning applications for buildings
over 201 storeys in 2020 when compared with 2075 we
were surprised that the fail wasn't farger but 73% of all
applications were 1n the lalter part of the year and hinls &t
developer confidence regarding demand for new bund

Investment demand has remaned very resihent atmaost

regardless of short-term weakness i occupational

markets The weight of capital seeking real assets 15

a theme which will recur through this reparl The rise

i the long end of the curve as the 1eflation there

gathers mementum s proving very damaging for fixed

incorne stiuctures High quality offices - offenng large lat

sizes - with secure income defivening 3 5-4% nel yield

15 atlractive versus negative yielding sovereign bonds

Further up the risk curve, apportunishic capital also remans
very aciive and histed deveiopment speuahists such as

Great Portland Estates and Derwent London have found it

hard lo deploy capital amidst fierce competition

Tne 2621 CBRE EMEA Investor intenirans Survey Nighlights
London as sl the mast attraciive oty for invesiment

in Furope with an estimated €£40-450bn of gicbal equity
iooking ta be deployed into the market across all types
of Duddings This is the highest ligure since tne survey
starting tracking demand i 2012 whast transaction
volumes slowed last year, the fust two months of 2021
{tradimionally @ quiet ime) have seen voiumes reach
£875m gieater than the same penod in 2015 Part of the
tondon attraction 15 that yields didn’t compress durmg
the Brexit uncertainty mawng the aty look much cheaper
than oiher big Eurepear clies Post the EU-LIK Trade ano
Coaperaiion Agreement we expect ihis gap 1o narrgw

RETAIL

Fhe M50/ PD data for the 12 months wo March 2027 sav
all retay' nrope-ty cabrial vaines (3! 1287 *w‘.n 3 Senous
acceleralion n the decing of shopping £
cemck fell 25 55 over the 133! 52 monlins ' iRe Inlenims,
Fcommented that we fel e yvalaalion community were
em~¢ tne Uimes gue 0 thelf requrement to loox 3l dea!
evigerce Essenhally, i fast moving markets e cdnhsheg
fii

CJ

cures et already be oul of gate SI0CK Matkets koW



this and retall landlords acioss the globe have been
trading at very large discounts Lo therr {no longer valid)
tast published figures

The woes of retall are well understond The pandemic
has accelerated trends which were well estabhished
Reopening of economies will see footfall return to
shopping centres but the levels of sustainabie rents
remain the subject of market forces. In the UK Lhe loss
of 3 huge number of well known brands either through
barkruplcy of retreat has resulted 1n average vacancy
levels in shapping centres reaching over 15% (MSCH data)

This means the negotiation bool remains firmly on the
tenants’ foal and we predict a further 15% falls in rental
values The one drea where there are clear signs of price
stabifisation 15 0 retail warehousing Qpen air with plenty
af free parking, this type of tetall assel sits well 10 an
omni-channel environment where retailer marqins are
maximised through chick and collect Affordability 1s the
eternal watchword and whilst there are some parks with
very igh rents (often fashion retailer led) the majonty wiil
see madest declines in rental values Occupancy cost ratios
are also not burdened by escalating service charges

Across Europe, the picture 1s more nuanced Valuers are
even more conservative than therr UK counterparts and
capitalisation rates are yet to move matenally. In some
countries, retailers have been given huge amounts of
government support and as a result rental definguency

15 generally iower than 1n the UK In addition, many
shopping centres are anchared by hypermarkets (whicn
have temained apern) and not department stores (a UK/
US concepl no longer N1t for purpose beyond a handful

of tounst destinations such as Selfndges and Galeries
Lafavette) There have been lower levels of retailer
bankruptcy across Continental Europe and we put

this down to two faciors less overrenting and the UK
msolveacy legislalion On this latter point, a nuge rumber
of UK retailers have taken adventage of the CVA (company
vatuntary adrmiristration) to force landlords (generally a
large credilor) to accept corporate reconstruchions which
unduly damage their interests A recent High Court ruiing
invelving the overly indebted retaiier New Look, reinforced
this tenant fnendly legislation
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Investors remain very arcumspect towards this assel class
Incoime insecynty has resulted 10 iavestors requinng much
nigher inthial yields. (BRE estimate that UK pnme shopping
centie yields have moved from 4.5% to 7% 10 the fast

5 years with poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
at lterally unsaleable Retail warehousing has bucked the
depressing trend at least liom an investor perspedctive,
Investors are incieasingly conlident that they are able

to measuire tenant affordabily and this 1s the key to
determining pricing In the last couple of menths we have
seen competitrve bidding for a number of retarl warehouse
schemes, something not seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industrial and logistics Lake up hit a record 597m sq ft

in 2020 Whilst the pandermic suppressed demand 1n many
ather parts of the pioperly market, it clearly shmulated
logistics and business achivity which utiised industnal
property Amazon again accounted [or a sizeahle (20%)
portion of the activity and 1t was this XL seqgment (250,000 +
5q ft) which was the major beneficiary of the surging ontine
demand The aniine shaie of 1elall sales rose from 19 2% 1N
2018 o 279% 1n 2020 fithing a new high of 36.3% 1n January
2021 as we returned to lockdown This will scaie back as we
reopen but the baost to anline scale and efficiency 1s here to
stay. Supply has resporded but has been mare than matched
by this demand As a consequence, supply has fallen to
734m sq ft, down 6% on the year, and this ightening has
occurred in every size bracket

Rental giowth continues to march on but there has been
a broadenmyg of growsth rates across the reqions. Greater
London and the East Midlands recorded growlh of over
7 whilst average rates across the country at 3 9%, Such
strong rental growth, the secure income and the pesitive
outlook has driven bolh domestc ang internationat buyers
to pay record prices for this sector whether it s last mile
Jrban units, XL big boxes or leraces of well located
industrial umits Prime yields are 35 to 4% and even shorl
Incorse 15 not deterring investors as evidenced by the sale
of our Brstol distibubion unit at 4 5% 17:hial yield with

35 years unexpired

The same picture of rude health 15 evident across
Continental Europe According Lo BNP lake up increased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11
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14% acrass the 6 largest Lurapeart ecanomies and vacancy
rates dvopped to 5.5%, thewr lowest and all against a
backdrop of a shaip contraction in GDP Agam it was a
surge i e-comimerce and hame detivery which drave
demand. Prime yields across Europe tightened 25bps
2020, matching the UK with no signs of decompression
even as the lang end of the curve nses Investment
demand s truly global wath US and Asian insttutional
capital compeling with more doinestic long term capital
all determined to parlicipate 10 s structural shift

RESIDENTIAL

As expected the sector has remaned highly resilient
dunng the pandemic The majority of our mvestrments are
N German and Swedish housing where rents are subject
1o state contcol The remaining exposure is kinland and the
UK where rents are open-rarkel The former offer grealer
secunty with rents tied to indexation whilst the fatter
offers more opportunity to captyre market growth but
wiih the commensurate risk if vacancy nses and market
rents fall. During the crisss, the secunty of mcome and very
Figh occupancy levels resulted in the sector retaining its
populanty German housing has expenenced prce 11585 10
virtually all its syb-markets

As explained eainer, Berlin remained the outlier

as Ihe State of Berlinimposed a 5 year rent freeze
(Mierendeckel) The subsequent Consututional Court ruhng,
which confirmed that vent controls are determimed al the
Federai, not Stale ‘evel, came just after the year end in
mid-aonl We are pleased with this oulcome and the share
prices of both Deutsche Wornen (4 4% of net assetsj and
Phoenix Spree [2 5% of net assels) responded nostlwery
hew construction of apariments 1n Betiin had all but dried
up gs developers awaited the oulcome ol the appeai
Berlin remains the cheapest camtal Oty in Western Eurape
wownicn to rent an apartment O you can ind one) The
deswe of & leit-vung loczl authonity 'o keep tf hat viay
gardiass of fne side effect of shytling oul new migrants
rough the corseqaenial coliapse in the supoiy ai new

nomes has ceen sutabry rebuifed

T

b

J V:'n)

t

ALTERNATIVES
Inis group ercomsassas sectors nal have thnved
(supermakets, hea'thcare, seif-starage] 1 tne ¢rsis ang

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

those which have not (student accommodation, hotels).
Share price performance was an amplified reflection of
not only the underlying properly peiformance hul also
the dramatic shift 10 investar sentiment Self starage
share prices have tradionalfy perfarmed poorly in
slowing econormuc conditions as the incerme is considered
short term and volatile. However the pandemic has
focused investors  minds on the emerging sirength of
his sector where a small group of operators {mostly
listed compames) have the inanaal musde 1o dominate
the price comipanson websites. Anothel emerging trend
has been the ncreasing business usage of a product
tradivionally seen as the domain of prvate cusiomers
Bustesses have seen the merits of immediate. hassie free
access to short or longer lerm storage The supply chain
disruption dunng the pandemic haightened the need for
space s the mantrd became '3 little mare just i case and
a htile less just in tme” Our self storage group returned
+4pt% from the Yow point (18th March 2020) to the end
of Octaber However, from Novemnber 2020 to the end of
Karch 20271 they have collechively returned just —4 1%

A dlassic example of g switch in sentimenl as investors
rotated away Irom the ‘Covid relative winners’ group 1nlo
the value names which had underperformed and fooked
very cheap on histong metncs

in anolher alternatives’ sub-sector we expenenced the
compiete reverse Siudent accommadation businesses
suffered a collapse inncome and Unite {our only
exposure) led the fieid in refunding rents which wes the
rorrect PR strategy bul depleted ther wp hne The well
doacumented difficuties for students thiough the fast
vwo academic years and the complete inabity far rany
Gverseas students to enioll physically impacted investiar
senument wth 1he sub-sector failing 46% newween 19th
February and 1817 Maich 2320 and then staging 3 wear
recovery of st <17 from then to ke end ol Dalober
WiNRST this performance comparas poorly with seil storage,
since Ihe beginmng of kovermber the sub-sector 1as
rahied 30% as the hkelinood of the reoparing of terbay
2autalon (Mproves

SUPSITalkets have conueued 1o atrraci investar
atiention Qur exposiie s Inrougnh Supermarket Inceme
SEIT(UK) ang Qibus (Sweden and Riniang) Supenmarks



lncome REIT raised a lotal of £490m in three separate
ransactions through the year and now has a market

cap of over £900m Ghus slso raised capital (SFK

200m) 1n two tranches to make further acquisitions The
larger supermarket operalors have been able to attract
customers through ther online network which the hard
discounters {uidl, Ald) are not able to offer Volumes

and margins will normatise post the pandemic but these
operalors have had the opportunily to prove the resilience
of their omni-channel model which utihses last mile
distnbution from their network of stores {t1s one of the
fews parts of the retail landscape where physical stores are
truty integral to the online journey.

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remained busy an debt refinancings
throughout the pandermic and the huge amount of central
bank supporl and govesnment simuius ensured a healthy,
hauid markel where pricing did not weaken According Lo
EPRA, €15.2bn was raised 1n 2019 at an average coupon of
18% and 2020 saw €15.6bn at a cost of 16%. These figures
are not dweclly comparable as the mix of debt offerings in
each period was different but they are a dlear indicalor as (o
the health and price stability in the debt markets German
residentiar companies were agam busy with Yonovia raising
€2 5bnn four transactions borrowing 10-year money at 1%
Later i October, Gedina, turope’s largest office REIT raised
€200m 10 a 2034 term bond at 0.86%

Early in the crisis, we saw a number of strong businesses
trading at premuums ratse equity capita! for opportumshic
expanston. This was i seclars wilh clear underlying
dermand, namely healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Primary
Health Properties), sell-storage (Big Yellow), logistics/
industnial (LondonMetsic, Segro, YGP ), supernmarkets
{Supermarket Income REIT. Gbus) and German residential
{vonovia, ADO Properties, LEG) The Autumn saw
opportunistic raises In Sweden and Nonway (Balder,
Klovern ana Norwegian Properties) a region which had
expenenced low levels of lockdowr restnchions More
recently In February and March this year we saw renewed
actmity in the UK, as the vacane rollout improved
sentiment, with raises from Targel Healthcare, LX), Tritax
Furobox and Supermarket Income REIT again Conunental
European raises in 20271 have so far heen confined to

healliicare (Colinimmae} and student accommaodation (xor),

»
=
-
=
m
=
“
=
m
-
<o
bt
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Post the summer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies linally
came under cashflow and valuation pressure In the end
It was Just a handful of retanl focused names who had
been mismanaging therr balance sheets long before

the pandermic. Hammerson's £600m raise effectively
recapitahsed the balance sheet with a 24 for 1 nghls 1ssue
accompanted by the (previously announced) departure of
the CEO completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Charr,
CEQ and CFO. In late October, Shaftesbury announced a
£300m placong and open offer Locking back their timing
was spectacularly unferiunale as the arnouncement of the
first vaccines came less than a fortnight later.

These game changing anncuncements immediately
altered expectations and there 15 nowhere better to
llustrate the point than the corporale saga al Liniball-
Rodameo-Westheld (URW). URW had announced a €3bn
‘Resel’ plan comprising €3 5bn capital raise, dividend
cancellation and a planned €4bn of disposals A group

af activist shareholders tead by Leon Bressler (the CEQ

of Unihatl from 1992 {¢ 2006} launched a campaign to
oppose Lthese AGM proposals and launch an altemalive
strategy which did not include a deeply discounted capital
raise They proposed the sale of the US (ex Westfield)
portfolio and a return Lo thetr rocts as an owner of

pnime European shopping centres. Thew timing was
fortunate, with the 10th November AGM coming Just
after the vacaine announcement and the improvement in
mvestor sentiment even for deeply indebled husinesses
Essentially convinang investors that they didn’t need

to put ‘good money after bad” and thal the sell help
strategy would succeed [hey were successful in therr
campaign and shareholders voted against the ‘Reset’
nlan This led to the departure of the Chairman, CEQ

and (FO and the promotion of exisling senior managers
to the Board The share pnce, which had troughed at

€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the closing
of short positions This corporate tale neatly encapsutaies
the dramatic change In mvestor sentment (and pricng
ol previously unloved businesses) which we saw from
Novermnber onwards.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Turnover (purchases and sales divided by twoj toialled
f468m equating ta 36% of the average net assets over
the penad This was hroadiy in ine with last year's

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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Manager’s Report

I

we increased the capacity on our 1CBC oan fanlity duning
the year and Lthe remaiming loans were renewed at
existing levels We did see small increases on marging
on same renewals We also locked at the potenual to
take out new ar extend our longer-term debt Our Euio
denominated loan note s due tof repayment 1n 2026 and
the Sterling note 1n 2031, however the flexibility of the
short- term facilities 1s valuable 1n more volatile markets
and has certainly worked well for usin the current year

We cantinue o explore new ophons in all markets

OUTLOOK

As economies emerge from the gnp of the pandemic,
imvestors have tocused on assessing whetner the damage
{or growthy was temparary, longer lasting or permanent
Real eslale investors are no exceplian and the range

of premiums / discounts 1o net asset values of hsted
companies fighnghts the breadtn of expectalions across
the propetly spectrum rhe difficulty is hat there s no
precadent for the profile of recovery in tenan! demand
across so much of this asset class Clearly exisiing
structural shifts have been accelerated and new ones nave
emerged which may prove more permanent than the
markets currently expect Al of this uncertamty leads us to
focus onincome susiamabiiny and those markets wheie -
if demand does retura - supply 15 constrained

Whi'st tenant demand 15 hard to gauge we do benefit
from a penign financing erviranment Deki markets are as
accamimodating as they have ever been_ even if the long
eng of the carve s 19ng We see ng rease, for mMargins 1o
wider ir the near tenm. 'nflatignary pressures are bilaing
and fixed income 2sset values ref.ect these expec.alions
Prope-ty offers income whicn 1s ted enirer arect'y
(nges-nnked) or mdirect, (rental groveth] 1o eCanomic
expansion Cur Interins 15 o feman focused on areas
chare inatingome 1s ot susiananie aml where il ofiets

Growth

D e near lerm wee A o maintar e expasiie W ine
orecate rented resiientgl seclor (pasicgias o an G2rmany
2~d Syieaen) as the market tonhinyges o udervalls 1ot
07y 1he cuahty of those earmings but also e sieady
crovsth orofre Tnere s nsk - n Germany - that @ left
wang coalilton governmert would amend the ¢4 7ept

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

federal law resulling 1n local cities getting more cantio
gver ients. However Lhe rent freeze in Bethin {over the
iast 18 months) resulted 10 a reduchion 0 the numbey of
available apartments as well as 3 slowing i the pace of
neww apartment detivery We trust that commain sense
will prevail over poiilical dogma Flsewhere, undervalued
Income stieams are evidentin supermarkets and in

parts of the healthcare market aAlongside index-linked
sustamabihly we will also mamtain exposure 10 the
areatest growth oppoitumties The structural shifts in
retail behaviour are stdl ongoing Evalution i the speed
of defivery and post pandemic supply chain dynarmcs

will dave growvath across the togistics landscape {rom 'hig
hox' Lo fast mile’. We wall continue 1o own the developers
where we see ingeases In the value of landbanks as well
a5 growing develogment margins mvestar demand for the
end praduct shows no sign of abating

Office markets will remain volatile Businesses will spend
time working out tneir requirements 1 a post bandemic
world Interaction and coflabosation will drive office usaga
Tasks thal can be tulfifled withoul physical interaction will
be timetabled for remote working A new balance wili
develap with one sure fire certanly. the preinm being
attached {0 best i class newly bunt space with comprete
envicgnmental credentials Deveiopers will respond to
this demand and we exuect an acceleration in buridings
bengadentified for refurnishment eatlier than previously
enmisaged Obsolescence of the existing office stock wih

accelerals

Posi tne vear end in eariy May. St Modwen Properhies
aniouncad that an affer of 5470 oer share from
Blackstone, a 244 premiam Lo e iast punlishad NAY
had the syopodt of the baard This company has aiaige
stateqic iandbank, 3 g guaity logistics poitioha and
a growing rodsebunding unit and wmlsl 1l vias rading
close fo s assel vi'ue, prwvile equily Geany feels itis
Jndervamed Thisis g emindes as staled 11 a numia of
previous reoiis, that the depth of Doth equity and ae0t
aualability Jnderpins astes comgany valualions

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund rtanager

3 June 2321



Portfolio

Distribution of Investments u
as at 31 March 3
2021 2001 2020 2020 o
o £'000 % £000 % 2
UK Securities 3
- quoted 395,644 22.3 352,188 304 B
UK Invest_lrlentfgggejtjgj 23,0M 59 o _9_4_,;10_ 81
UKTotal - 478,715 342 446,698 38.5
Continental Europe Secutities
- quoted 921,801 65.8 708,597 51i
investments held at fair value T 1,400,516 1000 155,295 996
- CFD (creditor)/debtor {141) - 8,698 0.7 B UK Securities
- TRS creditor? - s (3.808) (0.3) I UK Property
Total Investment Positions 1,400,37_5_ ) 100.0 1,160,185 100.0 Continental Europe
investment Exposure
as at 31 March
2021 20 2020 2020
- £'000 % £000 %
UK Securities T -
- quoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 289
- CFD exposure? 45,411 29 32,257 2.6
- TRS exposure? - - 6,598 05
UK Investment Properties 83,0M 5.5 94,510 78
UK Total 524156 340 485553 398
Continental Europe Securities 94.5%
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
_ -~ CrD exposure? 106,560 65  244an 2.0 B Equities
Total investment exposure® . 1546517 1000 1218621 1000 1 UK Praperty

Portfolioc Summary
as at 31 March

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
o £000 [N £/000 £'000 £'000

Yotal investments £1,401 £1,155m £1,291m £1,316m £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shares 28% 31% 3% 31% 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% £1% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property {extermnally valued) 6% 8% 8% % 8%

Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March

0N Fiiryl 2020 2020

(&0 T R e Company  Benchmark
U B N

GBp 27.9 28.3 270 26.8
EUR 51.2 50.9 530 53.1
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 79
SEK 12.9 12.9 .0 13
NOK 13 13 11 0.9

Net unrealised {loss)/gain on C£B contracts held as balance sheet (creditor)/debtor.

Net unrealised lass on total return swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheet creditor.

Gross value of CFD positions.

Gross value of TRS position.

Total investments dlustrating market exposure inciuding the grass value of (FD and RS pesitions. TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 17
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investment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2621

Ausltia
(A lomabilien

Belgium
Warehousing and Distribution de Pauw
Aedifica

Cofinimmo

VGP

Xior

Care Property

Montea

intervest Offices & Warehouses
Wereldhave

Fipland
Kojamo
Gtycon

France

Argan

Gecina

Covivio

Klépiesre
Altarea

Germany

Vanovia

LEG

Deutsche Wohnen
Aroundtown

VIB Vermoegen

1AG tmmabilien

Alstria

Deutsche Euroshap

Ireland
Hibernia REIT

Netherlands
Eurocommercial Properties
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield
NS|

Norway
Entra

Spain
Arima Real estate
Merlin_

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

241N
16,502
13,677
8,070
5,926
4,841
2,329
1923
247

78,286 56

17,500

21716
19670

53,987
24,036
13,457
10,364

1,351

103,195

145,982
63,904
54,499
39,306
37,980
33,294

8,811
5,283

0.2

389,059

20,993

az675 31

16,199

16,199

n,102
19,901

0003

1.2

12

15
.
23

Sweden
Kungsleden
wihlborgs

Cibus

Fabege
Costellum
Fastighets Balder
Nylosa

Catena

Samhalls
Pandox

Switzerland
PP

United Kingdom

SEGRD

Derwent tondon
Safestore tioldings
Landsec

Stenprop

Phoenix

Unite Group

Sitius

Picton

CLS Holdings
Londonmetric Property
McKay Securities

Secure Income REIT
Supermarket income REIT
Tritax Eurobox

PRS REIT

AsSUra

Target Healthcare
Primary Health Propeities
Atrato Capital

Capital & Regionat
Copita) & Counties

Direct Property -

CFO Pasitions
(included in current liabilities) _ _

Tofai investment Positions

Companies shown by country of isting

36,061
23,390
18,201
17,594
16,805
16,215
12,008

5,933

3,737
2,690

155,635

41,999

41,999

40,357
33,584
32,193
31,327
30,477
25,212
25,343
22,29
21,330
20,077
19,903
18,104
15,551
9,614
7,634
6,189
5,194
4,418
3,848
1,468
1,062
77

83,071

Market
value

%

2.5
17
13
12
12
12
0.9
0.6
03
0.2

o ma

395644 283

30

3.0



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

31 March IEEIRLEIG)
0N 2020

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

3t March
__ 2020

Shareholding value  £146.0m {£144.4m)

% of investment

949
portfoliot A% (1.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.7%)
Share price  €55.70  (€44.86)

Shareholding value £67.8m (£38.7m)
% of investment

portiolio’ 44%  (3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6%  (0.5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p)

LEG

v
a
3
2
m
=
0
™
m
-
o
=
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3. LEG {GERMANY)

31 March
o 2020

Shareholding value  £63.9m (é75.3m)
Y% of investment

portfoliot 4.1% (6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €112.2  (£102.7)

Vonavia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EUR56.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria {5%). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run 2
strategy focusing on maodernizing its
portfolio. The company is invelved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA}, its value-add branch (energy

and muitimedia related services, 8%,

its third-party development business

{6%) and its recurring sales program
{5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict regulations in Germany

in particular, Vonovia’s management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a sacial role which should
allow them to benefit from critical palitical
goodwill in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return {computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
fike rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residentiat
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in Novemnber 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.,

N_ules

segro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% cther uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Htaly third;
these markets have a tower, but still
pasitive, rental growth outlook (and are
geogiaphically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has praved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
1o largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values {€.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net inittal yield of 3.8% at FY20). We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAvV growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a German residential company
focused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. It is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a cambined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and ¢
locations in adjacent states with the view
ta leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform still within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to regulatory risk than peers
with a 8erlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants {25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EURS.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macre-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liabilittes side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum target set at 43% for 2021),

an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. in 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

= The percentage of investment pottalio pos tiors set aut abowe include exposures thiough CRR for both the irdividual positions ard the porttolic

>The irvestment Portfolio by Courtry positens set oul on page 18 are the phys cal Pold rgs only incuded .o the investrrerts Feld al lzr vaiLe n the Balerce Sheet The
profit o1 oss pos L ons on the CFD contiacts { e rol the irvestment exposuie) are a 5o showr or page 18 ana are incluced i the Bewence Sheel ds cebtors or creditons
fn the Lurent assels
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Twelve Largest Equity [nvestments .

DEUTSCHE

»  WOHNEN

4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
{GERMANY)

31 Match
S __ 200

Shareholding value £54.5m  (£36.4m)
% of investment

portiolio? 3.5%  (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share price €39.78  (£34.71)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany's second
largest residential company witlr the bulk
of its expaosure to Greater Berlin (76%

of the total portfolio FV). The comipany
owns a high-quality portfolio consisting of
more than 155,600 wnits with a combined
value of €26bn. In addition ta the rentat
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investrment cost of EUR6.9bn
(27% of GAV) split between build-to-hold
{EUR4.3bn, 629% of the pipeiine} and build-
to-sell (EURZ.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).
In a context of the implementation of
the rental freeze in Bedin, the company
showed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin portiolio was valued
at EURZ,853 per sgm on average which
feaves signilicant upside patential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the positive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-copstitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has heen +62%.

TARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

Shaieholding value £54.0m (£46.8m)
% of investment

portfoliot 5%  (3.8%)
% of equity owned 3.5% {3.5%)
Share price €804 {€676)

Argan is a french company, created in
206G by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
been listed since 2067. The objective

of the company has been to build a
portfalio af premiurmn logistic assets which
quarantee & stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has tull contral
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and curient
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able ta capture
the developer margin while having little
1o no risk on the letting side. in 2020,

the portfolio value amounted ta EUR3bn
{100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris regian, 16% to the Narth of
France and 13% around Lyon}.

The company delivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRV per share up 19%

Yo and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable tnortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds, The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
cermpany to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude te Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong quarantee of alignment. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +307%

31 March
S 2020

gecsna

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

m 31 March
S _ 2020
Shareholding value  £53.9m  (£47.5m)
;’:ﬁ:&ﬁgsmem 5%  (3.9%)
% of eguity owned Q.7% (0.6%)
Share price €r4  (€1207)

Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with 2 portfolio of more thap
€14bn focused almaost exclusively on

the Patis region {97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris ity
{60% of the total office value). It owns
also a portfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets {of which EUR367m in student
housing) predorinantly located in

the Paris regicn. Firally, the company
owns 2 portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
{ocated in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on 2 development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn {17% of GAV) 10 be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets
to crystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the campany has delivered 30
projects and gererated EUR.1bn of value
creation (EURNS per share). in 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
callection, stable partfslio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financial pasition of the company is very
salid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 71 years.

The tive-year shareholder tatal return has
been +21.6%.

mtles
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KLEPIERRE

7. KLEPIERRE {FRANCE)

31 March
_ 200

Shareholding value £51.3m (nil)
% of investment

portfalint 3.3% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% {0%)
Share price €19.89 (€17.57)

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

Shareholding value £44.0m (£279m)
% of investment

portfoliot 28%  (23%)
% of equity owned 2.6% {1.9%)
Share price 796p (641p)

31 March
2020

SINIS
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Swiss Property
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9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value  £42.0m (Em)
% of investment o

portfoliot 27%  (23%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20 (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), italy
(18%), Scandinavia (17%) and Iberia
(10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On
a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by food retailers contrary to UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges (partly driven by anline
competition}). The financial position of
the company is also mote solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon {Chairman of the Supervisary
Board), Chairman and CEO of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

hates

safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards London and the South
East {¢.60%). In addition the company has
a large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities (through both jV structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland’s key ecanomic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company’s
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid results in 2020 with EPS
{exd revaluation) stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a devetopment pipeline
adding EUR34m: of rents (11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

= 1he percentage of investrert portio o posit ars set oLt above rclude exposuies through CFO for both the indivicua positions ard the portfcio
>The nvestment Portfonc by Courtiy pus tions set out on page "8 are the physica holdirys urty ncluded n the investiments held at fa'r va.ue 1r the Balance Sheet fhe
profit ar oss pus tons ¢n the CFD contiacts (1€ not the nvestment exposuie) are 2lso shown on page 18 ard are in¢ uged i the Sglance Sheet as debtars or creditors

In the Current assets
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Twelve Largest tquity lnvestments

kQJ AROQUNDTOWN °

10. ARQUNDTOWN (GERMANY)
31 march

I s

Shareholding valve  £39.3m ' {£20.3m}

% of investment

portfoliot 2.5%

{1.7%)

% of equity awned 0.5% {0.3%)

share price €607 (€455

Arpundtown is 2 diversified German-
based praperty campany that owns a
EUR24.5bn portfolio. It has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
Office (60% of the commercial porttfolic),
Hotels (28%), Retall (%) and Lagistics
(3%). The majority of its expasure Is

in Germany and the Nethetfands (86%
together). The campany is also exposed
to German Residential {14% of total GAY)
through its 39% haolding in Grand City. The
portfalio has grown significantly since
Aroundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Isnmobilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisary board deputy Chafrman]} who
founded the company, still owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group (down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company tlosed EUR2 3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the parttolio with a disposal
pipeline of EURS00m while buying

back shares far a maximum amount of
EURS0Om. The five-year total sharehalder
return has been 58%.

Nores

2020

V!t B Vermagen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
- )

Sharehalding value £38.0m (£22.9m)
% of investment N

postfoliot 2.5%  (1.9%)
% of equity owned 5.5% (4.1%)

Share price €29.25 (€22.80)

VIB is a German company developing,
buying and heiding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
company pursues a develap or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid financial structure. The real estate
portiolio {EUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers 2nd DIY stores
(i1%), gracery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
portiolio than peers at 6.8% implying

2 superior £PS yield and mote potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
grawth in 3 mid to long-term herizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last tive years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAY per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. in 2020, the campany maintained
a solid mementurmn with EPS growing by
+3% and NAV per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 93%.

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONOON (UK)

31 March
e _ 2020

Shareholding value £37.6m (i)
% of investment

portfolio? 24%  (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price 3228p  (3270p)

Derwent London is a London Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarity in the West End and “tech belt”
(0ld street, Clerkenwell etc.) areas aof
Lopdon. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-19, which bath brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left ongoing uncertainty
over tuture office use as the necessity and
papularity of working from home grew.
We believe the rale of the office remains
important however, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
Office landlord to weather the (OVID15
storm given a} its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%)], b} the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in Landon
and other Eurapean cities (c.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and ¢} the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Soho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total sharehalder returnn has been 18%.

> The peirertane of ruesiment portlonc pest ors set cit ~Eove re'Loe exposires 1HioLgh (70 e doth the re v e pestors <raire potils ¢
SIRe PuRSHRErt FOIs o Dy CSul Uy pOS 1 ORS sel DLl oF 2 "B afe the prys (@' ho ¢ rgs on y neuces P pvestiresis be ¢ gt fa i vaie 1 oihe e ance Yreel 1Te
prot 1o 0sE pes tors sntbe (D corlrpeds [ g ool ipe nuestrert expostee, 318 2 5C SPOWE 07 Lace "4 arn 2 roucec 1 Pe da.zrce Sheet 25 cetlois o ued il s

nibe fuaert gssets
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capitalt Value (")

as at 31 March 2021

west End of London
Inner Londen”®
South west

Total

Retail Industrial
42.9% -
1.6% 31.2%

- 9.2%
©44.5% 40.4%

‘tnner London defined as (nside the North and South Circular.

Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio

as at 31 Masch 2021

010 5 years

5 to 10 years
10 1o 15 years
15 to 20 years
20+ years

Contracted Rent
as at 31 Maich

__Gross rental income

24% Year 1
17% Years 2-5
53% Years 5+
0%
6%

Residential
and
Ground Rents

14.5%

14.5%

53,0000
£10,000,000
_ _£19000,000

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

The Colonnades, Bishoeps Bridge
Road, London W2

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London SW18

10 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

v aages

industrial

Sector Mixed Use ector Industrial Sector

Tenure freehold Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehold )
Size (sq ft) 64,000 T Sizefsqf) 36,000 o Size (sq ft) 63,000 o
principal  Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Principal  Kougar Tool Hire Ltd Principal  Infusion GB T
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot, fenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, construtted
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteieys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Lockdown Baker

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generaliy let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment,

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of Junction
11A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A7 praviding good links to the M4
via junction 15.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company's Objective is to maximise sharehalders’ total return
by investing in the shares and secusities of propefty companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling. The index, calculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-fata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company's business odel follows that of an externally managed
investment trust.

The Company has no employees. its whally non-executive goard of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strateqy; corporate governance; risk and
control assessment; the averall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset aflocation and menitoring investment performance.

The Boaed has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative
investment Fund Manager (AIFM”) with portfolio management delegated 10
Thames River Capital LLP. MaFcus phayre-Mudge acts as fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Depuly
fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and potfolie analysts.

further information in refation to the Board and the arrangemnents under the
nvestment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 41 to 43.

i accordance with the Altemnative investment Fund Managers Directive
("AIFMD"), BNP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary 10 the Company.
BNP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.
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Strategy and investment Policies
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the petformance of the fManagenin meeting the Trust's objective against
the tollowing Key Peiformance Indicators ("KPis ).

KPi Board monitoring and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directors regard the out-performance of the
Company’s net asset value lotal return in performarice
M companson with the benchmark as being an overall
measure of value delivered te the shareholders over the
longer-term

The Board reviews the performance 1 detan ar each
meetiag and discusses the results and outlook with the
Manages

Outcome
5 yeats
20.7% 7.7%

159%  43%

1year

NAY Tatal Return {Annualised)

Benchmark Total Return (Annualised)

T NAY Tatz, Retuin is caiculated by 1e rvesting the drvidenas n the assets ard
ta Company frem the (ewevdrt ex-dividéra gate Dividends gre deemed to be
re-nvested o the ex-dwv.dends date for the henchmarg

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

The principal objective of the Cormpany 15 3 Lolal return
obyechive, however, Lhe Fund fanager also aims (o
deliver a reliable dradend with growth over the longer
e

The Board reviews statements on incame received to date
and income forecasts at each meeting

Qutcome
1year 5 years
Compaund Annual Dividend Growth 14%  11.2%
Campound Annual RPI 15%  26%

' The bnal dangend o the Wime series alv den by the nilé danderd «n the
perg rasec o the power of * civ.ded by the nurrber ¢l years nthe seres

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shases trade compared with Net Asset Value

wnilst expectation of investment performance s a key
dniver af the share price discount ar premium to tre het
Asset Value of an investment trust over the longei-term,
there are penods when the discoun!t can widen The
Boara s aware of the vulnerability of a sector-soeciainst
{rJst io a change of Investor sexument towargs that
seclon, al o oenoas of wide: market unceltainty, and the
imo2ct that ¢an hiave on ihe discount

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Board lakes powers at each AGM to buy-back ard
1ssue shares When considening the ments of share buy-
back orssuance, 1he Boaid looks at a number of factors in
addiuon 1o the snort ang longer-term discount or premium
o VAV [0 assess whetier action would be benefiaial to
shareholdess overall Particular attentior 15 paid 1o the
cuirent market serhimeant, the potechal impact of any
share huy-madk actaty or the uguidity of the shares and
o0 Cngomng Charges over 1re anger (2im

Outcame
5 years

6.3%

1year
10.2%

Nil 150,000

Average discount

Iotar nurher of shaies reurchased
" average dary CiscoLnt throughedt the perod cf share prce to
NAY wih nceme Scuice Becrrberg



XP1
Level of Ongeing Charges

The Beard 15 conscious of expenses and aims Lo deliver a
balance between excellent service and cosls

The AIC definiion of Ongoing Charges includes any direct
property costs 10 addition to the management fees and
all other expenses ncuired in runming a publicly histed
company. As no other mvestment trusts hold part of their
portfoho i direct properly {they either hold 100% of their
portfoho as properly secunties or as direct property), in
addibion to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 15 shown without direct praperty costs to allow

a clearer comparison of overall administration costs with
other funds mvesting in securties,

The Board monitors the Ongaing Charges, in comparnison
to a range of ather Investment Trusls of stmilar size, both
property sector specialists and other seclor specialists

Board monitoring and outcome

Expenses are budgeted for each finanaial year and the
Board reviews regular reporls on actual and forecasl
expenses thraughout the year

Qutcome
5 years

1year

Ongoing charges excluding

65%
performance fees 0.65%

0.65%

Ongoing charges excluding performance

0.62%
fees and Direct Property Costs ’

0.63%

The ongeing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continue 1o operale in order 1o meet
the requirements lor Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010,

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeling which set out the requirements outlned i
Section 1158

The Directors believe that the conditions and ongaoing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to
31 March 2021 and that the Campany will continue to
meel the requirements

The KPIs are considered ta be Alternative Performance Measures as delined later in the Annual Report.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delvering long-term retuins to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitar the nisks that have been taken
in ordes to achieve that teturn The Board has included below delalls of the prinaipal and emerging nsks and uncestainties
lacing ihe Company and the appropnate measures taken i arder fo mitigate these nsks as far as pracncable.

The Board also considers new and emerqing usks adding appropriate monitoning and miugation measures accordingly

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. the response of financial markets, the unkpown duratien of the pandermic and
ongoing impact on ecanormies around the world together with operational changes 10 response 1o government guidelings
continues to inciease some of the nsks listed below in companson with pnar years

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

share price performs poorly in comparisen to the underiying NAV

The shares of the Company are hsted on the London - The Board monitars the level of discount of premium at
Stock Exchange and the share price is delermined by which the shares are trading over the short and langer-
supply and demand. The shares may trade at a discount term

ar preimium to the Company's underlying hAY and this . N ) )
discount of prermm may flucluate over time - The Board encourages engagement with the shaieholdess.

The Board receives reports at each meeling on the achwty
of the Company’s brokers, PR agent and meelings and
events altended by the fupd Manager

The Cosmpany’s shates are available through the BMWO
share schemes and the Company participales in the active
matketing of these schemes The shares aie also widely
avariable on apen architecture platforms and can be held
directly through the Company’s registrar

- The Board takes the powers o buy-back and to 155de
shares at eacht AGAL

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

The Companys poitfolio s aclively managed. In additon - The Manager’s objecive 15 {o outperform the benchmark

to investment secunties the Company also Invests in The Boara requiarly reviews the Company’s long-term
comimesciat pioparty and accordingly, the portfolio may strategy and invesiment guidelines and the Manager's
not follow or guiperfosm the return of the benchmark reldative posilions agamst these

The Management Engagement Commiitee reviews Lhe
Manager's perfermance annually The Board pas the
powers 10 Change the Managerif deemed appropnale
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Risk Identified

Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company’s
portfolio

Although the portloho 1s diversified across a number of
neniraphical reqions, the investment mandate 15 focused
on a single sector and therefore the portiolic will be
sensitive towards the property sector as well as global
equity markets mare generally

Properly companies are subject to many lactors which
can adversely affect their investment performance, these
include the general economic and financial environment
in which therr tenants operate, Interest rates, availability
of ivestment and development finance and regulations
issued by governments and autharties

Although we have now exiled the Furopean Union the
structure of our fulure relationship with Continental
Europe 1s still evolving and there could be an impact on
gccupation across each sector

The COVIB-19 glabal pandemic dominated the financial
year This has changed the way we live and work,
creating unprecedented uncertainty regarding the impact
on economies and property markets around the world
both in the shart and longer term.

Any strengthening or weakening of Sterling will have

a direct impact as a proportion of our Balance Sheet is
held In non-GBP denominated currencies. The currency
exposure 15 maintained in hne with the benchmark and
will change over ime. As at 31 March 2021, 72 1% of the
Trust's exposure hes (o cunencies other than GBP

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receves and considers a reqular repotl from
Lhe Manager detailing asset allocation, investment
decisions, currency exposures, geanng levels and ralionale
in relation to the prevailing market conditiens

The repuit considers the potential impact of Brexit and the
Manager’s response n positioning the portfoho

The report cansiders the current and potental future
impacl of the COVID-19 pandemic and the engoing
imphcation for the property market and valuations overall
and by each seclor

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underfying portfolio putting
pressure on the Company’s ability to grow the drvidend
could result from a number of factors.

lower earmings and dislnbutions i investee
Companies Companies In some propeity sectors
continue to be negatively impacted by Ine COVID-19
pandemic Companies In some sectors cancelled oy
reduced dividends dunng the last inancial year as a
precautionary measure to protect ther balance sheets
in the short term Although mast have returned Lo
paving dividends, some are at a lower level than
previously and others are continuing to withhold
dividends;

prolonged vacancies i the direct propefty portfoho
and lease or rental renegatiations as a result of
CovID-19;

strengthening Stething reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts In Sterling terms. The Company

nas seen a matenal increase 1n the level of earnings
in recent years. A significant tactor in this was the
weakening of Sterhng following the Brexit decision
Sterling stsengthened in the last quarter of the
financial year This may continue or reverse agdin

in the near or medium term as the longer term
imphcations of Brexit and the COVID-19 pandermic and
the imipact on the UK and Eurdpean econarmies are
understood Strengthening of stering would lead to a
fall in earrings,

adverse changes In the tax treatment of dividends or
other income recerved by the Compary, and

enanges n the urung of cividend receipts from
investee cambanies

Risk identified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receives and considers regular ncome
forecasts

incame farecast sensitivity o changes in £X rates 1s also
monitored,

The Company has substantial revenue reserves which can
be drawn upon when required.

The Board will continue lo monitor the impact of COVID-19
and the long term implications for income generation
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Risk Identified Board monitosing and mitigation

Accounting and operational sisks

Disruption or lallure of systems and processes
underpinning Lthe services provided by third parties and
the nisk that these suppliers pravide a sub-standard
service

The impact of the COVIN-19 pandermic and the
operalionat response from the manages and service
providers has been closely monilored

Third parly service providers produce penadic reports lo
the Board ¢n their contral environments and business
continuation pravisions o a regular basis,
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The Management Engagement Committee considers the
performance of each ul the service providers on & reqular
basis and considers thewr cngong appointment and tenmns
and conditions.

The Custodian and Depositary are responsible for the
safeguarding of assels. Iin the event of 3 loss of assets
the Deposilory must return assels ol an identical type
or corresponding amounl unless able (o demenstrate
that the loss was the resull of an event beyond their
reasonable control

fonitoring the quality and timeliness of service as
service providers respond to COVID-19 requlations and
quidelines, in particular with widespread home warking
and consideration cf the durability of the arrangements
Many crganisations are now planning Lo incorporate
home working into therr aperational structure as a
permanent fealure

Financial risks

The Company’s investment activilies expose 1L 1o 3
varety of financizl nsks which include counterparty
credil nisk, hgudity nsk and the valuation of inancal
nstruments Any impact of the COVID-19 pandermic has
been considered

Details of these risks together with the policies for
manaqing these nsks are found 1 the Notes (o the
Financial Statements i the full Annuai Reports and
Accounts,

Loss of Investment Trust Status

Ihe Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust, sulject o contnuing
to meel the relevant eligiblity conditions As such the
Company 15 exempt from capital gains tax on the profics
realised from the sale of investments

Any breach of the relevant ehgqibility canditions coutd
lead o the Company losing mvestment trust status and
bemng subject (¢ corpaialion lax on capital gains realised
within the Company’s portfoho

The Investment Manager manitors the mvestment
portfolio, income and proposed dividend levels to ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not bieached. The
results are reparted to the Board at each meeling.

The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company’s tax
advisor through the vear who also reports 1o the Board
on the year-end tax position and reports on (TA 2010
compliance
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties contmyed

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the Londen Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
rules, falure 10 meet the requirements under the
Allernative investment Funds Directive, the provisions
ol the Compantes Act 2006 and olher UK, European
and oversegs legislation affecting UK companies
failure to meet the required accounting standards or
make applopniale disclosures in the Intenim and Annual
Reports

The thoard recerves reqular requlatory updates fiom
the Manager, Company Secretary, legal advisors and
the Auditors The Beard considers these reports and
recommendations and takes action accardingly

The Board receves an annual repart and ypdate from the
Depository

Internat checklists and review pracedures are in place at
service providers

Inappropriate use of gearing

Geanng, either through the use of bank debt or through
the use of dervatives may be utilised from time 1o time
Whilst the yse of geanng is intended 1o enhance the NAY
total return, 1t wili have the opposite effeci when the
return of thre Company's mvestment portfolio 1s negative
or where the cost of debt s hugher than the relurn from
the portioho.

The Boaid recerves reqular reports from the Manager on
the leveis of geanngin the portfoiio These are considered
agamnst the geanng hmits sel i the lnvestment Guidelines
and aiso In the ¢ontext of current market conditons and
sentiment The cost of debls monitored and a balarce
sought belween lerm, cost and Hexibihty

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

loss of partfeho manager or other key staff

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Chairman conducls regular meetings with the Fund
Management team

The fee basis protects 1ne core infrastructure and deplh
and quality resources The fee structure (ncentivises
outperformance and 1s fundamentai in the ability to 1e1aim
key staff



Viability Statement

in accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requites the Company to assess
the prospects of the Company aver the longer term, the
Direclors have gssessed the prospects of the Company
over the coming five years This period 1s used by the
Board during the strategic planning process and the Board
consider this perod of time appropriate for & business of
our nature and size.

This assessment takes account of the Company's current
position and the polices and processes for managing the
principal and emeiging nsks sel out on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s ability to continue 1n operation and meet its
habilities as they fall due over the penod of assessment

in making this statement the Board carnied out a rabust
assessment of the principal and emeiqing nsks facing the
Company, nduding thase thal might threaten its business
madel, future performance, solvency and hquidity.

In reaching their conglustons the Directors have reviewed
five-year forecasts for the Company with sensitivity
analysis to a number of assumptions, imvestee company
drvidend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, Lax
rate and asset value growth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has a long-term investment strategy
under which it invests mainly in readily realisable,
publicly histed secunihies and which restricls the level of
porrowInNgs

Of the current portfalio, 50% could be kquidated within
five trading days and 69% within 10 trading days

On a Group basis, Current assets exceed current
lhabilities at the Balance Sheet Date

The Company Invests In real estate related companies
which hold rea! estate assels, and invests in commeraial
real estate directly. These investrments provide cash
receipts In the form af dividends and rentat income

The Company 15 ahle to lake advantage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust structure and able to hold a
proportion of its portfolio i less hquid direct property
wilh a view to long-term ocutperformandce.
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Al the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 million undrawn on 1ts revolving toan facliies

The structure has also enabled the Conmpany to
secure long-term finanang. EUR 50 mullion loan notes
issued 111 2016 are due to mature at par In 2026 and
GBP15 million foan notes 1ssued on the same date are
due to mature at par in 2031

The impact of CC¥ID-19 on the UK and European
commercal property markets remains a consideration.
This resulted 1n a reduction in dividend 1eceipts from
investee campanies in the year to 31 March 2027 with
some companies withholding or reducing dividends
The majority of companies have returned o paying
dividends, although scme at lower levels than beflore
the pandemic As a result an improvementl in income
15 anticipated in the forthcoming year The longer
term impact on some sectors 1s still difficult Lo assess,
however the company has low exposure to these
sectors

The direct property portfolio has been well positioned
In respect of the COVIDA1% cnsis and rental collectiarn to
date has been robust we have very Imited exposure
10 retall and some smaller accupiers in the hospitality
sector, however, overall the expecled drop in Income
from the direct portiolis in 2020/27 was not malenal
and likewise 15 not expecied Lo be in the forthcoming
year

The expenses of the Company are predictable and
modest in comparnson with the assets Reqular and
robust monitoning of revenue and expenditure forecasts
are undertaken throughout the year The Company
could suffer a reduction in eaimings of 95% and sl be
able to meel its iabihies as they fell due
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Viability Statement contied

Y

+ The Company has no employees and tonsequent
does not have redundancy or other employment
related habtltties or respansibilities

The Company retains biie to1ts assels held by the
Custodian which are subject Lo further safequards
Imposed on the Cepositary

The impact of Brexit and COVID-19 have been
considered in terms of the potential effect on Sterhing
72% of the portioho 1s exposed to currencies olher than
Sterhng

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the Jonger-term viability:

Real Estate will continue ta be an mavestahie sectar of
international stock markets and investors will continue
to wish o have exposure to thal sector

Closed-ended \nvestment Trusts will continue to be
wanted by investors and regulation or tax legistation
will not change to an extent (o make the structure
unattractive 19 comiparison to other invesiment
pIoguLts

The peformance of the Company will centinye ta be
satisfactory Should the performance be iess than the
Board deems ta be satisfactory, it has the appropnate
powers to 1eplace the investment Manager

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate

over many decades, and the Boaid expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Social and Governance ("€5G”) factars

can present both opportunities and threats 1o the
petfarmance we aim ta deliver to our shareholders The
Board I1s therefore committed ta toking a responsible
appreach on ESG matiers This covers the Company's own
responsibilities on governance and reporting and, the most
matenal way in which the Company can have an impact,
through responsible ownership of the nvestinents that are
made on its behall by its panager

As a long-term investorn, governance and sustamability
considerations have always been embedded in our
Managei’s Investment Frocess. £5G risk assessments
and considerations are integrated into the detarled
fundamenlal investment research and analysis that takes
place an any potential nvestment before 1t 1s considered
for inclusion in the paitipho and continues o an onNgoing
basts for all investments held.

This approach is 10 ine with the defimlion of ar Article
6 Fund under the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Regulations Whuist this 15 currently European not UK
requlation it is nonetheless 3 widely utilsed definition.

There are two fundamental considerations o Investment
W properly companies. the assets themselves and then
managerment The Manager seeks toinvest in sustamable
assets which ale managed by quality teams in 2 well
governed corporale stiucture As a result, thete has

been a long-standing and sirong culture of stewardship

i the Manager s investmen! approach. The Manager
believes thal engaging wilh companies 1s best in the

first nstance, rather than simply divesting or excluding
investment opportunities However, there are instances
where governance matlers have driven a degision not to
Invest In a company As one of the largest teams vesting
In Pan-Eurapean real eslate equibies, our Manager meets
with a sigmificant pumber of the management teams of
invesiee and potenhial investee companies each year and
has a robust record ol engagement with an agenda of
reducing nsk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice Whilst likely an elevated number reflecting
the impact of Covid. over the course of the year, our
management team partiapated in 380 ndividual or group
meetings with companies and their management teams

Colpoiate Governance disciosure requirements nave
ncregsed lransparency enonmously 10 fecent years
and enabled infarmed engagement, with socal and

employrment praclices also gamning increased focus and
disclosure Environmental measures are nowe rapdly
coming Lo the lore and with wider disclosure requirements
being placed upon our Investee companies, as a result the
Manager Is able to scrutinise more easily other megsures
such as chimate change and sustainability pohaes and
outcomes
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Company Corporate Gavernance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the importance of the
Company's own Governance and disclasures. The
Company's comphiance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporate Governance 1s detarled in the Corporate
Governance Statemenl on page 44 of this Annual Report.

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there 15 the
requirernent fo detail information aboul employes and
hurnan rights, including information about any policies

it has in relation to these matters and effectiveness

of these pohicies As the Trust has ne employees, Lhis
requirement does not apply The Company 15 not within
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because 1t
has not exceeded the turnover threshold and is therefore
not obhiged to make a slavery and human trafficking
staternent. The Directors are satisfied that. lo the best of
their knowledge, the Company's poncipa: suppliers, which
are listed on page 108, comply with the prowvisions of the
UK Maodern Slavery Act 2015,

The Board currently compnses three male Directors and
lwo female Directors The activiies of the Nomimalion
Commuttee 1n relation to the board changes are referred
lo1n the Nomination Commitiee Report on pages 571 and
52 The Board’s diversity poficy 1s outhined wn more detal
In the Corporate Governance Report The Manager has an
equal opportunity policy which s sel cut on ifs website
www. bmo.com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Board has approved a corporate governance voting
policy which, inits oprion, accords with current best
practice whilst maintaiming a prirnary focus on finanaal
returns

The exerase of voting nghls attached to the parifalio
has been delegated to the Manager Where practicable,
ail shareholdings were voted at all company meelings
i the finanoal year in accordance with BMOGAM's
own corporate governance policies This ensures tha:

a strong, consistent approach 1s laken Lo proxy voting
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As £an be seen in the charl above, the fund’s porticlio
weighted carbon intensity was broadly m fine with that of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider

global equity index  This reflects the fact that for property,

this 1s largely measunng the impact of pngoing emrssions
from running a building whereas the wider index includes
operating companies with manufactunng capabilities and
the need to distribute goods worldwide

For the praperty sectur, the focus s currently on the
energy efficiency of bulldings once they are occupied,
but we expecl in time moe altenbion will be paid to
the carhon emitted in getting them buill and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a large proportion of 3
bullding’s emissions aver its lifespan

The message 15 that this s stll an area where it 1s diffrcult
to make fully informed deasions The assessments from
the vanous data providers reach different conclusions

as they do nol all score 1n a consistent way. We expect
this to improve and change but 1t wili be a journey Our
Manager is dedicating a lot of resource to the analysis

of the information avaiiable and also has the benefit

of the knowledge of BMOs award winming Responsible
Investment Tegm As dala coverage improves, our
Manager wiilin turn be able to engage with our Investee
companies on environmental matters and report to our
shareholders in mare depth

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recognises the importance of
sustamabilily in our business ond in the direct property
assets which we invest in. hold and manage an behalf of
ourinvestors  Property impacls upon the environment,
the health and wellbeing of occupiers, and the
communities in which they are situated  Specific 1ssues
relevant Lo physical property investment portfoho include,
for example, responsible and sustamable refurbishiment
practices, efficient use of resources thioughout their
aperation, and design and services Lo support the health
and welibeing of occumers and local communiues.

Enviianmental Audits are conducied on all our buildings
prior to purchase. The Company will take remedial

action or enlorce lenant obhigations to do so wherever
appiopnale In managing Environmental, Soaal and
Governance 1ssues across the direct portfoho - our
Manager engaqges with occupiers, external managers and
suppliers  As a responsible sleward of the Company's
assets, our Manager 1s comimtted to improving
sustamability charatlenstics through mterventions that are
carefully pfanped and execuled
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Our Manager has strong, direct relationships with
occupiers and 1s committed o working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resources to
set and achieve meaningful sustamability largets for the
assels in the portfolio. As part of this, and warking with
the portfolio property managers, a Sustainability Roadmap
Is bemng implemented which largets biodiversity net gain
acioss the portioha by 2025, improving energy, water and
waste efliciency, transitioning o 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions in line with
climate science

By order of the Board

David Watson
Chairman

3 June 2027
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Diveciors
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DAVID WATSON
Chairman

Appaointed:

Apsil 2012

Experience:

David became Chairman following
thie retirement of Hugh Seabarn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board’s
Senior Independent Director when he
simultaneousty handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, a
position he was appointed to on 1
January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group plc,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services Industry.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accurnulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as SID and
Chair in @ number of boards have built
significant experience in sharehalder
and investor engagement.

Other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of

Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Piudential
Assurance Company.
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KATE BOLSOVER
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:

October 2019

Experience:

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and j.P Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Oirector of the mutual
fund business, and fatterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring's mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American investment Trust plc until
2016, Seniot Independent Director of
Montanaro UK Smaller Companies
Trust untit 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow's People until
2017.

From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate’s role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and sharehalder
engagement.

Other Appointments:

Kate is currently Chairman of

Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Senior
Independent Director of Invesco Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

SARAH-JANE CURTIS
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-jane is a Member of the Royal
nstitution of Chartered Surveyors,
Sarah-jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden foi Capital
and Counties PLC. She has aiso
worked for Grasvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolONE.

skills and Contribution ta the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

Other Appointments:

Sarah-Jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
a consultant to Value Retail PLC.
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SIMON MARRISON
Senior Independent Girector

Appuinted:
September 2011

Experience:

Simon joined the Board of the
Company on 28 September 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investrent industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Pricr ta this he spent 19 years
at LaSalle Investment Management
where he was European CEQ for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Europe.
simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker {(now Cushman &
Wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
tasalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Europe.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
relevant skills in investment
management.

Other Appointments:
Senior advisor for European Real £state
at KKR {Kehlberg Kravis Roberts)

All directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Commitiee

e ' ’
TIM GILLBANKS
chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed:
January 2018

Experience:

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years' experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Celumbia Threadneedle Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in

his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.
Other Appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK,

TR PRCPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

g
=
™
Eod
-
>
z.
[
[




/4 L
MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company's
direct psoperty portfolio and latterly focusing on seal estate
equities, managing 2 number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition 1o activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River (apital in Octaber 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
arowth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990} and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995}, He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BS¢ (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

GEORGE GAY

George Gay, Direct Property fund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a chartered Surveyor in 2006, George was
previously at piche Cily investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
taw from City University.
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JO ELLIOTT

Jo Elliott, Finance Manager, has been Finante Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Globai Investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the propesty team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Eurape. Previausly she was Carporate Finance Manager
with London and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investmient/treasury analyst with Heron Carporation
plc. Jo has a 85c {Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988. Jo is a Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

Alban Lhonneur, Deputy Fund Manages, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental Eusopean Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
societe Generale Secyrities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has 3 BSc in Business 2nd Management
trom the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, tondon. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. In 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP.



Report of the Directors

The Direclors piesent the audited finanaal statements of
the Group and the Company and theu Stalegic Repoit
and Repart af Directors for the year ended 31 March

2027 The Group comprises TR Property Investmant Tiusl
plc and its wholly owned subsidianies As perrmitled by
legislation, some matters normally included in the Report
af the Directors have been included in the Strateqic Report
because the Board considers them to be of sirategic
importance. Therefore, the review of the business of the
Connpany, recent evenis and outlook can be found on
pages 4 10 35

STATUS

The Company 1s an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operales as
an investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Campany has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each which are premm
listed on the London Stock Exchange

The Company has recerved confirmation from HM Revenue
& Customs that the Company has been accepled as

an approved Investment trust for accounting penads
commencing on or after 1 Apnl 2012 subject 1o the
Company continuing lo meet the elqibilily condiions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the onqoing
requiremnents for approved companies in Chapter 3

of Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Requlations 2017 (Statulory instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct its affairs so as

o mainlaim mvestment trust status The Company has
also conducted 1ts affarrs, and will continue 1o conduct

ts affairs, 1N such a way as to comply with the Individuat
Savmgs Accounts Requlations The Ordinary shares can he
held 10 indraidual Savings Accounts [15AS)

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

At 31 march 2021 the net assets of the Campany amaun:ed
to £1.326 mitlion (202C. £1,138 millhon), on a per share
basis 41797p (2020 358 11p) per share

Revenue earmings per share for the year amounted to

12 25p {2020, 4 62p) and the Direclors recommend the
paviment of a final dividend of 900p (2020 8 80p) per
share bringing the tolal dividend for the year to 14 20p
(2019 1400p} In amiving at their dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the incame lorecasts for the year 1o
March 2022

Performance details are set out in the Financial Highhghts
on page 2 and the outcome of what the Direclors consider

to be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 25 and 27
The Chairman’s Slatement and the Manager’s Reporl give
full details and analysis of the results for the year,

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

At 31 March 2021 the Company had 317.350,580
(2020 317.350,980) Ordinary shaies n ssue

Al the AGM 1n 2020 the Directnrs were given power to
buy back 47570,911 Ocdinary shares, Since this AGM the
Oirectors have nol bought back any Ordinary shares at
the nominal value of 25p each under this authonty The
outstanding authority 1s therefore 47.570,911 shares.
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This authonity will expire at the 2021 AGM The Company
will seek to renew the power Lo make markel purchases
of Grdinary shares al this year's AGM

Since 1 Apni 2021 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellabion. The Board
nas not set a specific discount at which shares will be
repurchased

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES
Details of the management airangements and fees are
set oul in the Report of the Management kngagement
Commutiee beginamg on page 53 Total fees paid

to the Manager 1n any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of Group
Equity Shareholders” Funds Total {ees payable for the
year to 31 March 2021 amount to 1.2% (2020 0.8%) of
Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds included in this were
performance fees earned In the year ended 31 March 2027
of £9,653.000 (2020. £2,683,000)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND RS

The Group and Company financat stalements for the yeal
ended 31 March 2021 have been grepared on a going
concern basis In accordance with International finanaal
Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the internalional Accounting
Standards Baard (1ASB). together with interpretalions

of the International Accounting Standards and Standing
interpretations Committee approved by the Internatioral
Accounting Standards Commuittee (1ASC) that remain in
effect, to the ex'ent that they have been adapted by Lhe
Furopean Unipn and as regards the Group and Company
financial statements, as apphed 0 accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

The accounting polinies are set out in note 110 the
Financial Statements or pages 73 1o 77
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Raport of the Directos

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's Financial nstruments comprse (s
nvesiment poitfolio, cash balances, borrowings and
debtors and creditors thal arise directly from 1ts operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlerment, profil

or loss balanges on denvative instruments and accrued
income and expenses The hinanaial nsk managerment
ohyectives and polices ansing from its financial
nstruments and exposure of the Company (o 115k are
disclosed i note 17 Lo the inancial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors’ assessment of the longes-term viability of
Ihe Company is set out on pages 33 and 34

I assessing Gotag Concern, the Board has made 3 delailed
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group to
meet its liahiliiies as they fall due, including stress and
hquidrty tests which considered the etfects of substantial
falts in investment valuations, substantial reductions

i revenue received and reductions wn market fquidity
inciuding the effects and potential effects of the continued
econamic Impact cassed by the Coronavirus pandemic The
Board 15 sabislied with the operational resifience of service
providess despite COVID-19 and continues to monuar ther
performance throughout the pandemie

in hight of testing carned out, the overall levels of the
investmen: tquidity neld by the Company and the
sigrficdnt net asset partfolo position, and despile the
small net current hatnlity posiion of the Parent Company
and Gloup, the Brectors are satished that the Company
and ihe Group have adequate inancial resources to
cantirue 0 operation for at least the next 12 months
followang the signing of the financial statements and
therefore 1115 appropnaie 10 adoplt the going concern basis
of accourting

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall resporsibility for the Group’s
systerms of 1nternar contrals and for ieviewing ther
effectiveness The Portfoiln Marager is respoisihle 1or the
day to day investment maragement deqsions on behail
of the Group. Accodnung and company secreanal serices
have hoth peer outsouced

The interral contrals 3im (0 ensdre al the assels ai tne
araus are safequarded, Droper accourling "200i0s ag
maintaned, and the fmancal information used withim

the business ang for pubhcaton s rehabie Lonira! of the
sy identified, covering finandal, oneraunna, tomaliance
and risk manacement, s embedded in the cortrals of

the Giaup by a senes of regular nvestment parformance
and atinbution statemenis, hinancal and nsk anayses,
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AlF and Portfolio Manager reports and quarterly contiol
reports Key r1sks have been idenlifted and conltrats put in
place to rmitigate therm, including those nat directly the
responsibility of the Alf M or Portfolio Manager The key
nsks are explained m more detail n the Strategic Report
on pages 28 o 32

The effectiveness of each third party prowider’s internal
controls 1s assessed on a conbinwing basis by the Comphance
and Risk dgepartments of the AlFM and Portfolio Manager,
the Adrministiator and the Company Secretary Each
mainiams its own system of internal controls, and the Board
and Audit Commultee recerve regular reports frem them.
The contiol systermns are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absohite, assarance aganst malenal misstalement or
loss and to manage, rather than ehminate, nsk of failure o
achieve ahjectives.

As the Company has no employees and Ws operational
functions are underiaken by third parties, the Audit
Commitlee does not cansider it necessary tor the Company
to estabhish its own inlernal audit function. instead, the
Audit Commitlee relies on internal control reports receved
fram s puncipal service prowiders ta satisly itself as to the
controls in place

The Board has established a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any major nisks faced by the
Group The Board undertakes an annual review of the
Group’s system of internal controls in hine with the Turnbul!
guidance Business nisks have also been analysed by

the Board and recorded 0 a nsk map that 1s reviewed
reqularly Each quarter the Board recewes a formal
report from each of the Aifta, Portfolio Manager, the
adrministrator and the Carmpany Secretary detaihng the
steps taken 1o monitor the areas of nsk, including those
that are nat duectiy their iesponsimbily, and which repost
the details of any known internal wantrol failures

The Board aiso considers the flow of information arc tne
Imteracion between the third party service nroviders and
the contrals it plate o ensure accuracy and compieteness
ol the recording of a3521s and ncome The Board recaives
arenort from the Portfolio Marager selling oul ne key
CONTrals 101 operalon

re Baard also has direct aocess 10 Compdny secretanal
acvice and services provided by tink Campar, Malles
which, through s nominated represeridaive, (s
esponsible for ensunng that the Board and Commiites
procedures are followed and thal applicanle “equlaions
are corrniied vatr

These conliors Day e beer in clace inroughoul the penad
under review ard ap in the date of sigring the accour:s



Key nsks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Comimitlee to ensure robust ternal controls and
monitoning procedures are in place in respect of these
rsks on an ongoing basis.

ANMUAL GENERAL MEETING {THE AGM )

The AGM wiil be held on 27 July 2021 at 2 30pm at the Royal
Autornobile Club, 88/91 Fatl Mall. London SW1Y 5HS The Notice
of AGM 15 set out on pages 100 and 101 the full text of the
resnfulions and an explanatiun of each 1s contamed 1n the
Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 107.

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were no contracts subsisting duning or at the end

of the year in which a director of the Company s of was
malenaily interested and which (s or was significant in
relation to the Company’s business. No Director has a
contiact of service with the Company. Further details
regarding the appaintment letters can be found on page 52.

DONATIONS

The Company made ao pehitical or chantable donations
dunng the year {2020, £nil)

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE
The Company cenfirms that there are no items which

require drsclosure under Listing Rule 9.8 4R in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021

VOTING INTERESTS

Rughrs and Dhitgations Saching ry Shacss

Subsect to applicable statutes and other shareholders’ nghts,
shares may be 1ssued with such nghts and restnclions as
the Comnpany may by ordnary resolution deade, or {if there
15 no such resolution or sa far as il does not make specific
provisior) as the Board may deaide Subject to the Articles,
the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders’ 11ghts,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Boaid

WLty

Al a general meeting of the Company, when vonag 15
undertaken by way of 3 poll, each share affords its owner
one vote

Restocbons ai Vaing

No member shall be entitied Lo vate 1f he has been
served with a restriction notice (as defined 0 the Articles)
alter falure 1o provide the Company with information
conceining interests 10 those shares required to be
provided under the Companmies Acl 2006

Gopdiines for votng Bighes

voles are exeraisable at the general meeling of the Company
in respect of which the busimess being voted upor 1s being

heard Votes may be exercised In person, Dy proxy, or in
relation to corparate members, by corporate representatives.

ihe Articles provide a deadline for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours (or such shorter time
as the Board may determine) before the meeting (not
excluding non-warking days)

ranster af shaes

Any shares o1 the Cormnpany may be held in uncertificated
lorm and, subject o the Articles, litle to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject
lo the Articles. any member may tansfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument ol transfer N any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may approve.

Significant votng Rights

Al 37 March 2021, no shareholders held over 3% ol voting
nghts on a discretionary basis However, at 31 March 2021
the Tollowing shareholders held over 3% of 1he voting
nghts on a non-discretionary basis:

Shareholder :
Brewin Dolphin Ltd 1%
Retail Investors - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 74%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 5.1%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quilter Cheviat Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles St@nleyprqup plc o 3.0%

" see above for further informator on the voting rghts of Ordirary sheves

Since 31 March 2027 to the date of this report, the
Company has not been informed of any notifiable changes
with respect to (he Ordinary shares

Aviicies of Assooanon

The Company's Artictes of Assoualion may crly be
amended by a special resolulion at a General Meeting of
Ihe shareholders

Amendments o the Articles of Assoaation will be
proposed at the 20271 AGM and further delails are set out
on page 166 o 107

Coponne Goudranos

Full detalls are given in the Corporate Governance Reporl
on pages 44 to 50 The Corporate Governance Reporl forms
part af this Diectors” Report,
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The Board of Directors 1s accountable to shaiehaolders for
the governance of the Company's affas

This statement describes how the prinaples of the 2018
adition of UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code™
issued by the Finanaal Reparting Counct! {the "FRC"} in
2018 have been applied to the affairs of the Company The
Code can be viewed at www {rC org uk

Application uf the AIC Code s Pnnanies
In applying the pninciple of the Code. the Directors
have glso taken accaunt of the 2019 Code of {arporate

Governance published by the AIC {the "AIC Code™), of which

the Company 15 a member. The AIC Code establishes the
framewark of best practice speaficaily for the Boards of
investment trust compasies Furthermore, the AlC Code
has {uil endarsement of the FRC, which means that AlC
members whao report agams! the AIC Cade, on the whole,
meet their abligations under the Code and the reldted
disclosure requirements conlained 10 the Listing Rules The
AlC Code can e viewed at wivw theatd Co Uk

The Directors believe that dunng the peniod under review
they have complied will the man snnaiples and relevant
pravisions of the Code, insofar as they apoly 1o the
Company’s husiness, and with the pravisions of the AIC Code

MOTE AT RIS U TN S AT LA TSN
Ihe Diectors nate that the Company did not comply with
the {oflowing prowsions of the Code i the year ended

31 March 2027

Provision 9 Due Lo the Dature and structure of th
Company the Board of non-executive direcions does not
feel1t1s appropnate 10 appoint a cmef execylive

Provision 24 The Board beiteves that all bireclars,
nciyding the Chaiman, should sit on all of the Boards
Committees

Provision 25 As tne Company has na employees and 15
opeigional functions are underiaken vy third parties, the
AJCH Comimittee does not consider It apmopniate for the
Company 1o estabhan 1ts own nternal audt fynction The
Compdny's service providers pravide assgiance of (her
effective Iniema!l ,m(esscs 1nd CONE0iS

Provisign 32 The Boawd does 0ol nave g sepaiaie
Rermyneration Committee The hmtmm af a
Remmunel aion (omimiilee 2o tameda ol by the
sanagament Engagement {ommiiies
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Composition gnd independence of the Goard

The Board currently consists of five directors, all of whom
are non-executive The Board’s mdependence, including
that of the Chairman. has been considered and all of the
Directors are deemed 1o be independent in character and
have no relationsiups o aircumstances which are likely to
affect thewr judgement

The Goard subscribes to the view expiessed in the AIC
Lode thal Yong-sening Directors should not be prevented
from forinmg part of an independent majority. it does not
consider that the length of a Director’s tenure, 10 1solation,
reduces tus or her abrhity (¢ act independently The
Board’s policy on tenure 1s that cantinuity and expenence
add significantly to the strength of the Board although
the Board believes in the ments of an ongoing and
progressive refreshment of its composiion

D“llifsi‘“'

The Board recognises the henefit of diversity and as of \he
date of this repart the Board consists af three men and
Lwo women

Diversity 15 taken into account as part of the recroidment,
appointment angd succession planning prowess and

the Board is also awaie of the developing corporate
governance with regard to ethniaty of mdividual

Directors The Board 15 commitled to apponting the most
approgriate candidate, regardless of gender or ather forms
of diversity and therefore no targets have been set against
which to report

Fovsars of the Dire _fars

Subject to the Company's Articles of Association, the
Companies Act 2006 and any directions gven by spedidr
resolution, the busiress of the Company 1s managed

by the Board who may exerase all the powers of the
Campany, whether i2lating 1o the management of the
hdsiness of the Company or not in parbcular the Board
may exeroise aff the powers of the Company {0 DO
Torey ard (o mjlgage of tharge any ol its undertalangs,
ploperty, assets and uncalled capital and to issue
debentures and other securues and to gre secanty for
ary debt, handity or anliganon of the Comopany ta any ini

nartsy
Darly

Triere 372 NG contracls or aa
Joich affect, aner or termiral

ui he Company

CUEMENts CIn i Balies
unon a (hange of contral




DMRECIORS and believe hat they remain independent in character

The Chairman 1s M Watson and the Serior Independent and Judgement

Director 1 Mr Marrson. Mr watson succeeded Mr Seaborn
as Chairman when he retired {rom the Board of Director
foilowing the AGM on 28 July 2020 Mr Marnison succeeded

Directors are not compensdled by Lhe Company lor 10ss of
office 1n an event ol a takeover d.

M1 Walson as the Senior Independent Directar on this BOARD COMMITTEES

date. The Directors’ biograptues, on pages 38 and 3%, The Board has estabhished an Audit Committee, 3 -

demeonstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and Nomination Commitlee and a Management Engagement g

prolessional expenence relevant to their positions as Committee, which also carnes out the functions of =

Directors of the Company. a Remuneration Commuttee All the Directors of the z
L]

Company are non-executive and serve on each Commiltee
of the Board 1t has been the Company’s pelicy to

nctude all Directors on all Commltees This encourages
unity, clear communscation and prevenls duplicaticn of

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curtis, Mr Gillbanks, Mr farnson, discussion between the Board and the Commutlees,

Mr Watson will all retire al the forthcoming AGM 1
accordance with the Code and, being ehgible, will offer
themselves for re-election All Directors are regarded as
being free of any conflicts of inlerest and na 1s5ues in
respect of Independence anse The Board has concluded
that all Directors continue to make valuable cantnibutions

Directors’ relvement by rofation and re-election 1s subject
to the Articles of Association. In accordance with the Code,
all directors will be subject to annual re-election

The rales and responsibilities of each Committee are set
out on the individual Committee reports which foflow Each
Comnrmitlee has wniten terms of reference which clearly
define ils responsibilities and duties These can be found
on the Company’s website, are avallable on request and
will also be available for inspection at the AGM

BOARD MEIETINGS
The number of meetings of the Board and Commuttees held dunng the year under review, and the attendance of
medvidual Directors, are shown below.

David Watson N 6

Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Simon Marnsen 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Kate Bolsover 6 6 ? 2 1 1 1 1
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1

In addition to formal Board and Commuttee meetings, the Directars also attend a numbes of informal meetings to
represent the interests of the Company, and to discuss aperationat markels and succession planning

THE 80AREG

The Soard s respansible for Lne effective stewardship of the Company’s affars Caitain strategic 1ssues are monitored

by the Board at meetings against a lramewark which has been agreed with the fanager Addiional meetings may

be arranged as required The Board has a formal schedute of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
categonsed under vanous headings, including strategy, management, structure, capiial linanaial reporting. internal
contrals, geanng, asset allocation, share price discount, cantracts, investment policy, finance, sk, vestment restnctions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments

I ordes 1o enable them to discharge therr responsibilities, all Diectors have fulf and timely access to relevant mformation
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company’s investment performance and considers financiai analyses and othel
reports of an opeisticral nature The Board monitors comphance with the Company's abjectives and 1s responsibie for
setling asset allocation and investment and geanng hmils within which the Poilfolic Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the investenent portfolio, which 1s contractually delegaled to the Portfoho Manager
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{orpaoate Sovennine: Repuit

The Board has responsibility for the approval of
Inyestments in unquoted 1nvesiments and any
investments in funds managed or adwised by lne Portioho
Manager. it has also adapted g pracedure far Directors,

in the furtherance of thew duties, 1o take independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In line with the Companies Acl 2006, the Board has the
power 1o authonse any potenbal conflicts of nterest that may
anse and impase such bmits of conditons as it thinks it A
register of potential confhicts is mantainad and is reviewed at
every Board meeling to ensure all details aie kept up-to-date
Appropniale authonsation will be sought pnor 1o the
appaintment of any new Director of if any new conflicts anse

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder relalions are given high prionity by the Boaid,
the AlFM and the Portfoha fanager. The pnme medium
by which Lthe Company communicales with shareholders
is through the Intenm and Annual Reports which aim to
provide shaieholders with a clear understanding of the
Company's achivilies and therr resiils This informabion 1s
supplemented by the dailty calculation of the Net Asser
value of the Campany's Grdinary shares wiuch is published
on the London Stock Exchange

This information 15 also available on the Company s
websile, www troroperty com together with a monthly
factsheet and Managel commentary

It 15 the intention of the Board thal the Annual Report ard
Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issued 1o shareholders
S0 as 1o provide at least twenty working days nohice of
the AGR Shareholders vashing to loage questons n
advance of the AGA, or to contact the Board al any other
time, are inviied 10 do 50 by wrling to the Company
Setrefaty at Whe registered address qiven on page 108

General nreseniations are given o both sharebolders and
anaiysts folowing the publicauon of the annual resd's
AL meelings hetwesn ine Manage' and sharenoiders are
renofied 10 158 Board

SECTION 172 TOPAPANIES ACT 204

Secuor 177 of the Compantes Act 20U6 izquires direcTars
10 act 17 guotd faih ang 10 3 way hat 1s the most ixely
0 promaote the success of the Comoany 'r 2ccerdarce
Wwih the recuirements of tne Comnames {(Miscellanepys
Repoiimg) Requialions 2078, Selaw, the lompeny
2xplans haw tne Direclons have discharged ther guly
under secthion 172 during the ieporting penod Faifiliing
this duty naturaly; supnoits the Compary 10 acieving tts

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

investment Objective and helps to ensure that alt decisions
are made in a responsible and sustainable way

Upon appointiment, Diectors’ are provided with a detalled
induction outhring their duties, legaily and requlatory, as

a Director of 2 UX pubhc hrmited company and continue o
reqularty recerve relevant technical updales and trainmng.
under thew tetter of appaintment, the Directors aiso have
access ta the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
opportumity to seek independent professional advice in he
furtherance of thewr duhes as a director, at the Company's
expense The Company has a schedule of Malters Reserved
for the Board which dearly describes the Board’s duties
and responsibiiiies in addition, there are also the Terms

of References of the Board's Commiliees wiuch outhne

the responsibihties that are dewegated from the Board

The Terms of References are reviewed at least annually (o
cansider any requtatary and best practice developments

DEQISION MAKING

The importance of stakeholder constderations, i
sarticulan i the context of deasion-making. 15 reguiarly
brought Lo the Board's attenuan by the Company
secretary and taken into account at every Board
meeling, and a paper reminding Oireciors of that 1s
tabled al the start of every Board meeting 1he Board
considers the impact thiat any matenal decision wiil
have on all relevant stakeholders ta ensure that 1t s
making a deasion ihat promotes the long-term success
of the Company, wheiher this be ol example, In
relation to dividends. aew investment opporlynthes or
the Company's forward strategy, In addition, the Board,
aong with the tanager. hold a meetng focused on
sirategy on an annual basis to fook ahead i the market
and antiaipate poternal scenancs and how this may
imnpact ihe Company's slakeholders

STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recogmses the needs and imporiance of

the Comnpany's stakenolders and ersures that they are
consideied during al' is discussions and 2s part of 1ts
decisioni-making Since the Cormpary, 15 an invesiment
trust hat is externaly manageo, the Company does
rot have any empioyess (the Dieciors hawe g cslier o
Aspowntment and are rot empioyees of the Comoanyj,
a7 does it have g direct impact on the communtly

or enviranment i 1he conventionas seise The 3oard
FECOGTISES 1S ey slakenniders and exiairs below
wiy these stakehoiders ae carsidered 1moor
the Company and the aclions aken ‘o &
Interasts are taken into accouni

b
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Shareholders

Shareholder suppart is
essential to the existence of

" the Company and delivery
of long term strategy of the
business.

The Manager

Holding the Company’s
shares offers investors a
liquid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
exposure to the Company’s
diversified portfatio. The
Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for

the Company to successfully
deliver its investment strategy
and meet its objective.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, including institutional and retail investors. The
Board is cornmitted to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with
Sharehalders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

- Apnual General Mecting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Shareholders at its AGM. Sharehalders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.

Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to shareholders. These publications provide information on the Company and
its portfolic of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financial position,
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the Stock Exchange and
manthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

sharehoider meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

Working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together to mzintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with reqular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns

with the Board, they are welcome to da so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Directar is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

|
e _ i R
Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is erucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
line with the Company’s investment objective. Important components in the collaboration
with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on ali key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.
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Coiporate Governanie Report -

 Stakeholder Geoup and why loaldengagement

they are important

External Service Providets, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Reqistrar and the
Depository and the Bmker !

- - —

A range of advisers enables  The Board maintains regula; contact with its key external prowders and receives regular
the Company to function as reporting from them through the Board and committee meelings, as well as putside of
an investment trust and a the regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
canstituent of the FISE 250 to  taken into account, The Management Engagernent Lommittee formally assesses their
ensure it meets its relevant performance, tees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the
obligations. key service praviders cantinue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately

remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

Lenders _f
Avaliabmty of fundmg and The Board needs to demons(rate to lendess that it is a well managed busmess capable of
liquidity are crucial ta the consistently delivering long-term returns.

Company’s ability to take

advantage of investment

opportunines as they arise. -

, Regulators ;
The Company can only The Board regulaﬂy COnSIdE[S s how it meets various regu!atory and statut()fy obl|gatmns and
operate with the appioval follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it
ot its regulatars who have makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

a legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders

fnvestee Compames

Portfolio companies are The Manager communicates regulaqu with portfuho companles and is an engaged
ultimately sharebolders shareholder (on behalf of the Company).

assets and the Board
recognises the importance
of good stewasdship and

The Board monitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives reqular feedback
on meetings with the management of portfolio companies and voting at their general

= e meetings.
communication with investee
tompagies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strategy.
The Board 15 always mindful i the requirement ta act in relationshins Lo ensure that it iias access 1o a diverse range
1ne Dest interesis of shareholaers as g whole and 1o have of terrms aag s 7ot rehant o~ any one provider The faulties
regaid 1o other applicable section 172 factors which form provide friexibiity and compleirent the longer-teim private
gart of Bpard's devsion-making procass Toe followang piacement fixed term dedl (ha 15 1n pace
L\e, decisions taken py tre Board during ire year ended

\ N eyenue reserves o suooort the dradands oo
1 24arch 2927 arz exampies of 1h1s NG "eVEnUe 1R5LMVes 10 Suboit e Crgencs nad
o snarerolders

GEARING
Subsec: ta sharehoider approval of the proposed fineal

drvigend, tne Company paid a total dmderd 0! 14 200 for the
Aranaal year, renresemiing ar ncrease 6 14055 (ampded
ta the previous yea The financad veai was 4 nenod of
uncenanty, when Many moasies, sarhicuiart; viinm the
LK A Europe, either cot, postnoned or cancehed neir

During t~e firancia: v ear, the (ompany corinued 1o utinse
Its exIslirg revaving an~ual loar facihines ang foliowing
areviey, of ne evalable aplions each weie renewes on
broadly similar ierms as the frenewans felt due thioughour e

vear Tne Board 1s keer o mantar 2 wide iange 6f hanking
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dwidends The Board recogmises the importance of dividends
to sharehalders and after careful review of the Company s
revenue forecasts and reserves together with the inveslment
autlook with the fanager, the Board decided that,
notwithstanding the exceptiond! markel conditions, it would
draw on the revenue reserve (o support the dividend,

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

During the year the Board continued to focus on Lthe
performance of the Manager in achieving the Company’s
investment objective within an appropniate nsk framewaork
Following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic in March
2020, the [ocus widened to consider the potential impact of
COVID-19 on the Company (including portfolic activity, nsks and
opportunities, geanng, revenue forecasts and the operations
of ather third party providers) to ensure thal the portiolio had
sufficient resilience together with the Company’s operational
structure o meet the unprecedented arcumstances

DIRECTORATE

The Boaid's palicy on tenure was reviewed dunng the

year The stability of the Board dunng one of the most
challenging penads was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made {o the Board in Gctober
2019 and January 2020. Therefore, no changes were made
fo the Board composition during the financial year However,
the Board 15 mindful of the importance of having & suitable
succession plan espeaally as David Walson has served on
the Beard since 2012 and Simon Marmsen since 2071

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Board 1s in agreement that having a good corporate
culture, parucularly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid gelivery
of its long term strategy. The Board promotes a culture
of openness. in line with this purpose through ongoing
engagement with ils service providers and the Manager

The Cirectors agree that establishing and maintaining

a healthy corparate culture wathin the Board and in its
interaction with the Manager, Shareholders and other
stakeholders wall suppart the delivery of Its purpose, values
and strategy The Beard seeks to promole a culture of
openness, debate and integnty through ongoing dialogue
and engagement with its service providers. principally the
Manager The Board strives to ensure that its culture s 10
line with the Company's purpose, values and strategy

The Company has a number of policies and procedures
In place to assist with maintaining a culture of goad

governance including those relating to diversity,

Directors’ conthicts of interest and Directors’ dealings n

the Company’s shaies The Board assesses and maniloss
compliance with these policies as well as the general
culture of the Board 1egularty through Board meetings and
in particular duning the annual evaluation process which 1s
undertaken by each Duector (for more informalion see the
Board evatuation section on page 51).

The Board seeks to appomnt the best possible service
providers and evaluates therr service on a reqular basis
as descnbed on page 53 1he Board cansiders the culture
ol the Manager and other service praviders, including
then pohicies, praclices and behaviour, through regular
reporuing fram these stakehalders and (n parocular dunng
the annual review of the performance and continuing
appointment of all service providers

EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The: Board recognises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detail information about human nights,
employees and communily issues, including information
about any policies it has in relation 10 these matters and
the effectiveness of these policies These requirements,
practically, are not appheable o the Company as it has no
employees, all the Directors are non-executive and it has
outsourced all operational functions to third-party service
providers Therefore, the Companry has not reported further
in1espect of these pravisions.

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY

Direclors” and Officers” hability insurance cover 15 10
place in respect of the Directors The Company's Artrcles
of Assouation provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemnily for Direclors in respect of costs
which they may incur relating to the defence of anpy
proceedings hrought against them ansing cut of their
posilions as Directors, in which they are acquitted or
judgement 1s given in thenr favou: by ke court.

1o the extent permitted by law and by the Company’s
Arlicles of Association, the Company has entered into
deeds of indemnity for the beneht of each Director of
the Company In respect of habihnes which may allach to
them in their capacity as Directors of the Company These
provisions, which are qualfying third party indemnity
provisions as defined by section 234 ol the Companies
Act 2006, were Introduced 1n January 2007 and currently
remain i force
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Corparate Governance Report continued

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE DF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors’ repart are listed on pages 38
and 39 Having made enguinies of fellow directors and of
Lhe Company’s audiars, each of these Directors confirms
that.

to the best of each Direclor's knowledge and behef,
there 15 no mlormation (that s, nformation needed by
the Company's auditors in connechion with prepaning
their report) of which the Company’s auditars aie
ulaware; and

each Directar has taken all the steps a Diecloc might
reasonably he expected to have taken to be aware of
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s audilors are aware of that information.

This information 15 given and should be nterpreted in
accordance with the provistons of Seclion 418 of the
Companies Acl 2006

By oider of the Board

David Watson
Charrman

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Commuttees and make
recammendations 10 1elation to structure, size and
composition, the balance ol knowledge, experience
and skil ranges,

Consider succession planning and tenuie policy and
oversee the development of a diverse pipeline,

Consider the re-election of Directors, and
Review {he oulcome of the board evaluation process.

The Nominatien Committee meets at least on an annual
basis, and mare {requently as and when required and last
met i March 2021.

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Cammittee discussed succassion planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity policies

The Commiztee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Board and will continue Lo review succession
pianning and further recruitment and take inlo account the
recommendations of external Board evaluations

BOARD EVALUATION

Foilowing the engagement of lim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to faclitate an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board, its committees and
the performance of each directar lor the year ended

31 March 2020. The annual evalualion for the year ended
31 March 2021 was carmed out by the Company. This
tcok the form of questionnaires followed by discussions
to1denufy the effectiveness of the Boards aclivities,
ncluding 1ts Commuttees,

The Chairman also reviewed with each Director therr
individual performance, contnbution and commitrment
The appraisal of the Chairman followed the same forinat
and was led by Simon Marnison The results of the
evaluation process were presented to and considered by
the Board There were no significant actions arising from
the evalualion process and 1L was agreed that the current
composition of the Board and 1ts Committees reflected a
suitable mux of skills and expenence, and that the Board
as a whole, the Individual Directors and (s Commitlees
were functioning effectively,

After careful consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Goverming Board Members’ Tenuie and Reappointment, all
of the directars, will be oflening themselves far fe-election
al the forthcarming AGM it 15 considered that each of them
meril re-election by sharsholders Further information on

each directors” skills and therr contribution to the Board are
outhned in the directors’ biographies on pages 38 and 39

in accordanre wath the provisions of the Cude, il 15 the
intention of the Board to engage an external facilitator 1o
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the nexl external evaluation will be carred out for
the year ended 31 March 2023. The Board will continue to
complete an intemnal board evaluation annually within the
intervening years

BOARD’S POLICY ON TENURE

In bline wath the update of the Code in 2018, the AIC has
updated its Code of Corporale Governance 1n 2019 The AIC
recommended, under Provision 24, a dilferent approach to
tenure 1n relation to invesimen! companies, considenng
how they differ ta chans of operating companies, where
the Board does not have a chief executive The Board took
into consideration the approach and introduced the ‘Policy
Governimg Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment’
This policy outlines the Company’s appraach to tenure and
reappointment of non-executive directors. 1t ighhghts the
Board's belief that the value bicught through caontinuity
and expenence of Directors with longer peneds of seivice
15 not only desirable, bul essential In an investment
company. The Board did nel feel that 1t would be
apprapriate to set a spealfic tenure imit for individual
Direclors or the Chairman of the Board or ils committees
Instead, the Board will seek Lo recrul a new Directar on
average every three years s gs reqularly to bring the
challenge of fresh thinking irlo the Board's discussions,
ensunng that on each occasion that the Board enters inlo
new Investment commitments, at least hali the Board
mefnbers have direct persenal experience of negoliating
pievious commitments with the Manager

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

When a new Director is appointed, he/she s offered
traiming to suit therr needs Directors are also provided
with key information on the Company’s activities on

a reqular basis, mcluding regulatory and slalutory
requirements and internal controls Changes affecting
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
anse Direclors ensure that they are updated on requlatory,
slatutory and industry matiers.
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the perjod under review was a hxed Jee of
£3,745,600 plus an ad vatorem fee of 0 204% pa based on
the net assel value (determuned in accordance with the
AIC method of valustion) on the last day of March, june,
September and Decermber, payable quarlerty in advance.

The fee arrangements have been reviewed hy the Board
for the year 1o 31 Maich 2022 and the fixed efement ot the
fee and the ad valorem rate will remain unchanged,

The Boaid conbinues to consider that the fee stiucture
aligns the interests of the sharehalder and the Manager as
well as being hughly competitive

The fee arrangements will continue to be reviewed on ¢
annual hasis

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addiion to the management fees, the Board has agreed
lo pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of
an accounting genod ( cactain performance abjectives are
acheved

A performance fee 15 payable if the total return of adjusted
net assels (after deduction of all Base Management
Fees and other expenses), as delined in the 1MA, at

31 March each year outperfarms the wtal return of the
Cormnpany's benchmark plus 19% (the “hurdle rate™), this
outperformance {expiessed as a pertentage) s known
as lhe "percentage outperformance” Any fee payabie
will e the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets
31 31 March each vear mulhiphed by the peicentage
outperformance, then multiphied by 15% The maximum
performance tee payable for a penod s capped at 15%
ol the adjusied net assets. However, ! the adsted

net assets at the end ol any penad are less than a! the
pegming of the penod. the maximJdm performance fee
payable wi be imited to 19 of the adjusied nel assels

I the tota return of shareholders' furds for any
nefformance penad is 1ess than the benchrrark for fhe
elevant performance penod, such undeiperformarce
{expressed as a perceniage) wih be cained jorward to
future werforance penods

W amy fee exceads the cap, such excess gerfarmante
lexpressed as a percentage) will be cared torwand and
appies 1o o'fsel any pecentage underperformance

m futare serformance pr’rlPd' ' the tihet the
penchinark 1s exceeded but the hurdle s rot, that
outpetformance of ine be”(ﬂ'“ark can be used ta ofiset
oast o hutare onderperformance These amounts £an

oy
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be used for offset purposes only and therefore canaot
have the effect of creating a fee in a year where a fee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee

n that year, AU3Y March 2027 there 15 a carfy forward of
outperformance of 18% (2020 1.8%}

Mo tee will be payable unless the adjusted net assels
outperform the hurdle 1ate, alter taking inte account

any accumulated peicentage underperiormance

brought forward at the beginning of the finanuiai year
Performance fees earmned in the year ended 31 March
2027 were £9,659.000 (2020 £2 683,000} Tolal fees

paid to the Manager in any ane yedr (Managemernt and
Performance Feesy may not exceed 4 99% of Group Equity
shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the year to 31
rarch 2021 amount to 1 2% {2020- §.8%) of Group Lquity
Shareholders funds

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Panbas was appointed as Depositary an 14 july 2014
n accordance with the AIFMD The Gepositary's
responsibifities include cash manitonng, segregastion and
safe keeping of the Compariy's finarcial instruments, and
manitonng the Company’s comphance with INvestment
and leverage requirements The Deposttary receives

Tor i{s services a fee of 20 basis poinis per annum on
the first £150 mulhon of tne Company’s assets, 14 basis
pOmts per annum gn assets above £150 mithen and
belovs £500 miltion and 0 75 basis points on assels
£560 milhon

s above

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS' FEES

Custody and Aaministration Services afe provided by

BNP Panbas and Company Secielanal Services by Lmk
Company Matters The fees for these services are chaiged
directiy tg the Company and are comiaimed within

other admimistrative expenses disclosed 1n notes 10 the
ACCOUNES

David Watson



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared this reparl and Lthe Cirectors’
Remuneration Policy, 1n accordance with the requirements
of Schedule 8 of the targe and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulabons 2013 An
ordinary resolution far the approval of this report will be
pul to the members at the farthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Ihe faw fequies the Company's Audilors, KPMG LLP,

to audit certain of the disclesures piovided Where
disclosures have been audiled, they are indicated as such.
The Auditor’s opinton 15 included in the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC metin March 20271 and considered the results
and feedback from the board evaluation alongside
other factors The MEC also considered the frequency of
remunaration increases far the Trust, feedback from the
markel and investors on the fevel of frequency and the
current impact of the outbreak of coronavirus {COVID-19)

Following the MEC meeling in March 2027, 1t was agreed
that the cunent level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remained appropniate. It was also agieed that the
Non-executive Director’s fee would remain at £35,000 per
annum with effect from 1 Apnl 2021 (L was further agreed
that the Directors holding the sole of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Senior Independent Director would continue
to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase in
thesr resporsibilities Moreover, 1t was agreed that the
Chairman’s remuneration waould (emain at £70.000

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's palicy 15 that Lhe {ees payable 1o the
Directors shau'd reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company's affarrs and the respoensibibties borne by the
Directors and should be suflicient to enable candidates of
high caiibre to be recruted The policy 1s for the Charrman
of the Board. the chairman of the Audit Commuiltee and
the Senior Independent Director 1o be paid higher fees

than the other Directors in recegaition of their more
onerous roles This palicy was approved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors” intention is that this
will continue for the year ending 31 March 2023

The Directors ate remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly 1t airears, to the Director personally o1
to a third party specified by Lhal Gireclor, There are no
long-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or
pension arrangements and the fees are not specifically
relaled to the Directors perfimance, either individually or
collectvely.

The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Direclors,
who are appointed with the expectation that they will
serve for a period of three years Directors” appointments
are reviewed formally every three years thereafler by the
Board as a whole None of the Directors have a contract
of service and a Diector may resign by notice in writing
to the Boaid at any Lme, there are no notice perods The
terms of their appointment are detalled in a letter Lo them
when they join the Board As the Directors do not have
service contiacts, the Company does not have & pohcy an
termination payments

There 15 no notice period and no payments for loss of
office were made dunng the penod The Company’s
Articies of Assaoiation currently limit the total aggregate
fees payable to the Boaid to £300,000 per anaum

Shareholders views 1n respect of Directors’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company’s AGM and are Laken
into account 1 formulating the Oirectors remunesation
oolicy. Al the [ast AGM, over 99 6% of shareholders voted
for the resolulion approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Report {0 4% against). At the 2020 AGM, over 59% voled
foi the resolution approving the Directors’ Rermuneration
Policy (0 4% against), shawing significant shareholder
support.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-execubive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors” remuneration policy of the Company are set out
below, with a description and approach to determination

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Fixedfees | Additionalfees ~ Expensesfees =~ (Other = =
The aggregate limit for the Additiona) fees may be paid  The Directors are entitled Board members are not

fFees for the Board as a whale  to any Birector who fulfils the to be paid all reasonable efigible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in role of the Chairman, who expenses propefly incurred benefits, share options,
accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  long-lerm incentive schemed
Association, which is divided  Board or who is appointed with shareholders or other or other non-cash benefits or
between the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise taxable expenses.

they may deem appropriate.  Director. n connection with the

Annual fees are set to These fees will be set dl.scharge of their duties as

reflect the expesience of at a2 competitive level to Directors.

each board member and reflect expetience and timne

time commitment required commitment.
by Board membeis ta carry

out their duties and is

determined with reference to

the appointment of Directors

of simifar investment

ompanies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

For the yeas ended 31 March 2027, Dwectors fees were paid al the annual rates of Charmean £70,000 (2020 £70,000)
and ail other diractars. £35,00¢ (2020 £35000) An additional £5,000 is paid per annum for each of the rales of Audit
Commuttes Chairrnan and Senor Independent Director The actual samounts paid o the Duectors dunng the finarqar yeal
unider review are as shown below

AMOUNT OF EACH DIRECTOR’'S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)
The fees pavable in respect of each of the Directors who seived durny the finanaal year were as follows

m B
£

David Watson® 60,461 40,000
siman Marrison™ 38,410 35,000
Tim Gilibanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bofsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn'® 23,333 70,000
Total 12208 208,872

all faog are at 3 fwed rate and tnere 15 ro vanabie sermuneralion Fees are pro-rated where a change lakes place dunng
a hinanoias year There were no payments to iird parties indudedin the fees referred 1o in the 1abie above There ale o
further fees to distlose as the Company nas ng employees, chief execuiive of exeCuuve directors

aupn rtec =3 Che mer or 28 Ly 2070

4ppo T18C 25 580 ol rlepertent Dector o 28 Ly JL70

reties ey dhanrer or 28 Ly 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration Report coitinued

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2021, the percentage change over each penad

in the share price lotal relurn to shareholders compared

te the share piice total return of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the most appraprate benchmark

for investment performance measurement puiposes An
explanation of the performance of the Company 15 given in
Lhe Chaman's Staterment and Manager’s Repart

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class

4000
3500
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500

Mar-Tt Maril  Marid Mar-d Marl Mar-ie Mar-T? Ma-l MW Mar26 Mardl

Il R Propeny Share Price Total Return  J Benchmark Total Return
Shere Price Tolal Return assuming nvestment of £1,.500 ¢n 31 March 2677 and
remnvestment of all dividerds {exc'uding dealing experses) [Source. Thames
River Capita,)

Benchmark Tota: Retuin assumirg nolionai investirent inlo the irdex ot £7.000 o

37 March 267 {souree Thames Rver Capite)
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (AUDITED)

The interests of the Directars in the shares of the
Company, at the beqinning and at the end of the year, or
dale of appointment 1l {ater, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marrisan 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Sarah-Jane Curtis - -

Since 31 march 2027 1o the date of this reporl, there have
been no subsequent changes to the Directors’ interests in
the shares of the Company

Relative tmportance of Spend on Pay

20n 2020
£'000 £'000 Change
Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
Directars’ fees 232 209 11.0%

Five year change comparison
Qver the fasl ive years, Girectors’ pay has increased as set
oul in the table below

£000 £000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%
Audit Committee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senior Independent
Directar 40,000 35,000 14,3%
35,000 30,000 16.7%

Director

For and on behalf of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman Mr Gillbanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
Review the internal financial and non-finanaial contiols,

Review reports from key third party service providers,

Lonsider and recommend ta the Board lor approval the
contents of the draft Intenim and Anrual Reporls,

Review accounting policies and sigmficant inancial
reporung judgements;

Monitor together with the Manager, the Company's
compliance with financial reporting and requlatosy
[equIrements,

The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the intenm and fnat dividends, and

Considenng the impact of providing nor-audil services
on the external Auditor's Independence and objectity

Representatives of the Manager's intesnal audit and
compliance departments may aitend these commulttee
meetings al the Committee Chairman's request

Representatives of the Company’s Auditor attend the
Comimitlee meeungs at which the draft Intenm and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed, and are grven
the opportumity to speak to the Commitiee members
without the presence of the representatives of the
Manager

The Board recognises the requirement {or the Audit
Commuitlee as a whoele 1o have competence reevant

to the sector and at least one member witn recent and
relevant hinanoial expenience The Chanman and A
Watsor are Chartered Accountants with extensive anc
recent expenence in the Financial Services 'ndustry The
other members of the Commitiee have a combinaticn of
property, firancal, investment and busiress exserence
through seniar posiiions held thiougrou: ther careers

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
Dunrg the year the Commitles me: twce with all

mempers at gach meenng and considered the ol oving

Consiceration of the Risk Map. a7y thanges to 1he
li<eiinood orimpact of nisks and cosequennal
tranges eqaiad o Boatd Monitonng 2rd mitigatior
nroceduses Consideralion of any rey or emesqirg

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

risks and inclusion in the Risk Map 1f appropriate. This
has included consideration of the ongang COVID-19
pandermic and impact across a range of nisk categones,

The Group's Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports theregn,

The 1SAE/AAF and SSAE16 reports of therr equivalent
from BMO and BNP Panbas,

whether the Company should have its own internal
audil function,

The External Auditos’s Planming Memorandum setting
out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key
areas of focus,

The reports from the Auditors concerming their audit
of the Financial Statements of the Company and
Consideration of Significant 1ssues in relation 1o the
Financial Stalements,

The appiopriateness of, and any changes to, the
accounting pehicies of the Company. including the
reasonableness of any judgements requied by such
policies,

The viability Statement and consideration of the
preparation of the finanaal Stalements an a Going
Concern Basis taking acceunt of forward looking income
farecasts, the hquidity of tne investment portfolio ard
debt prohie;

The financial and other disciosures in the Financiai
Statements,

The nforration presenied 10 the Intenm and Annual
Reporls to assess whether, taken as a whole, the
Reporls are fair, baianced and understandable and the
information presented will enable the sharehalders to
assess e Company's pasition, perfarmance, business
maodet and sirateqy,

The zerformance of the 2xierna. aucrtors, to approve
thewr audit fees and consicer the assessment of
irdeserdence,

The revieyw, ane subsequent proposal 1o the Board of
ireartenm and final divderds, and

The reviewal of the Commitiee’s Tarms of Refererce,
gnsuarg they remain aporapnate and compliant wih
the 2018 UK Carporate Goverrance Code



Report of the Audit Committee corteed

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has averall respansibilily for the Group's system
of Internal Controls and for reviewing their effectiveness
Key nsks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure that robust nternal controls
and monitoring procedures in respect of these are 1n place
on an ongoing basis. Further detalls can be found on

page 28 0 37

The Audit Commuties 1ecerved and considered reports on
Internat Controls fram the key service providers. No areas
of concern were fughlighted

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to 1dentify any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required to
existing nisks, and the controls ang mitigation measures
in place i respect of these nsks The impact of COVID-T19,
the response of financial markets, the angoing impact

on economies around the world and operational changes
made by cur service praviders 1n response to government
guidelines were cansidered and the nisk map adjusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and controls in place within the
BrO Group and other significart service providers, the
Board has concurred that there (s no current need for the
Company 1o have a dedicated interral audit function

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES N RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Commiltee has considered this report and finanaal
statements and the Viabiily Statement on pages 33

and 34 The Commiltee considered Lhe Auditor's
assessment of nisk of matenal misstatement and reviewed
the intemal controls in place in respect of e key areas
identified and the process by which the Board monitars
each of the procedures Lo give the Committee comfort

on these risks on an ongoing basis These nsks are also
hignlighted in the Company’s Risk Map.

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Group’s Investments are
priced for the dally NAV Dy BNP Panbas The quoted
assels are puced by the Admenistrator’s Glabal Pnicing
Platform which uses independent externa pnang
sources The control process surrounding this 1s set
out in the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Repoit and testing by the reporting accaunlant for the
penod reported to 31 Becember 2020 did not reveal
any significant exceptions The quarterly controf repor:
io the Board from BNP Panbas covenng the pernod up

{o 31 March 2021 had no signilicant 1ssues to report,
In addition the Manager estimates the NAY using
an afternative priaing source on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditors agreed 100% of the listed investments
of the portloho to externally quoted prices and
independently receved third party confirmations from
investment custodians and found e canying value ot
listed investments to be acceplable

valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physical property
portfohio1s valued every six monrths by professional
independent valuers.

Keeght Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of
Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1 5) Fair Value and VPGA
1 valuations for inclusion in binancial Staternents,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by
the International Financial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13
defines fair Value as,

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
fiabulity setiled, ar an equily instrument granted could
be exchanged, hetween knawledgeable, willing parties
in an arm’s length transachon”

in undertaking thew valuation of each property, Knight
Frank make their assessment on the basis of a collation
and analysis of approprate comparable mvestments,
rental and sale transactions, together with evidence

of demand within the vicinity of each property This
inlaimation s then apphied to the properties, (aking
into account size, location, terms, covenan! and other
matenal factors.

The baard has reviewed reporis from the Manager and
the external valuer and determined the valuation (o be
reasonable

The Auditors have set out thew detailed testing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Companys valuation
of investment properties ta be acceptable,

There has been nothing Brought to the Commitiee’s
atlenuon in respect of the finanaal statements for the yeal
ended 31 Maich 2021, which was matenal or sigificant ol
that the Committee felt should be brought to sharehalders’
attention
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AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company’s external auditor, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company’s auditors at the 2016 AGh
The Committee expects a repeal 8 tender process no
fater than 2026 in respect of the audit for the following
31 March year end, in ine with the latest Corparate
Govemnance pirovisions

During the year, KPMG presented thetr Audi Plan for

the vear end at the intenm Committee meeling and the
Comrmittee considered the audit process and fee proposal
The Committee also reviewed KPMG's iIndependence
policies and procedures Including gquality assutance
procedures. |t was considered that these pohicies are it
for purpose and the Direclors are satishied that KPMG are
ndependent

Tetal fees payable o the Auditor in respect of the audi for
the year to 31 Maich 2021 were £80,000 (2020, £80,000),
which were approved by the Audit Committee

The Committee has approved and implemented a policy
on the engagement of the Auditor ta supply non-audit
services, taking into account the recommendalions of
the Accounting Practices Board wilh a view (0 ensuing
that the external Auditor does nol provide non-audit
services (hat have the potentai o impan o7 appear 1o
impair the independence of theu audit role In addition,
the Commiitee reviewed the actuons pul in place by the
Auditor to ensure there was a (lear separauon belween
audil and advisory seniices Thie Commitiee does not
beheve there ta be any impediment Lo the Auditors
objectivily and mdependence

The fees for non-aud)t services for the year 1o 31 March
2027 were nit (2020 nil).

Fu'l getalls of the Audilor’s fees are prowvided in nate 5 10
“NE ACCOUrts o page 79

The Board naled (hat & Kally, the curment partner, wds
appomnted for the 2017 vear-end audit and »wll continue
as partrer oniy untn the conclysion of (he 2021 year-end
audhl M Me cmart will 1emace MeKe'iy 25 aucit parirer
for tne 2022 year-end audit A7 serchant has considerable

experiencen e Finencel Services sectar asd the audi of

IFwestrrent Trust Companies

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Following each andit, the Committee reviews the audil
process and considers its effectiveness and the qualily
of the services provided to the Company Wilhin this
pracess, the Commuiltee takes inta constderation thetr
awn assessment, the self-evaluation of the auditor and
the Audit Quality Reviews Report produced by the FRC m
order to monitor the pragress of the Auditor's performance
comparabie with 1ts peer and the \argels set by the FRC
The review following the compietion of the 2020 Audil
concluded that the Committee was salisfied with the
Auditor's effectiveness and perfarmance

The Commuttee fell that KPMG had run an eftective

and efficient audit process with appropriate challenge
Subsequently, a resolulion to re-appaint KPMG LLP as
the Cormpany’s Auditor will be put to sharehelders at the
forthcoming AGM

Tim Gillbanks

3 June 2021



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statements

The dueclors are respansible for preparing the Annual
Reparl, the Strateqic Report, the Directors Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
requiations

Campany law requires Lhe directors to prepare Gioup
and Parent Company financial statements {or each
linanaial year Under that law they are required to
prepaie the Group finanaal statements in accordange
with inlernauonal accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
apphicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent
Company finanaial statements on the same basis In
addition the Group finanaal statements are requied under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules to
be prepared in accordance with International Frnancial
Reporting Standards adopled pursuant to Requlation (EC)
No 160672002 as it applies in the European Unien.

Under company law the directors must nat approve the
financial statements unless they are salishied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group's prefit or
foss for that penied In preparing each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the directors are
required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

make Judgements and estimates hat are reasonable,
relevant and rehiabie;

state whether they have been prepared in accordance
with international accounting standards i conformity
with the requiements of the Companies Acl 2006 and,
as regards the group finanaial statements, Inlernational
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant o
Requlation (LC) No 1606/2002 as b applies i the
European Union;

assess the aroup and Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as apphcatle,
matters refaled to going concern; and

use the going concern basis of accounting unless they
gither intend to liquidate the Group of the Parent
Company or (o Cease operations, or have no ealistic
alternative but to do so

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuiacy al any time the finarcial position

of the Parenl Company and enable them to ensure that

its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are responsible for such internal contiol as
they determine 1s necessary to enahle the preparaticn
of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstaternent, whelher due to fraud cr error, and have
general tesponsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them (o safequard the assets of
the Gioup and to prevent and detect fraud and other
niegulantes

Under applicable law and reqgulaticns, the direclors are
also responsible for prepanng a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Oirectors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that comphes with that law and
those regulatons.

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and
integrity of the carporate and financial information
included on the Company's website Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissermination of
financial statements may differ frem legisiation 1n other
jurisaictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Fach of the directors confirms that to the best of therr
knowledge

the finanaial statements, prepared in accordance with
the apphcable set of accounting standards, give a tiue
and fair vigw of the assets, habihnes, financial position
and profit or loss of the Grous and Parent Company and
the undertakings included n the consohdation taken as
a whaole, and

the strategic report includes a farr review of the
development and performance af the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings included

In the conschidation taken as a whole, logether with a
desciplion of the principal nsks and uncertainbies that
they face

The Directars consider the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for sharehalders
to assess the group’s posilion and performance, business
model and strateqy

By order of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust ple

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

We have audited the financial statements of TR Property
fnvestment Trust Pl (“the Campany”) for the year ended
31 March 2027 wehich compnise the Group Statement of
Comprehensive income, Group and Company Statements
af Changes in Equity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Coinpany Cash Flow Statements and the related
notes, mictuding the accounting pahcies i nate 1.

In our opinion:

- The financial statements give a tive and ‘air view af
the state of the Company’s atfairs as af 31 March 2021
and of the Group's return for the year then ended,

-+ The Group financia statements Nave been property
prepared 01 accordance wath Uk-adopted iternational
accounting standards,

-+ ihe Parent Company finarcial statements have been
properly prepaied In accordance with Uk-adopted
nternational accounting standards and as apphed in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
20086, and

— The financiai statements have been prepared in
accardance wit the requirements of the Camparies
ACt 2006 and, as reqargs the Group hinanoa!

stalements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulzuon o the extent

apphcahle

Basis for epinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Anditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)") and applicable
lawe. Our 1esponsibiiies are described below. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 a sufficient
and appropuate basis for our opinion. Cur audit cpmion is
consistent with our report Lo the audit commitles

_

Materiality: £14.9m (2020:£12.5m)

Finandial statements 1% (2020: 1%) of Total Assets

as a whale

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks valuation of direct
property investfents Lhd
Carrying amaount of listed
investments «

We were first appointed as auditor by the Diectars on

7 November 2015 The penos of toral uimnterrupted
engagement is for the 5 hnanoial years ended 37 March
2021 we have fulfiled our ethical responsibililies

under, and we remain independert of the Company i
accordance with, UK ethical requiremnents including the
FRC Bthicar Standard as applied to listed punhc mteres:
enities Ao non-audi services prohibiled by that standard
were provided

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING DUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OFf MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Koy addit matiers are ose matters that ir our professional jusgement. were o) most sigiificarce 10 ihe audit of the
francia: staterrents 4nd moade the mast sigrilicart assessed nis«s of matenia, missratemert {whethe” of 7ot Jue 1o
Cagd)denniien by usnc'uding thase wich nad the grezlest etfect an tne overs!! audin strateqy, the zhocator of
resoJrees 10 the aydit, and direcunn e efforts of the engageient team We summanse be.os ine key auail matters
{urichanged fam 2020}, in cecieasing arder of audi sigmificance, 17 arrring at our aadil opnon ebove, loget™er vwiin

ou” key and proceddres to acdress those mattars and, as requiied for pubucintare
e hased on pioceguras anderiacan, i e contexl of, a7

proced.ares Thsse malers were add e

- and gur resyhis 2

oo

antiies, our res]'ts fro™ those

soiery for the oupose of our aucit of the inangal statements as a whole, anc i farming our cpimior thereo™, ang
consenuenty arz inacental to that opirion, a~¢ we do no? provide a separete opiio” on these mallers

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



independent auditor’s report corlin ed

We performed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking lo 1ely on controls, because the nature

valuation of direct
property investments

{Group and Parent
Company)

(F&31 millinn,
2020 £94'5 million)

Refer i¢ pages 58 (o 60
{Audit Commitiee Report),
page 74 and 75 {accounling
policy), and note 10 on
pages 82 lo 85 {financial
disclosures).

Subjective valuation:

5 6% {202
fotal assets
INvestment projeslies.

The fan value ol each propert
reguires significant eshimation,

i particular with regard to
the key estimated rental
value and yield assumphions
The key assumptions will be

impacted by a number of {actors
meluding quality and condition

af the huilding and tenant
covenant strangth.

The effect of these matters
15 that. as part of our nsk
assessment. we delermined
that the

estimation uncertainty
potential range of 1¢
outcomes greater H 140 (]
matenahty for the financia
statermenis as a whole The
finangiat sta

by the Graup

(+ 7 5%) of the Graups
{by value) are held in

valuation of investment
oroperties has a high dpg ree of
with a
nab\e

temenls (note 10)
disclose the sensttivity estimated

of

obtain audit evidence pumanly through the

the balance 1s such that we would expect o

detailled

procedures desciibad

Our procedures micduded

— Assessing valuer's credentials: Using our ovn

propelly valuation speciahst, we evaluated the
compelence, expenence and independence of the
axternal vaiuer,

Tests of Detail: We compaied the information
provided by the Group Lo its external property
valuer for a sample of properhes, such as rental
income and tenancy data to supporting documents
including lease agreements,

Methodology choice: We held discussions wath
the Group's external property valuer to determine
the valualton methodolegy used. We included our
wn property valuation speaalist Lo assist us n
cntically assessing the resulls of the vatuer’s repart
by checking that the waluations were in accordance
with the RICS Yaluation Piofessional Slandards

‘the Red Book and IFRS and thal the methadology
adopted was appiopnate by reference to
acceptable valuation prachice,

Benchmarking assumptions: With the
assistance of our oven property valuation specalst
we held discussions with the Gioup's external
property valuer to understand movements in
property values For a sample of properties. we
assessed the key assumptions used by the valuer
upon which the valuatians are based, including
those relating to estimated rental value and yigld.,
by making a companson to our own understanding
of the market and to industyy benchmarks,

Assessing transpafency: Ve also considered the
adequacy of the Groups disclosures ahout the degree
af estimahion and sensitraty Lo key assumplion made
when valuing the direct property investments,

Our results:

e found the valuation of invest
be acceptable (2020 accept abld

nent properties 1o
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Carrying amount of listed
investments

(Group and Parent)

(£1,317.4 million,
2020: £1,06071 million)

Refer to pages 58 to 60
{Audit Commuiltee Report),
page 75 (accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 82
to 85 (financial disclosures)

vhe risk
Low risk, high value:

The Group's portloho of quoted
teved Tovestments makes up
88.2 (2020 84.4%) of the
Group’s olal assats (hy value)
and 15 one of the key drvers of
resulis We do not consider these
im:estments 10 be at a high nsk
of sigmificant misstaternent. or
i be subject to a significant
level of judgement bacause
they compiise hquid, quated
Ivestments However, due to
their matenality in the contex!
of the finanaal statemeants as a
whote they aie considered 1o
be ane of the areas which had
the greatest effect an our ovetall
audrt strateqgy and allocation

of 1esources in planmng and

Qur response

e performed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking (o rely on contrals, because the nature of

the balance 15 such thal detaled testing 1s determined
o be the most eftective manner of obtaining

audit evidence

Our procedures included-

— Test of detail: Agreaing the valuation of 100%of
level 1 listed investimenis i the pottiolio to
externally quoted prices, and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100%: of level
1 histed investment holdings in the portiolio to
Independentty recerved third party confimations
from investment custodians

Our results

— We found the carrying amount of listed
investments to he acceptable (2070 acceplable)

completing o audit

3. OUR APPLI(AIION OF MATERIALITY AND ANV
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF DUR AUDIT

Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was
sel al £149m {2020 £12.5m), delermined with referece
to a benchmark of total assets, of which il represents
19% (20201 040)

Materiahity for the Parent Company finanaal statements as
awhole was al £141m (2020 12 0my) determined as 0.9%
of the total assels of the parent company (2020 0 9%,

In ine with our audit methudology, our piocedures on

irdividuai account balances and distlosures were performied

o a lower threshold, performance matenality, 50 as to reduce

10 an accentable 'evel the nsk that indivmdually immatenal
missiaternents In ndricdual account baances add up 1o a ratenal
amount across the finandal statements as 8 wiroe, Perfarrance
matesality was sel at 75% (2015 75%) of matenshty for the
financial stalemerts as a whoie, which equates to £111m {2020
£94m) for the Group anc £105m (2020 £9.9m) for the Parert
Company We apphed this oercertage 10 aur determinatior of
seHormance aetally becadse we did notidennly ary faciors
Incicating an elevated level of -k

@ adaimon, we ap.ahed matenaily of £2 07 (2020

£3 2im) and performance matenahty of £15m (2020-
£2 4y tonvestment income, other gperzting Ncome,
£ross rertal ncame, service Ciarge 1mcorte ana
retains 0n contract for differences for which we Seljave
misslatements of .esser amounts than matenadty for
the firanciel staterenls as a whowe couid reasonasy

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

be expecled to nfluence the Company’s memhers’
assessment of the iinanciat performance ol the Company

We agreed 10 1eport to the Audit Commuttee any correcled ar
uncorrected idertified misstalements exceeding £6 75m
(2020 £0.63m) 0 addition lo ather identified misstaterents
that wairanted seporling or qualnative grounds

Qur audit of the Company was Jadertaken to the
matenality ‘evel specfied above and was perlormed by a
single audit eam

The audi: team performed the audit of the Gioup as if 1t was
a single aggregated set of inanaal information This approach
15 unchanged from the pror year Tae audit of the Group was
perfarmed using the Group malenaity ievel set out apove

Total Assets
£1.,491m (2020. £1.256m)

Group Materiality
£14 9m (2020 £12.5m)

£14.9m

Wrole financia
Statements mmaterality
12020 £12 5}

£14.1m

Parert Corrpary
Maternaity
2020: £12 Or)

£0.75m Misstaterrerts
reported (0 the audit
committee {2020,

£0 63}

=T3la Assels




Independent auditor’s report ccoethired

4. GOING CONCERN

The Direclors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they do not mtend to liquidate
the Group or Company or Lo cease 115 operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group o Company’s
financial position means thal s s realisic They have
also concluded that there are no material uncertaintes
that could have cast significant doubt over its abilily 1o
woitlinge 3s 3 going concern o1 at least a year from the
date of approval of the financial stalements {"the qoing
concern period”).

Wwe used our knowledge of the Group, 1ts industry, and the
general ecanomic environment Lo idenuly the inherent
nsks to 1ts business madel and analysed how thase nisks
might affect the Group or Company's financial resources

or ability to continue operations over the going concern
penod. The risks that we considered most likely 1o
adversely affect the Group or Company’s available financial
resources and its ability to operate over this period were

— Theimpéct of a sigrificant reduction 1n the valuation
of nvestments and the imphcabiens for the Gioup or
Company’s debt cavenanls,

- The hquidity of the mvestment portfolio and s abily
to meet the hiabilities of the Gioup as and when they
fall due, and

— The gperational resihence of key service organisalicns

We considersd whether these 11sks could plausibly affect
the hgudity 1n the going concern penod by assessing the
degree of downside assumption that, individually and
coflectively, could result 1n a iquidity issue, taking into
account the Group or Company’s current and projecled
cash and liquid investment position (and the results of
their reverse stress testing)

We constdered whether the going concern disclosure i
nole 1 (o the financial statements gives a full and accurate
descnplion of the Directors’ assessment of going concern,
including the Wdeniified risks and related sensitivities

Qur conclusions based on this work

— We consider thal the Directors’ use of the goimg
concern hasis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements 15 appropriate,

— We have natidentified, ard concur wilth the Oirectors’
assessment thal there 1s not, a matenal uncertawsty
related to events o condiions that, indiwvidually or
collectively, may cast sigruficant doubt on the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as a qoing concern for
the going concern period;

— We have nothing material to add or diaw attention to
in elation 1o the Directars’ statement 10 note 110 the
financial stalements on the use of the going concermn
basis of gccounting with ne matenal uncerlainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group or Company's
use of that basis for the gony weneenn period, and
we [ound the going concern disclosure in note 11to be
acceptable; and

— The related statement under the Listing Rules set out
on pages 41 and 4215 matenally consislent wath the
financtal statements and our audit knowledge,

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may resultn
autcomnes thal are inconsistent with jJudgements that
were reasonable at the tme they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group o
Company will continue 10 operatian.

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

Identilying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due 1o fraud

To 1dentify nsks of matenal misstaternent due to fraud
{"fraud nisks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure o commit fraud
of provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Qur ask
assessment pracedures included:

— Enquinng of Directars as 1o the Group’s fugh-level
pohcies and procedures to prevent and detect lraud, as
well as wheather they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected of alleged fraud,

Assessing the segregation of dulies 1n place between
the Directors, the Administrator and the Group's
Investment Manager, and

— Reading Board and Audit Commuttee minutes

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures
to address the nisk of management overnde of coatrols,
in particular to the nisk that management may be in

a position to make INappropliate accounting entnes

We evaluated the design and implementation of the
conliols over journal entries and other adpistmerts and
made Inquiries of the Admimustralor about inappropriate
or unusual activity relating Lo the processing of journal
entries and other adjustments. We substantively lested all
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matenal post-closing entries and, based on the resulls of
our fisk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, ncuding the segregation of duties between the
Directors and the Administrator, no further high-nisk jouinal
entiies or other adjustments were dentfied

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud nisk related

fn revenue recogiulion because the revenue is non-
judgemental and straightforward, with irmited apportunity
for manipulation. we did not identity any significant
unusual ransacuons o additional fraud nisks

tdentifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
reguiations

We wlenbified areas of laws and requlabions thet could
reasonably be expected to have a malenal effect an the financial
statements from our general commeraial and sector expenence
and through discussion walh the Diectors. the investment
warager and the Adrministraton (as wquired by auditing
standards) ard discussed with the Directors the policies and
procedures regarding cornphiance svitlt faves and requlations

The potential effect of these faws and regulations on the
fmanoial statements vanes considerably

Fiestly, the Company 15 subject to laws and regulations

that directly affect the finanaal statements including
finanaial reparting legislatior. (iIncluding related compantes
tegrsiation], distnicutable profits legislation, and its
quahfication as an Investment Trust under UK taxation
leguslation, any breach of which could lead to the Gioup
losing various decuctions and exemplions f-om LK
corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of comphance
with these laws and requlatians as part of cur procedures
on the reiated finanaai statement iterns

Secondly, the Group is subjecl to many other laws and
requlations where the consequences of ron-camphiance
could have a matena. eflect on amounts or discasures

i the fiancial statements, fo7instance trrough the
imposition of fings of htigation Wwe identified the faflowing
areas as those most likely 10 have such an eifect money
wundanng. data pratection, babery ard coruphion
‘eqislation and certan aspects of company legisiation
recogrisng tre finanoa "atwe of the Group's achiviaes
and s tegal far— Auditing stendaids hmit the requited
agdiy procecures 1o 1dentity nar-comphance wath these
laws 3¢ regualons o engaity of the Diveclots and the
Agiministrator and imszechon of -egaiaiy and wegal
corresznndence i any Thereforeaf a breach of operationa,
requiations 15 not discosed 1o us ar evident fort ie'eyan:
correspondence, an audit vty 7ot detec! that hreaor
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law of regulation

Owing to the imherent mitations aof an audil, there 1s an
unavoidable nsk that we may not have detecled some
matenal misstatements i the finangial statements, even
though we nave property planned and perfermed our
audit iy accordance with auditing standards For example,
the further removed non-comphaice with laws and
requlations Is from the events and transactions reflected
in the hinancial statements, the less likely the inherently
imited procedures requiied by auditing standards would
identify it

In addion, as with any audit, theie remained a higher nisk
of non-delection of fraud, as these may involve cellusion,
forgery, irtenlional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
overiide of internal contiols. Gur audit proceduses are
designed to detect matenal misstatement. We are not
responsible for preventing non-comphance of fraud and
cannat be expected (o detect non-complhiance with all
laws and regulations

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON FHE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPGRT

The Drectors are raspansibie for the other information
presented 11 the annual Report together with the financial
statements Our ooinea on the fimancial staternents does
not cover the otner informatior and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit oginion or, excepl as expiutly stated
below any form of assurance conclusion tnereon

Oui respansibility 15 1o read the ather information aad.

In doing so, corsider whether based on our firanga)
statements audit work, the informatior therem 1s
matertally russtated or inconsistent with the financal
stalements or our audit knowledge Based soiely on that
work we have notadentified matenal myssiatements in the
other information

Strategic report and Directors” report
Based so'ely or our work on the other 1nformatior

— we rave ol wentified matenal misstatements in (7e
Strategie report and the Diredlors’ repoit,

— 17 our opItIon the nformianon given in those eo0rts
for tre finaniai year 1s consistent vt ine hnanda.

staterments, and

accoida




independent auditor’s repart continued

Directors’ temuneration report

In cur epinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Compames Acl 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-terrn viability

We are requiied to perform procadures to identify whether
here 15 a matenal inconsistency between the Directors’
disclosures in respect of emerqing and principal nsks and
the viability stalement, and the financial stalements and
out audit knowledqge

Based on thase procedures, we have nothing matenal to
add or draw attention to 10 relation to:

— the Oirectors’ confirmation wathin the Viability Statement
on pages 33 and 34 that they have carmied out a robust
assessment of the emerging and prinaipal nsks facing the
Group, including those that would threaten its business
madel, future perfarmance, solvency and hgudity,

— the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
descnbung these nisks and how emerging risks are
identfied, and explaming now they are being managed
and muligated, and

- the Directors” explanation in the Viability Staterment of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over what period they have dane so and why they
considered that penod o be approonate, and therr
statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its Liabilities as tney fall due
over the penod of therr assessment, including any
lelated disclesures drawing atiention 1o any necessary
gualiications or assumpuons,

We are also 1equired o review the viabilily Slatement, set
oul on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules. Based on
the above procedures, we have concluded that the ahove
disclosures are matenally consistent with the financal
statements and our audit knowledge.

Our work 1s imited to assessing these matters in the
cantext of only the knowledge acquired dunng our
financial stalements audit As we cannot predict all futore
events o condilions and as subseqguent events may
resultin outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasunable al the time they were made. the
absence of anything to repart on these stalements 1s nol a
quarantee as to the Company’s langer-term viability

Corporate governance disclosures

We are requiied o perform procedures to 1dentify whether
there 15 & matenal inconsislency between the Directors’
corporale governance disclosures and the financial
staternents and our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each
of the Toilowing 1s matenally consistent with the financial
staternents and our audit knowledye:

— the Dueclors’ slatement that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements taken as a
whole 1s {air balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's posiion and performance, business
maedel and stateqy,

he section of the annual repor! descnibing the work of
he Audit Commtiee, including the significant issues
hat the audit commitiee considered in relation to

he financial statements. and how these 1ssues were
addressed; and

— the section of the annual repart that descrihes

the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal contral systems

we are required Lo review the parl of Corporate
Governance Statement telaling to the Group’s compliance
with the provisions of the UK Corpurate Governance Code
specfied by the Listing Rules fo1 our review We have
nothing to report in this respecl.

7. WE HAVE NOTHING 7O REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Acl 2006, we are required to report
e you i, e our opimon-

— adeqguate accounting records have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our sudit have not been recaived
from branches not visited by us, or

— the finanaial statements and the part of the Direclors’
Remuneralion Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

— certamn disclosures of Directors’ rermuoneration spedified
by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to report in these 1espects
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8. RESPECYIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully In their statement set gut on
page 61, the Direclors are responsible for- the preparation
of the finanaal statements including being satishied that
they qive a true and fai view, such internal contiol as
they determine 1s necessaty to enable the preparation

of finanaial statements that are free from matenas
misstatement, whethes due to fraud or etror; assessing
the Company’s abily to continue as a going Concem,
disclesing, as applicable, matters related Lo going concern,
and using the qoing concern basis of accounting unless
they either mtend 1o quidate the Corppany o to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but o do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our oblectives are to ohlain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial slatements as a whole are fiee liom
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
Lo 15508 our opinIen 1N an auditon’s report Reasonable
assuiance 15 a high lever of assurance, but doges not
quaiantee that an audit conducted In accordance with 1SAs
(UK) will aiways detect 3 matenal misstaternent when it
exisls Misstalemenls can anse from fraud or error and are
considerec matenal if, indiadually arin agaregate, they
could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements

A fuller descnplion of our responsibilities 1s orovided on
the FRCs website at
wwhfre org.uk/auditorsrespansibiliies
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9. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This reporl is made solely Lo the Group's members, as

a bady, 17 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compaimes Acl 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Coimpany Our audit work has been undeitaken so that
we might state to lhe Group's members those mditers we
are fequired (o slate to themin an auditers report and for
no other purpose 1o the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do aol accept or assume respansthility to anyone ather
than the Group and the Groups members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the apimions we have
formed

Richard Kelly {(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditer

Chantered Atcountants
Saltrra Court

15 Cenada Square
Landon

£14 5GL

3 june 2021



Group Statement of Comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 36,557 - 36,557 47112 - 47112
Cther operating income 4 67 - 67 3 - 35
Gross rental income 3 3,185 - 3,185 3,415 - 3,415
Service chaige income 3 1,051 - 1,051 1,786 - 1,786
Gains/{losses) on investments held at
fair value 10 - 196,582 196,582 - (153,614) {153,614)
Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes - {(3,144) (3,144) - 1,296 1,296
Net movement on foreign exchange; 3z
cash and ash equivalents - (1,474) (1,474) - 302 302 g %
Net returns on contracts for difference 10 3,320 17,978 21,298 5,724 {41,276) (35,552) =
Net return on total retum swap 10 - {8  (183) - (3.808) (3,808) ?
Total income 44,180 209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,100) {129,028}
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 (1,556) (14,328) (15,884) {1,570) (7.392) {8,962)
Dirett property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs 3 (1,321) - (1,321) {1,984) - {1,984)
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,231) {604) (1,835) (1,398) (615) (2,013)
Total operating expenses (4,108) {14,932) {15,040) (4,952) (8,007) (12,959)
Operating profit/(loss) 40,072 194,822 234,894 53,120 (195,707) (141,987)
Finance costs 7 {416) {1,969) (2,385) (814) (2,443) (3,257)
Profit/(loss) from operations before B
tax 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550)  (145,244)
Taxation 8 (767) 2,667 1,900 (5912) 3,149 (2,763)
Total comprehensive income 38,889 195,520 234,409 46,394 (194,401)  {148,007)
Earnings/(loss) per Ocdinary share 9 12.25p 61.61p  73.86p 14.62p {61.26)p (46.64)p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Cornprehensive Income, prepared in aceordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplermentary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Assodiation of
investment Companies. All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement therefore “Total comprehensive
income” is also the profit for the year.

All income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes fram pages 73 ta 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes

Share
Capital

Ordinary

£000

Share
Premium
Account
£°000

Capital
Redemption

Reserve
£'000

Retained
Earnings
ordinary

£'900

Total
£000

At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,91 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,229) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,97 969,982 1,136,453
Total camprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - {44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,97 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,91 1,161,783 1,328,254
Totat comprehensive income - - - (148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,91 969,982 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 4397 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,91 969,982 1,136,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form parl of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000

Non-current assets

Investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred taxation asset 12 686 636 - -
1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972
Cash and tash equivalents 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100,223 100,099 o
Current liabilities 13 (107,280) {150,120) (59.111) (116,016} % E
Net cusrent (liabilities)/assets (17176)  (60,488) 40,512 ©.517) =3
Total assets less current liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807 @
Non-cutrent liabilities 13 {57,593) (57,593} (59,354) (59,354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Capital and reserves
Calied up share capitat 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premiurm account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43971 43,971 4397 4397
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 417.97p Nn7197p 35811p 358.11p

These financia! statements were approved by the directors of TR Property Investment Trust ple (Company No:84492) and autharised for
issue on 3 june 2021.

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Company Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2026
£000 £000 £'000
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) from operations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 (145,244) (145,244)
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value through profit or loss (214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,771
Net movement on foreigh exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes {179) (179) 859 859
(increase)/deciease in accrued income {102) (102) 584 584
sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,841 316,841
Purchases of investments (370,496) (370,496) (383,674) (383,674)
Decrease/(intrease) in sales settlement debtor 4,753 4,753 (1,417) (1,417)
(Decrease)/increase in purchase settlement creditor (5.781) {5,781) 450 4,501
(increase)/decrease in other debtors {11,436) {11,436) 4,447 4,447
Increasef(decrease) in other creditors 2,451 {4,001) 2,047 2,634
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
returns an contracts for difference (8,489) (8,489) (3.813) (3.818)
Net cash outflow from operating activities belore
interest and taxation {15,550) (15,590) {2,19) (2,919)
interest paid (2.607) (2,607) (3.421) (3.421)
Taxation paid (1,915) (1,915) (2.321) (2.321)
Net cash outflow fram operating activities (20,112) (20,112) (8,661) {8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) (44,429) (43,794) (43,794)
Orawdown of loans 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 10,571 10,571 (3,794) {3,794)
Decrease in cash {9,541) {9,541) {12,455} (12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents (1,474) (1.479) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,603
Interest received 45 45 37 7

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form pait of these financial Statemeants.

7Z TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
International financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation {EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

In assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its fiabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the current and likely engoing econamic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operational
resilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues to monitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

in light of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current liability position of the Group and Parent Company {which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid level 1
investments), the Directors are satisfied that the Company and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operation

for at least the next 12 manths following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the gaing
concern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational currency.
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the cusrency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated. )

TVIZNVNIA

4
p-3
]
m
=
m
=4
3
w

Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the valuation of investment
properties. See section (f) of this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements cansolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 march 2021. All the
subsidiaries of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements.

In accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
-t abtains funds from investors and provides those investars with investrment management services;

» 1t commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investrment
income; and
- It measures and evaluates performance of substantially afl of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpose of operating or supporting the invesiment operations of
the Company {including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlied
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The finandial staterents of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising theretrorn, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) Income
Dividends feceivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital returns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued ta the end of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission s taken to revenue, unless any shares underwsitten are required to be taken up, in
which case the proportionate commission received is deducted from the cost of the investment.

Recogpnition of property rental income is set out in section (f) of this nate.

Recognition of income from contracts of difference is set out in section (g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
¢) Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into
revenue and capital items is given in note 16. In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as fellows:

+  Expenses which are incidentat to the acquisition or disposal of an investment;

« Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance of enhancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated, this includes irrecoverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residential
leases as premiums received for extending or terminating leases are fecognised in the capital account;

«  Qne quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with thiee quarters aflocated to capital return to reflect the
Board's expectations of fong term investment returns. Alf performance fees are charged to capital return;

- The fund administration, depositary, custady and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses” in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quartet to income and thiee quarters 10 capital.

d) Finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding bafance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capital return.

€) Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it refates to items that are credited or charged to equity. Gtherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive incame.

The tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group’s effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
tempoiary differences between the treatment of certain iterns for taxation and accounting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive income is the “marginal basis”
under this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Statemnent of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the correspanding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability methed. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
defersed tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
tempotary differences can be utilised.

The Company is an investment trust under 51158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax on capital
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject 1o capital gains lax.

) investment property
Invesiment property is measured initiatly at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional

fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The cafrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and safe of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent o initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they afise.

Investment property is derecognised when it has been dispased of ar permanently withdrawn from use and no future econamic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains of losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incame in the year of disposal.

Gains ar tosses on the disposal of invesiment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revalyation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being fecognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation - Global
Standards (The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

*The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, fulure revenue strearms, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only refied solely on historical transactional comparables. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 (e}.

Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiums received to terminate or extend leases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

income arising from expenses recharged fo tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered. Service charges and ather such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) lnvestments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
market, the investments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group’s investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are also
described in these financial statements as investmenis held at fair value.

All investments are designated upon initial recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks saurced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including all the FTSE All -Share and the most fiquid AIM constituents. Unquoted investments or investinents
for which there is only an-inactive market are hefd at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

In its financial statements the Company recagnises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset value. The subsidiaries have historically been holding vehicles for direct praperty investment or financing vehicles. No
assels are currently held through the subsidiary structure and alt financing instruments are directly held by the Company,.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for tapital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
Contracts for Difference ("CFDs™) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values.

The saurces of the returns under the derivative contract (e.q. notional dividends, financing costs, interest returns and capital
changes) are allocated lo the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accardance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP. Notional dividend income or expenses arising on long ar short positions
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account, Notional interest expense on Jong positions is apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company (curfently determined to be 25% to the

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 75



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% Lo capital reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price movements of securities in refation
to CFD exposures are allocated wholly to capital reserves.

h) Bosrowings, loan notes and debentures
Alt loans and debentures are initialty recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
Atter initial recognition, all interest bearing toans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount o premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the foan an an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabikities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the halance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand depaosits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
interim dividends are recagnised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
sharehoiders.

I} Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with thase of the previcus consolidated financial staternents except as noted below.

IFRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided more guidance on the definition of a business to assist in delermining
whether 3 transaction results in an assel of & business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group's
financial statements.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to IFRS 9 1AS 39 and IFRS 7. The amendments provided temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to ¢ontinue during the periad of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an akternative 1isk free interest rate. The armendments have not had a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments lo 1AS 1 and AS 8 - Definition of Material. The International Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and issued practical guidance on applying the concept of materiality. The amendments have not had a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

The Conteptual Framewosk for Financial Reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard however its purpase is to outline
a set of concepts for finantial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies

and assistance 1o others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framewark has not had a materiat impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new Intemational Financial Reporting
standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below:

1AS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nen-Current (effective date amended to 1 January 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-curent. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

1AS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023}. The amendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 january 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 1o measuiement unceriainty”. The amendments also clarify the
interaction between an accounting poficy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expecied to have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 16 Amendments - Praceeds befare Intended Use (effective 1 January 2022} The amendments intend ta dlarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items praduced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendments are ngt expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

iAS 37 Amendments - Onerous Cantracts - Cost of fulfitling contract (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarify that for
the purpase of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incrementat costs
of fulfilling that contract and an atlocation of cther costs that relate directly to lulfifling contracts. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial staternents.

1AS 39, IFRS 4, 7.9 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2} (effective 1 January 2021} 1BOR reform refers
ta the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of some interbank offered rates (IBOR) with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of finangial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company’s
financial instruments and risk management strateqy, additional information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to IBOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company’s
progress in completing its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 47, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvements 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1 January 2022) The minor improvernents,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements, to the standards noted were endorsed in
September 2020.

IFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of 1AS 37 or {FRIC 21, an acquirer applies I1AS 37 of IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework}
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination. in addition, IFRS 3 now contains a statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS 9 Deferral (effective * January 2023) The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 April 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been exiended to lease payments ofiginally due on or before 30 june 2022.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disciosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments to IFRS 17 {effective 1 January 2023) In june 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standard. The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
20N 2020
£000 £000

Dividends frem UK listed investrnents 3,753 4,911
Dividends from overseas listed investinents 18,656 26,631
scrip dividends from listed investiments 7,482 3,370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

36,557 4112

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£'000 £000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415

Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge tosts {1.321) (1,984)

2,915 3217
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered inta commeicial leases an its praperty portfolio. Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market

conditions. Seme leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not more than S years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
32,000 28,550

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £000
Interest seceivable 1 32
interest on refund of everseas withholding tax a4 3
underwiiting commission 22 -
67 35

underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwtiting of
investee companies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of comission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which it is prepared to increase its
holding should that be the outcome. The commission eamed is taken to revente unless any securities underwtitten are required to

be taken up in which tase the proportionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investment. During the year the Company
participated in one (2020: nil) underwriting and all cornmission earned was taken 10 revenue and shown under Other operating income.

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

01 2021 2020 2020 2026
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,576 4,769 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors' fees {Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 57)

Auditor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial staternents

Legal fees

Taxation fees

Other administrative expenses
Other expenses

Irrecoverable VAT

Expenses charged to Revenue
Expenses charged to Capital

won
£000

232

80

15

69

199
454
182
1,23
604
1,835

2020
£'000

209

80
3
103
199
562
214

1,398
615

2,013

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secietarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters o capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797,000 {2020: £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ National insurance and recruitment, Registrars and

listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution casts. These expenses are charged solely to the

revenue account.

VAT on osts incurred in connection with the extension of the residential Jeases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS

£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after § years 1,384 1,39
HMRC interest: release of FIl GLO provision (240) -
2,385 3,257
Amount allocated to capital retuin (1,969) (2,443)
Amount allocated to revenue return : 416 g4
8 TAXATION
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue apital Total
Return (T Return Return
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
UK corporation tax at 19% {2020: 19%) 1,989 (1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) 213
Overseas taxation B66 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 (1,981 874 5,968 (3,149) 2,819
{over)/under provision in respect of prior
yeats (1980) - {1,980) (406) - (406)
875 (1,981) {1,106) 5,562 (3,149) 2,413
Deferred taxation (108) (686) (794) 350 - 350
Corrent tax charge for the year 767 (2,667) (1,900) 5,912 (3,149) 2,763
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is Jower (2020: lower) than the standard rate of carporation tax in the UK for a large company of 19%

(2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Retorn Retuin
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Net profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197550)  (145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9,938 {37,535) (21,597}
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - (37,351) (37.351) - 29,187 29,187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204) (2,204)
Tax refief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1,038 (1,038)
Non-taxable returns (23) (3,380) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends (972) - (972) (1,043) - {1,043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (4,573) - (4,573) (5,540) - (5,540)
Gverseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment {108) (686) (794) - - -
{Over)/under provision in respect of prior
years {1,980) - (1,980) (406) 5 {401)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Oeferred tax not provided I 1,084 1,087 288 87 201
767 {2,667) {1,900) 5912 (3,149) 2,763

The Group has nat recagnised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nil) arising as a result of losses carried forward.

It is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred lax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s stalus as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required 1o gbtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided defetred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation or

dispasal of investments.

¢) Provision for deferred taxation

The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Accelerated capitel allowances
Unutilised losses carried forward

Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability

2021
Revenue

Return

£°000

201
Capital
Return

£000

(650

(686)

2020 2020 2020

Revenue Capital Tetal
Return Return

£000 £000 £000

108 - 108

108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued
¢} Provision for deferred taxation continved

Company
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retuin
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax {asset)/liability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 07 (350 (243)
Accelerated capital aliowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses cairied forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) {686) 108 - 108
Company
20 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capitai Total
Return Return Return Retuin
£000 £000 £000 £000 E£'060
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances {108) - (108) 1 350 35
unutilised fosses carsied forward - (686) (686) - - -
Pravision at the end of the year - (686) (686) 108 - 108
9 EARNINGS/(lOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'000 £000
Net revenue profit 38,889 465,394
Net capital profit/{loss) 195,520 {194,407)
Net total profit/{loss) 234,409 (148,007)
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue eamings per share 12.25 14.62
Capital earnings/(loss) per share 61.61 (61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 (46.64)

The Group has ne securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share are the same.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

a) Analysis of investments
Company aroup Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £'000
Listed in the United Xingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,07 83,071 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429

1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net (@ Valuation revenue revenue

31March  additions/ appreciation/ JEEESR RN 31 March 31 March

2020 (disposals)  (depreciation) 20N 20 2020

£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17,978 (141) 3,320 5724
Total return swap (3,808) 3,996 (128) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 15973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 {5.838) (1,601) 83,0M 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44113 58,037

in seeking to achieve its investment abjective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
refated businesses internationally and alse in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there
are two distinct reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allacation of
resaurces. The Board, which is the principal decision makes, receives information on the two segments on a regular basis. Whilst
revenue streams and direct property costs tan be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be
split 1o allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above,

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £7,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
grass revenue abave wauld result in net income of £2,915,600 (2620: £3,217.000) for the direct property reporting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

valuation Net L2l Valuation revenue fevenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ EEEINEIG 31 March 31 March

2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 2021 201 2020

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963

UX unfisted equities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct property’ 94,510 {9.838) {1,601) 83,071 4,236 5,201

Continental European listed equities 708,597 £9,093 124,11 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

UK contracts for difference? 5,071 (13,108) 8,621 584 1,242 2,74
European contracts for difference? 3627 {13,709) 9357 (725) 2,078 3,010 EES
I
UK total return swap® (3.508) 3,996 (188) - - - 22
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 5 b

Included in the above figures are puichase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,000) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £199,000).

These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £325,018,000 (2020: £367,977000) from investments, including direct property, sald in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317,581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unreafised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

' Net additions/{disposals) includes £465,000 (2020: £981,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/(depreciation) includes
amounts in respect of rent free periods.

7 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciation/(depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movernent in fair value in the year,

1 The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movement in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or more of any class of capital in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See note 21 on pages 96 and 57 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investments) or the balance
sheet arnount is a reasonable approximation of fair vaiue (due from brokers, dividends and interest feceivable, due to brokers,
acuvals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categuarisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation technigues using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation technigues used by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (f) and 1 (g).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

¢) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets aut fair value measurements using 1FRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at {air value through profit or loss

At 31 March 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,071 83,071
Contracts for difference - (1a1) - {141)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {1,107) - (1,107)
1315977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,080,785
investment properties -~ - 94,510 94,510
Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - (3.808) - (3.808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (5,609) - (5,609)
1,860,103 (n9) 95,192 1,154,576

The table above represents the Group's fair value hierarchy. The Company's fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7117.000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in f3ir value in the year,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the release of a corparation tax provision of £348,000
in a subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Campany at 31 March 2027 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:

£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of rnovements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 2021 31 March Appreciation / JEELTEENW]
2020  Purchases Sales (Depreciation)
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,468
Investment properties
- Mixed yse 52,623 315 (303) (4,658) 47,977
- Office & Industrial 41,887 150 (10,000) 3,057 35,094
94,510 465 10,303) {1,601) 83,071
95,192 465 (10,303) (813) 84,539

All appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above relates to movements in fair value of unlisted equity investments and investment

properties held at 31 March 2021

The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hieraschy fevels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unabservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Levet 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment properties are:

@ Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2020: £6.5- £65)
@ C(apitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in iselation would result in a significantly higher (lower)
fair value measurement. A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in a significantly lower
(higher) fair value measurement.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partiatly determined by market rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at office & -
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial g 12;
£'000 £'000 mz
ZE
Z
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 “
Decrease in rental value by 5% {250) (1,610) (25) {1,885)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040) {5,835) (925) (10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office &
31 March 20620 arising from Retail Industrial Other Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% {1,225) {1,720) - (2,945)
increase in yield by 0.5% (5,025) (6,005) (950) {11,980}
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the fong term in the pursuit of the investment Objectives set out on
page 24, The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group faces in its portfolio management activities are:
& Market risk (comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate fisk)

@ Liquidity risk

® Credit risk

The Manager’s policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
yealL
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Graup’s investments are exposed to market price fiuctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the portfolio activity and perfoimance at each Board meeting.
Tthe Board monitars the investment activity and strateqy to ensure it is compatible with the stated abjectives.

The Group’s exposure 10 changes in Market prices on ils quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolio, was as
follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £000

fnvestments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD fong gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS fong gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Palicies on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company, geographical
region of direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual or sector price risks. As an
investment company dedicated to investment in the property sectot, the Group is exposed 10 price movements acioss the property
asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The foilowing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders” funds to an
increase of decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFO and direct property investments. The level of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group’s equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other vasiables held constant.

2021 2021 2020 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value vaiue value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive income - profit after tax

Revenue retum (103) 103 7 77
Capital return 209,801 (209,801) 173,817 (173.817)
Change to the profit after tax for the year/shareholders' funds 209,698 (209,698) 173,740 (173,740)
Change 1o total earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p {54.75)p
11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group’s portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the propartion of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, Euros or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreigh currency movements outside the Eutozone by funding investments in overseas
secyrities with unsecured loans denominated in the same cusrency or through forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Euro 51.0% 53.0%
Swedich Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the nel
monetary assets and kabilities;

Swedish o
sterling Krona 3 E
20 £000 £000 g g
2
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299 -
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts {95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accryals and other creditors) (10,142) (1,031) - -
FX forwards {61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items 7 (94,036) 13:976 S 1_5,659_ 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-current liabilities {15,000) (42,593) - -
Total currency exposure - 370;365 679,351 - 1';'0:654 o _106,023
Swedish
Sterling Euro Krora Other
2020 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Receivables {due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 31,552 27,495 634 413
€ash at bank and on deposit 25,602 1,922 962 1,643
Bank loans, loan noles and overdrafts (40,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,026) (6,076) - -
FX forwards (133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (124,603) 95,355 241N 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-cufrent assets {15,108) (44,246) - -
Total currency exposure 306,987 602,685 124,957 1,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterfing/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currendies.

It assumnes the following changes in exchange rates:
@ Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)

® Sterling/Swedish Krona +/- 158 {2020:15%)
@ Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020.15%)
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this wouid have had the following effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020
swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Other Euro Krona Other
£000 £°000 £'000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive income -

profit after tax

Revenue retuin {2,726) (58%) (250) {3,016) {340) (99)
Capital retum (23,243)  (20,269) (7,579) (71,091) {(13132) (7317)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds {85,969) (20,858) {7,825} {74,107} (13,472) (7,416)
Change to totat earnings per Ordinary share (36.13)p (29.93)p

1 Slerling had weakened against the cuirencies shown, this would have the following effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year ended Marich 2020
swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Other Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £°000

Statement of Comprehensive Income -

profit after tax

Revenue return 3,411 732 313 497 423 13

Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909

Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
2020

Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate mavements may affect:

@ the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair value of the lcan notes;

® the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
@ ihe level of interest expense on any variable rate bank foans; and
@ the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfglios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as & result of changes in interest rates are taken inte account when
making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themseives and the leve! of gearing and structure of its
debt portfolio is a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variabie rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
sel out in note 13, I addition to the Ioan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan facilities which carry variable
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus a margin. These facilities total £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continved

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the batance sheet of the Group (i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and habilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investment portfolio. These gearing levels are reparted regularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group's investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group's financial assets are not directly
subject te significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

@ floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027,00C (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group's exposuie to flating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil).

IYIONYNIE

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

]
=1
m
=
m
2
=
w

@ Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank gverdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent
(2020: same).

@ Interest paid on borrowings under the mutti-cutrency loan facilities, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan (2020: same).

@ The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan noles are at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure thanges
as investrments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reparling date would have had the following direct impact:

pLi74] 20 2020 2020

2% 20, 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £'000 £'600 £'000

Change to shareholders’ funds (1,176) 1,176 17 317
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share {0.37)p 0.37p {c10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holds.

T1.4 Liquidity risk
unquoted investments in the portfolio are subject to liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% (2020: 8%) of the
Group's investment portfalio was held in direct property investments,

At 31 March 2021, 94% (2026: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfalio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group’s current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile

within Within Within Within  More than
1-2yeafs 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5yeals 5 years

At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
gank ioans* 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and defetred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 10 - - - ~ - 1m0
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717
Within within within Within within  More than
tyear 12years 23years  3-4years  4-5years 5 years Total
Al 31 March 2020 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59,246
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 11,021
Accruals and deferred income 3812 - - - - - 3812
Cther ¢reditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

* A £60m multicurrency facifity with RBS was renewed for one yeor in February 2021, £50m {2020. £10m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A
£30m one year facility with ING Luxernbourg was renewed in july 2020. £36m (2020: E30rm) was drawn on this facifity at the balance sheet date. A £40m facility
was renewed with 1(8C in November 2020 £15m {2020: £ril} was drawn on this fadiiity at the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets quidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set

aut in the Investment Palicies on page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £3m and direct property investments with a

value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facility renewal dates. in addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt an an ongoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure ol a counterparty to a lransaction to dischaige its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
2 loss. At the period end the lfargest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periodically by the Manager,
and fimits are set on the amount that may be due fram any one broker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In summaty, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Balance  Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet  exposure Sheet exposure

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Debtors 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,14 29114 40,129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requiremnent for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in refation to expected credit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impaifment).

Offsetting disclosures

In arder to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an ISDA Master Agreermnent or similar agreement with its OTC derivative conlract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreernent
is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisicns in the event of 8 default and/or termination event. Under
an 1SDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instruments
payables and/or receivables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterparty. However, bankruptcy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impase
restrictions on of prohibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assels and financial Habilities that are subject to an enforceable
rmaster netting arrangement or similar agreement.

Al 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as follows:

IYIINYNIA

Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

4
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=
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w

Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash coilateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pfedged
£000 £000 £'000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs (141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
(141} 50913 2,698 31,525

TRS pasition: ) S
ING - - (3,808) 7,997
o - - (3,808) 7,997

FX forward contracts: ) -
Bank of Montrea) - - (2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC (1,107) - - -
Westpac - - {9) -
a0 - (5.669) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financial assets and
financiat liabitities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value {investments) or the balance sheet amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value (deblors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, acciuals and prepayments).

the fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underiying listed investment value as set out above and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year,

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Baok) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,000).
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T1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in uniisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consolidated piofit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

® to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern; and
& o maximise the tolal return to its equity sharehaolders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves lotalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not reqard the loan notes and loans as
permanent capital,

The loan notes agieement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

® Total Borrowings shalt not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
® the Adjusted NaV sha!l not be fess than £260,000,0600.

12 DEBTORS

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £'000

Amounts fatling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future settlement 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income? 5176 5,176 5082 5,082
Amounts receivable in sespect of Contracts for Difference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 3,525
TRS margin cash - - 7,997 7997
Other debtors 403 403 358 358

60,990 60,520 60,094 59,972

Non-cument assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

" Includes amaounts in respect of rent free periads.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
20 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdraits 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future setflement 194 194 5,975 5,975

Ampunts due tn subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 141 11 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settiement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 ez

Other creditors . 104 294 286 g %
107,280 150,120 59711 10,016 g =

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Eurg Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
peferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59,354 59354
Loan Notes

0On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euit Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219,000
{2020 £15,553,000) at 31 March 2021

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

® Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
® the Adjusted NAY shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, revolving short-term loan facilities totaliing £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000) at
31 march 2021. At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2020: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term  Short term
debt debt Total
£'000 £'000

Group and Company

Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 929,246
Cash flows:

Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement on foreign exchange {1,653) - (1,653)
Closing fiabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57593 95000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share capital
The balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, aliotted
and fully paid

Number £000
Qrdinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 317,350,986 79,338

The vating rights are disclased in the Report of the Directars on page 43.
buring the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelied.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Share premium account
The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above aomina! value from the proceeds an issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivalent to the nominal vaiue of purchases of the Company’s own
shares in order to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS
aroup Company Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,531
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996
Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
T 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 965,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) selating to uniisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment praperties.

Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,697,000) relating to unisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,063,000 revaluation gain (2020: £50,742,000) relating to investment propesties. Dividends are
only distributable from the revenue reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020

£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 21,927 27292
{2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p
{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

44,429 43,794

Amaounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of %.00p

{2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927
the final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial staternents in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”.

Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirements of 51158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 march
Fiiv4] 2020

£000 £000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary shaie 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Qrdinary share 28,562 27927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,409,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

et asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 {2020: 317,350,980} Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but ro contingent liabilities (2020: nil}.
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21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, ail of which are registered and operating in Scotland, England and Wales:

Name

New England Properties Limited
The Colonnades Limited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Itd

The Real Estate investment Trust Limited

The Tefra Property Investment Trust Lisited

Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Six} Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited
Trust Unien Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited
Trust Unicn Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Carditf) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc

FGH Deveiopments Limited

FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited (E18030)
FGH (Newcastle) Limited

NEP (1994) Limited

New England Developrments Limited

New England Investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England (Southern) Limited

Sapco Cne Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Req. Number

788895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2416015
2415843
2416077
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2415806
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416031
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
5068799
1466619
977481
1385909
2613905
144721
178731
8035940
2134624
1233998
2415941
2420097

Principal Activities
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Neoan-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-irading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

investment holding and finance company
investment holding and finance company

Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued
The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaties in order for them to take the exemption from the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and ali the holdings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been efiminated on
consalidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

2021 2020
£000 £000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 3z

: L =t

TR Property Finance Limited 20,281 27,743 23

New Engiand Properties Limited (20) {20} z 2
42,880 50,342

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categaries
specified in |1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Mavements in directors’ sharehoidings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 57.
Dividends totalling £17,000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance mMeasures are numerical measures of the
Company’s current of histoncal peifarmance, financial position or
cash flows, other than the finanual measures defined or specified
in the Financial Statements.

Ihe measures defined below are considered Lo be Alternative
Performance Measures They are viewed 3s particularly relevant
and are frequently gquoted for closed ended mnvestment
Lompanies

Total Return

The NAY Total Return 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends
in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividends are deemed to be remvested on the ex-dividend
date as this 15 the protocol used by the Company's benchmark
and ather indices The Share Price Tafal Return 1s calculated by
remnvesting the dwvidends in the shares of the Company from the
relevant ex-dividend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 358.11 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 417.97 3925
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Return for the year -20.;% _ 28.3%

Net Debt

Net debt 1s the total value of foan notes, laans (including notiona
exposure to CkDs and TRSs) less cash as a propert:on of net asset
value

Ihe net gearnng has been calculated as follows

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFO positions {notional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS position {notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (29.M4) {40,129)
Less: Cash collateral (included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) (50,913) (39,522)
218,567 86,728
Equity shareholders” funds 7,326,43;3 %,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 76%

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

-7"1:‘}"" ‘l‘;
The Ongeing Charges ratic has been calculated in accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the total of nvestment
rmanagement tees and adiministiative expenses expressed as 2
percentage of the average Net Asset Yalues throughaut the yedr
Ihe definiian of administrative expenses does include praperty
related expenses, the Gngoing Charges calculaticn 15 shown
inglusive and exclusive of these expenses Lo allow comparison
of the direct adrministrative and management charges with

the majnnty nf Investment Irusts which do not hold any direct
property investiments.

FRE TR

Excluding
Performance

including

Excluding
Performance Perlormance
Fees Fees

£¢00 £000

Management Fee

(note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurnng

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1283051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Ongoing Charge o N o

2071 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongaing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

Ihe Ongoing charges ratio provided In the Company's Key
Information Docurnent s calculated in hine weth the PRHPS
regulations which 1s different to the AIC methodology above.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the perfermance of the Marager in meeting
the Irust's objective against a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are cansidered to be Alternative Performance
Measures. These are set out on pages 26 and 27 of th:s report
together with information about any calculations cr the source of
data



Glossary and AIFMD disclosure ¢t o o0

2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AlFMD

The Alternative Fund managers Directive 1s kuropean legisiation
which created a Eurcpean wide framework for regulating the
rmanagers of “alternative Investment funds” {AlFs) 1t s designed
lo regulate any fund which 1s not a UGS (Undertakings for
Collective wvestment n Transfergble Securihies) fund and which
1s managed or marketed it the EU.

AlC
The Assoaiation of Investment Companies - the AIC 15 the
representative body for closed ended investmert companies.

Alternative Performance Measure

A financtal measure of financial performance ar financial position
ather than 8 financial measure defined or specified n the
accounting statements

Discount

the amount by which the market price of a share of an
investment trust 1s lower than the Net Asset Value per share
expressed as a percertage of the NAV per share

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Requlations a short, consumer frendly Key
Infarmation Document 1s required setting out the key features,
risks, rewards and costs of the PRIP and 1s intended ta assist
investars to better understand the Trust and make compansons
between liusts

The docurment includes estimates of investment performance
under a number of scenanos These calculations are prescibed
by the regulation and are based purely on recent histencal ¢ata
Itis important for investors to note that there is no judgement
apphed and these do not 'n any way refiect the Board or
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator "Kp1~

AKPI" 15 a quantifiable measure that evaluates how successfut
the trust s in meeting 1ts abyectives. The Tryst’s KPIs are
discussed on pages 2€ and 27

AIFID

The Markets i hinancsal Instruments Directive 15 the EU
legislauion that regyiates firms who provide services to chents
linkee to “hnancig! instrumments” {shares, bends, units in col'ective
‘rvestment schemes ane dervatives) and the venues where
those instiurrents are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
the value of total assets less habilties (irtluging borrow ngs)
divided hy the rumber of shares in 1ssue.

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
CIRECTIVE ("AIFMD ")

In accordance with the AIFMD, information in refation to the
Company's leverage and remuneratign of the Campany’s AibM,

F&C Investment Business Lirmnited, 1s required to be made
available fo investors Delalled regulatery disclosures including
those on the AlFM's remuneration policy are avallable on the FaC
website or from F&C on request ihe numerical remuneration
disclosures in relation tc the AIFM'S first relevant accounting
period will be made avallable in due course.

Leverage
under the AIFM Ditective, It 1s necessary for AlFs ta disclose their
leverage ir accordance with prescribed calculations

Although leverage 1s olten used as another term for gearnng,
under the AMMD leverage is specifically defined 1wo types aof
teverage calculatians are defined, the gross and commitment
methods These methods summarily express leverage as a ratio
of the exposure of the Alf against its net assel value “txposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical groperties
subject to mortgage, non-Sterling currency, equity oF currency
hedging af absolute noticnal values (even those held purely

for rsk requction purposes, such as forwaid foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedging) and derivative exposure
{converted o the eguivalent underiying pesitions) IThe
ommitiment method nets off denvative instruments, while the
gross method aggregates them

Tre 1able below sets out the current max:murn permitted [t
and the actual level of leverage icr the Company as at 31 March
2020

Gioss  Cemmitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
124% 118%

Actual

The leverage imits are sel by the AlbM and approved by the
Board and are 1n ine with the imits set out In the Company's
Articles of Assocat.on

Ih1s should net be confused with the gearing set out in the
Firarca, Highlights wh.oh 1s calculated under the traditional
method set out by the Assoc.aton of Invesiment Comrpan-es The
AlFA 15 aisc required to comply with the gearing parameters set
by the Bgard 'n relat.on 1o boriowings

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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THIS NOTICE 15 IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IAMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you
should seek your awn advice from a slockbroker, sclicitoy,
accountant or other independent prafessianal adviser wha 1s
authonsed under the hinanciai Services and Markets Act 2000 1f
yau are resident in the United Kingdomn, or if not, from another
appropriately authonsed independent financial adviser

If yau have sold or otherwise transferred all af your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accompanying
documents to the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who
aranged the sale or transfer se they can pass these documents
to the person who now halds the shares.

Our preference 1s 1o welcome shareholders in person to our 2021
AGM, particuiarly given the constraints we faced in 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Campany 15 continuing 1o monitar
the current COVID-1% legislation and public health guidance issued
by the UK Government

we have prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Gavernment’s roadmap out of lockdown at the date
of the meeting 1t 15 expected that the AGM will be able 1o go
ahead as normal as a physical meeting

However, It may be necessary to adapl our arrangements fo
respond to ary changes in circumstances, including the possibihity
of a delay to the further easing of restrictions. Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be cammunicated ta shareholders before the
meeting, includ:ng through aur website (www trproperty com)
and via an RNS announcement

The meeting will be canducted in accordance with legislation
ard publtc health guidance in lorce at the t me of the meeting
Depending on the arcumstances at the time gf the meeting, 1t
may be necessaiy to Iimit physical attendance by sharehaolders.
we regret that it will not be possible to provide refreshments
in the usual way If new restrictions are 1mposed, 1115 possible
that we will not be in a position 1o accommeodate shareholders
beyond the minimum required to hold a quorate meeting

kegardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
to proceed as planned, we strongiy encourage all shareholders
to vote In advance by proxy and appoint the Chairman of the
meeting as their proxy rather than any other named person,
who may not be permitted to attend the AGM This will ensure
that thenr vole will be counted if they (or any other proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not able to attend the meeting. All
resolutions w:ll be voted on by a poll

Sharehalders irtending 1o attend the AGM are asked lo reg:ster
their intentian as seon as practicable by emall to the following
dedicated address- cmuk-trpropertyinvestment@lirkgroup co uk

Sharehalders who are not able or do not wish to attend the
meeting 1n person {regardiess of an easing of restriclions) w.ll be
able ta watch a live webcast of the meeting Hus will include the
formal business of the meeting, the Manager’s presentation ard
questions and answers, The webcast wll not erable sharehalders
to particpate in the meeling or vole. However, sharehalders wiil
be mvited to submit questions through our website, by 12 00
noon on 26 July 2021 Questions of a very simitar nalure may be
grouped togethes to ersure the orderly running of the AGM.
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sharehalders are asked to consult the website i the period
leading up to the event where ary restrictions or changes wilt
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitted at that time.

Notice Is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

1R Property Investinent Trust gic (the "Campany ™) will be held
at 2 30 pmon 27 July 2021 at the Royal Automaobile Club, 85/91
Pall Mall, London SW1Y SHS for the purpese of tiansacting the
fallowing business

to consider and, if thaught fit, pass the following Resolutions,

of which Resolutions 1to 11 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Special
Resoiutions.

To receive the Repaort of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021

io apprave the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the
part cantaining the Directors” remuneration policy) for the year
ended 31 Maich 2021

To declare a final dnvadend of 900p per Ordinary share.
To re-elect Simon Marrison as a Diectar

To re elect David Watson as a Duector.

To re-elect 'm Gillbanks as a Duector

lo re-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director.

To re-elect Sarah-Jane Curtis as a Director

i0 re-appomnt KPMG LLP {the "Auditor”) as Auditors of the
campany to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Campany

to authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of
the Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINERS

Drdinary resalution
THAT, it substitution for all such existing authorties, the
Rueclors be generally and uncendivonally authonsed
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 557 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Aci”) to exercise all
the powers of the Company to al'et shares in the
Company and to grant rights ta subscnbe lor or to
converl any security into, shares in the Company up to
a nominal value of £26181,435 {being approximately
33% of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company
as at the lalesl pracucable date prior o publication ol
this Notice) provided that this authoriy shall expie
al the date of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company (or, 1! ear.ier. al the close of business
in 27 Oclober 2022), save that the Company shall
be entitled to make offers o1 agreernents before he
expiry of this authorty whicn would or might 1equire
shares to be allotled or sights to be granted after
such expiry and the Directors shall be entitled to allol
shares and grant nghls pursuant to any such atfers or
agieements as 1 this authanty had not expred
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

(a) {in substitution for all such existing authonties and subject
to the passing of Resolution 11 set aut abgve) the directors
be empowered pursuant to Section 57C and Section 573 of
the Act to allot equity secunties (as defimed in Sectian 560
of the Act) far cash pursuant to the authenty conferred
by Resolution 11 above and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as tieasury shares for (ash as if Sechion 561(7) of
the Act did not apply 1o any such alletment, provided that
this power shall be himited 1o:

(1 the allotment of equity setunties and sale of treasury
shares for cash in connection with an cffer of, or
nvitation to apply for, equity securities

{aa) to shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be
practicable) to their existing holdings; and

(bb) ta halders of cther equity secunties, as required
by the nghts of those securities, or as the Boaid
atherwise considers necassary,

and so that the Board may impose afty himts or restrectionrs
and make any arrangernents which 11 considers necessary
or approprate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitlernents, recorg dates, legal, requlatory or praclical
problems 10, or under the laws of any terntary or ary othes
malter; and

() n the case cf the authanty granted under Resofuticn
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
for ¢ash, 1o the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph {1} abave) of equity secunties or sale of
treasury shares up to @ nominal amount of £3,966,887
{beng approximately 5% of the total ssted share
capital of the Company as al the |atest practicable date
pricr te publicatior of the rotice of meeting),

(b)the power qiven by this resoluton skall expire ypon the
expity of the asthority conferred by Resaivtian 17 above,
save that the Company shall be entit ed to make offers ci
agreements before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity secunlies to be allotied after such
expiry and the directors shall be entitied to allot equrty
secunties pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the
power confenied bereby had not expired

THAT tre Compeny be and s hereby genealy ard
unconditional y authonsed 1 accorcarce with Section 07
aof the Act 1o make markel pJ cheses (winin 1he
meaning of Section 693(4) of the Act) o Grdinary, shares
of 231 2ach ir the capital of the Compar. o0 suc” teims

and 1~ suc manne” 2s e direclois man o ime o

nme delsrune grovides that

(a) the rraumum nurrber of Grdinary shares hereby
authcrised to be purchases shal be 14 99% of the
Corrpany’s Gre rary shares i ssue at the cate of the
Arnuar Gereral Meeting (equivalent tg 4757C,5°1 Orcinary
shares of 25¢ each at 3 ,une 2021, the iatest practicabie
cate pror tc pubncat on of this et ce),

(b) the maximurmn price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall not be maore than the
hgher of:

{1) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Crdirary share as taken from the London Stack
Exchange Daily Gfficial List for the five business days
imirediately preceding the date on which the Company
agrees to buy the shares concerned; and

{11) the higher of the price of the last Independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an Qrdinary
share in the Company on the trading venue where the
purchase 1s carmed out at the refevant time,

(¢) the mimmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
pald for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Ordinary share; and

(d) the authonty herehy conferred shall expire at the
canclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Compary
In 2022 (or, 1f earlier, at the clase of business an 27 October
2022), save that the Cornpany shall be entitled Lo enter
into a contract to purchase Ordinary shares which will, or
may, be cornpleted or executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company May purchase Ordinary
shares pursuant to such contract as it the power conferred
hereby had not expired

[HAI, with effect from the conclusicn of this meeting,

the Articles of Association producec 1o the meeting and
mnitiatled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of
icentificaticn be hereby approved and adopted as the Articles
of Associat.on of the Company, 1In substitution for, and to the
exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association

8
8
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NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GEMNERAL
MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the shove Notice 15 entitled to appaint one

or more proxtes t0 exercise all or any of the rnghts of the
member to atlend, speak and vote in his or her place
Shareholders are stiongly encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
person who may nct be permilted to attend the AGM In the
event nf restnictions or irmits on attendance A proxy need

not be a shareholder of the Company To appoint mare than
one proxy, the proxy form shouid be photacopied and the
name of the proxy to be appointed indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such proxy is
appointed in respect of. Completion and submission of a proxy
instruction will not predlude 3 member from altending and
voling in person at the AGM (subject to any restrictions an
phystcal attendance)

Ta be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing

a praxy must be returned by post, by couner or by hand to
the Campany's Registrars, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BSS9 62Y, or
atternatively, by going to www.eproxyappaintment.com
and following the instructions provided. All proxies must

be appointed by no later thar 48 hours before the tme of
the AGM. In the case of joint holders, where more than cne
of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appomtment submitted by the maost senior holder will be
accepted. Senionty 15 determined by the order in which Lhe
names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s reqister
i respect of the joint halding {the first named being deemed
the maost senior)

In crder to be able o atlerd and vote at the AGM ar any
adjourned meeting {(and also for the purpose of calculating
how many vates a person may cast), a person must have

his or her name entered on the Register of Members ¢f the
Company by 2 30 pm an 23 July 2021 (or 6 80 prr on the
date two days before any adjourned meeting) Changes Lo
entries an the Register of Memnbers after this time shail be
disregarded in deterrmining the nights of any persen to atlend
ol vote at the meeting

voting will be conducted on a poll at the Meeting On a pall
vote every sharehotder will through their proxy have one vate
for every ardinary share of whick he or she s the halder

Shareholders should note that it1s possible that, pursuant to
requests made by shareholders of the Company under Sectign
52/ of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish on 3 website a statement setting cut any matter
relating tc: (1) the audit of the Company's accounts (including
the auditor's repart and the conduct of the audit) that are to
be iaid befare the AGM, or (1) any urcumstance connected
with an auditor of the Cormpany teasirg to hold office since
the previous meeting at wh ch annual accounts and reports
were laid .n accordance with Seclion 437 of the Companies
Act 2006
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Ihe Company may not require the sharehalders requesting
any such website publication to pay its expenses 1n compiying
with Sections 527 or 528 af the Companies Act 2006 Where
the Campany 1s required to place a statement on & website
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, 1t must forward
the staternent to the Company’s auditor not later than the
tme when it makes the statement availabie on the website.
The business which may be deatt with at the AGM includes
any statement that the Company has been required under
Section 527 of the Companies Art 2006 1o publish on a
website.

Any corporation which 1s @ member of the Campany ¢an
appainl one or more carporate jepresentatives who may
axercise on its behalf all of 1ts pawers as a member provided
that they da not do so in relation 1o the same shares

Ihe right to appoint a proxy does nol apply to persans whaose
shares are held on their behalf by ancther person and who
have been nominated to receive communicatian from the
Company 1n accordance with Sectign 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persons”) Nominated persons may have

a nght under an agreement with the registered shareholder
who holds shares on therr behalf ta be appointed {or to

have scmeane else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively, if
nominated persons do not have suck a nght, or do not wish
1o exercise 11, they may have a right under such an agreement
1o give Instruciions to the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting nghts.

CREST membess who wish to appaint a proxy of proxies
through the CREST electionic proxy appointment service

may do so for the AGM to be held an 2/ July 2021 and any
ad)jsurnment(s) thereaf by using the procedures described n
the CRESI Manual CREST personal members or other (RESI
sponsored members, and those CREST members wha have
appotnted 4 voting service provider should refer tc ther CREST
sponsors or voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropiiate action on ther behalf.

in order for a proxy appcintrment or instructicn made by
means of {REST to be valid, the apprapr:ate CREST message

{a "CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with turocdlear UK & Ireland Limited's specificatians
and must contain the information required for such
mstructions, ¢s descnbed n the (REST Manual. The message
must be transmitted so as to be received by the Company's
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC (CREST Participant
1D 3RAS0Y, no later than 48 hours before the time appainted
for the meeting For thss purpose, the time of receipt will

be taken to be the time (3s determined by the tme stamp
applied to the message by the (RESI Apphication Hast) from
which the Company's agent 1s abie to retneve the message by
enquiry lo CREST i the manner prescnbed by CREST

CREST members and, where appi:cable, the'r CREST spansar or
votirg service provider shoud role that turoclear UK & Ireland
Limited does not make availabie specal procedures in CRES|
for any particular messages.
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Nermal systern timings and limitations wali therefare apply

in relaton to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions [t 1s the
responsibility af the CREST member concerned to take (or, 1f
the CREST member I1s a CREST personal member of sponsored
member of has appointed a voting service provider, to procure
that fus or her CRES! sponsor or voting service provider

takes) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a
message 1s transmitted by means of the (RESY system by any
particular ime In this connpection, CREST members and, where
applicable, therr CREST sponsor ar voling service provider are
referred 1n particular 1o those sechons of the CREST Manual
concerning practical imitations af the CREST systermn and
timings The {oempany may treat as invakd a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumstances set out In Regulation 35(5)(a)
of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulaticns 2001

Any member altending the meeting {subjec! o any
restiicthions in place at the time of the meeting) has the nght
to ask quaestions 1he Company must Cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at
the meeting but no such answer need be given rf {a} to do so
would nterfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
of iInvolve the disclosure of canfidential infermation; (0] the
answer has already been given on a website in the form of an
answer to a questior, or {C} it is undesirable in the mterests
of the Company or the gocd cider of the meeting that the
question be answered Questions of a very sinilar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the
AGM

A tapy of this notice, and ather infarmaticn required by
seclior 311A cf the Campanies Act 2006, can be found at
www Irproperty com

rembers satistying the threshalds i secticn 338 of the
Companies Act 2006 may requue the Company ta give, 1o
members of the Company entitled Lo receve rolce of the
AGM, notice of a resolution which thase members intend to
mcve (and wh.ch may pioperly be moved) at the Aom A
resaiulicn may properly be moved af the AGM unless

{1 st wou'd, if passed, be wretfective (whether by reason of
any inconsistency with any enactrnent or the Company's
corsttutior or otherwise), (1) 1L 1s defamatory of any person,
or (1L s frivolous or vexaticus. A request made pursuant
16 this right may be in haid copy or electraric ferm, must
identify the esontion of whith natice 1s t¢ be given, must
be authenticated by the person{s) making it and must be
recelved by the Company rot later than six weeks belfcre the
date of the AGM

. Mermbers satisfying the thresholds in section 338A of the
Companies Act 2006 rey request the Cempany lo inciude
'~ the busiress 1o be dealt with 2t the AGM any matter
{other than a proposed rescluten) whick may properly be
reiuced in the bus ress at the AGM A matter may properiy
be rcluded in the business at the AGM uniess () 1115
detamatory of any persen, or (130t is lve oes o vexat oLs
Areguest mace purseant to this ¢ gkt may te ' hard copy
cr e ectionic form, must wenbfy the matter to be -nc'voed in
the business, must be accempanied by a statement seitirg
out the grounds for the request mLst be authenticated by the
petsor(s) making it and must be recevec by the Company not
‘aler 1har six weeks belore the cate of 1he AGM

Biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 39 of the Annual Report & Accounts

©As at 3 June 2021 (being the latest prachicable day phios

to publication of this Notice), the 1ssued share capital of

the Company 's 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each
Therefore, the total number of voting nghts in the Company at
3 june 202115 317,350,980

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Management kingagerment Commitiee, the Nominstion
Cammutlee, the New Articles of Assaaiabon and the Lelters ol
Appaintment for directars will be available for inspection for
at least 15 minutes prior lo and durning the Company’s AGM

You may not use any electionic address provided either in
this Nolice of any related cocuments to communicate for any
purpases ather than thase expressly stated.

. Ihe Company may process personal data of attendees at the

Annual General Meeting This may include webcaslts, photas,
recoiding and audio and wideo links, as well as other forms
of personal data 1he Compary shail pracess such personal
data in accordance with its privacy policy, which can tourd at
https.//www trpioperty.com/legal
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RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

Ihese aie the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the appraval of the Qirectors’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the hinal dividend

Ihe vote to approve the Remuneration Repart is adwvisory only
and will not require the Company to alter any arrangements
detailed :n the report shauld 1he resolution not be passed

Ihe Board 1s proposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 march 2021 of 900p per crdinary share If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the diwvidend on 4 August 2021
to those sharehalders on the Company’s registar at the close of
business an 18 June 2021

RESOLUTIONS 4, 5. 6, 7, AND B; RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

These resoiutions deal with the re-electior of Simon Marnson,
Iim Gillbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-Jane
Curtis in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they wili affer themselves for re-election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directors continues to be
etfective and demoenstrates their commitment to ther role.

Thetr biographical detalls, which are set out on pages 38 and

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledge to lead the
Company's lang-terim sustainable success Accordingly, the Board
unanimaously recarnmends therr re-election

RESOLUTIONS 9 AND 10: ALDITORS

Ihese deal with the reappointment of the Auditors, KPMG
LLP and the authonsation far the directors ta determine they
rernuneration.

RESGLUTION 11: ALLOTMENT OF SHARE {APITAL

Our Beard considers 1t approprate that an authonty 2 granted

1o allot shares i the capital of the Company up 10 3 maximum
rominal amount of £26,445,915 (representing approximately cne
third af the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 3 June 2027,
being the latest practical date pror to publication of this Notice cf
the meeting) As at the date of this natice the Company does not
Fold any shares in treasury

The directors have no present intention of exercising this
authority and would only expect to yse the authonty of shares
could be wssued at, or at a premium to, the Nel Asset Value per
share

this authanty will expiie at the earlier of ciose of bus.ness
on 27 Qclober 2022 and the conclusian of the Annual Gereral
Meeting of the Compary to be held in 2022
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RESQLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

1fus resolution would give the directors the authonty to allat
shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects to hold
in treasury) for cash without first offering them to existing
sharehofders in proportion ta their existing sharehaldings.

this authority would be hmited lo allotments or sales in
conneclion with pre-emptive cffers and offers to holders ot
ather equity secunties If required by the nights of those shaies
of as the board otherwise considers necessary, ar otherwise up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £3,966,887. This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as at 3 june 2027, the latest practicable date
prior to publication of this Natice. In respect of this aggregate
nominai amount, the directars confirm their intention Lo follow
the pravisiors of the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of Principles
regarding cumnulative usage of authenties within a rolling
3-year penod where the Principles provide that usage In excess
of 75% sheuld not take place without prior consultation with
shareholders

The authorty will expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 Qctober 2022 3nd the condiusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Campany (o be held in 2022

RESDLUTION 13: AUTHORITY 7O MAKE MARKET
BURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held in 2026, 2 special resolution was proposed and
passed, giving the directors authonty, untit the conclusion of the
AGM N 2027, to make market purchases of the Company’s own
Issued shares up to @ maximum of 14.99% of the 1ssued share
tapiial

Your Board 1s proposing that they should be given renewed
authority to purchase Ordinary shares in the market Your

Board believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropnate times and prices 1s 2 sutable method of enhancing
sharehalder value 1he Company would, within guidelines set
from time to time by the Board, make either a single purchase ar
a senes of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefts to shareholders

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing et
Asset value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset value

for the remaining shareholders 1115 therefore iIntended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset value
Your Board considers that it will be most advantageous tg
sharehalders for the Company to be able to make such purchases
as and when 1t considers the t:ming to be favourable and
therefore does not propese to set a tmetable for making any
such purchases

Ihe Companies {Acquisition of Own Shares) { reasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 enable campanies in the Uniteg Kingdom to
hald in treasury any of theur own shares they have purchased
with a view to possible resate at a future date, rather than
carcelling thern If the Company does re-purchase any of 15
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shaies, the directors do not currently intend to hald any of the
shares re purchased in treasury The shares so re-purchased will
continue to be cancelled

ihe Listing Ruies of the UK Listing Authonty hmi the maximum
price {exclusive al expenses) which may be pad for any such
share It shall not be mare Lthan the higher of.

(1) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an
ordinary share as taken from the London Stork Exchange Dally
Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the date an which the Company agrees to buy shares
concerned; aind

{n) the hugher of the prce of the last independert trade and
the hughest current independent bid for an Ordinary share 0
the Company on the trading venue where the purchase is
carned oul

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

shiare (being the nominat value) 1he Listing Rules also limit

3 listed company to purchases of shares represenhng up to
15% of us 1ssued share capitat i the market pursuant to a
general avthonty such as this For this reason, the Company 1s
limiting s authonity to make such purchases ta 14.99% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares in issue at the date af the AGM, this
15 equivalent {0 47,570,911 Crdinary shares of 25p each {(nominat
value £11,892,/27) at 3 june 2021, the fatest practicable date
prior ta publeation this Nolice ihe authonty will [ast until the
Annuat General Meeting of the Cempany ta be held 10 2022

RESQUUTION 1.1 ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES GF
ASSOUIATION

Resolution 14 relates to the adoption of new Articles of
Assoclation (ibe "New Articles”} in arder ta update the
Company's current Articles af Assoc.ation (the “Current Articles”),
which were adopted cn 14 Oecemnber 2072 The New Articles
reflect developrments In best practice, and provide add:tiona
clanfication and flexibility the man changes in the New Articles
are summarised 1n the Appendix on pages 106 and 107 Gther
charges, which are of 3 minor, tedhnica’ of clanfying nature have
not been noled in the Appendix [he New Arlicles showing zil
the changes 1o the Current Articles are available for inspecton,
at www tipioperty com and wili 3150 be available af the Annual
General Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resoictions contaired in this Notice
of Annual General meetirg are 'n the best interests of tre
Corpanry and shareholders as @ whaole and recorrmends that you
vole in favour of them as your Directors Ttenc o €0 .0 respect of
the 1 beref:c.al shareboldings
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigma Shares and Deferred Shares

The New Articles amend the Curent Articles to remove
provisians and references relating o Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares ihis reflects that on 14 December 2012 all Sigma Shares
were cansaolidated and redesignated as Qrdinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company for
cancellativie. e Company now has a single class of Ordinary
Shares

Untraced shareholders

The New Articles amend the pasition In relation to untraced
shareholders. Rather than requining the Company to take aut
two newspaper advertisements, the New Arlicles require the
Company 1o use reasonable efforts to trace the sharehalder,
‘Reasonable efforts to trace a shareholder may include, f
ronsiderad appropriate, the Company engaging & professional
asset reunificatian company or other tracing agent o search for
a sharehalder who has not kept their shareholder detalls up to
date

In addtion, the New Articles provde that morey from the sale
of the shares of an untraced shareholder wil be forfeited if not
claimed after two years, rather than six years

These changes reflect best practice and provide the Company
with appropreate flexibility in connection with locating untraced
shareholders

sub-druinian of shargs

The New Articies clanfy that any shares resulting from a sub-
division of the Company’s existing shares may, In addition to
having any preference or advantage as compared with the
Company s uther shares, aiso have deferred or other nights This
change makes admimstering any sub-dwision of shares more
straightiorward

Dpaiation of general maatings

The New Articles contam specific provisions ta clanty that the
Company <an held “hybnd” general meetings {including annual
general meetings) and to set out how such meetings are 1
be conducled Under the New Articles, the Company may hald
“hybrid” general meetings in such a way that enables members
to attend and participate in the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electronic facility. Voting at hybrid meetings will, by default, be
decided on a pall Hybrid meetings may be adjourned in the
event of a technelogical failure

Ihe New Articles allow the Company, where appropriate, to make
changes 1o the arrangements for generai meetings (including the
intiaduction, change or cancellation of electronic facities) after
notice of the meeting has been 1ssued The Company may give
notice of any such changes in any manner consicered appiopiiate
(rather than via an advertisement :n twa pational newspapers)
Ihe New Articles also explicitly allow the Company to ntroduce
health and safety arrangements at its megtings

Ihese changes were Introduced to provide the Board greater
flexibility to align with techno.ogical advances, changes m
investor sentiment and evaiving best practice, paticularly in light

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

of the Covid-19 outbreak and the uncertam duration of socidl
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings 1he Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakehclder engagement gver the coming years in 3 way
that 1s more convenienl for all parties. Absent exceptional
crcunstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company in person.
In ine with the views expressed by the Investment Assctiation
and Instituticnal Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an electronic basis, so
a physical meeting will still be required In deaiding whether and
how to hold a hybnd general meeting «n future, the Cormnpany
will have regard to the views of sharehoiders and institutional
governance badies at the relevant fime as well as ta refevant
guidance or codes of best practice.

The New Aiticles also specifically refer to the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of overflow
rooms Satellite meetings are legally valid even without such a
provision but it has been added for clanty.

These changes are primarily contained in arlicles 47, 48, 50
and 53 1n the New Artictes A nurnber of other cansequential
amendments have been made lo the New Articles

Objections or Brors in Voting

In refation to the statutery requirement that a proxy must vote
In accordance with any instruchans given by the member by
whom the pioxy 15 appointed, the New Articles state explicitly
that the company 1s nat required ta check that proxies and
corporate representatives have voted In accordance with their
instructions or that their faiiure to do so would vit:ate the result
of a sharehalder vole

Mumiber of diectas
The New Articies reflect the statutory mimimum of two directors,
and introduce a maximum of 10 dwectors

Reappontment of direciors

In line with the requirements af the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors 1o retire (and should
they wish to remain in office, seek re election) at each annual
general meeting This requirement does not apply to directors in
their fist vear of appointment who were appointed in the penod
between the AGM notice being 1ssued and the AGM itself This
confirms existing Carnpany practice

Directors fees

Ihe Current Art:cles provide that the aggregate of all fees paid

lo directors shall not exceed £250 000 per anrurn, Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £300,000 to reflect the
amount approved by resalution of the Company on 22 July 2014

Suriovring Powers

the New Articles inctude in the definibion of "boriowings™ the
mincrty proportion of moneys borrowed by a member of the
group and owing to a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
{with “the rminonty proportion” meaning a proportion equal to
the proportion of the 1ssued share capital of a partiy owned
subsicdhary undertzking which 15 not attnibutable 10 a memker of
the group)
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Facfeiture of undlaimad dividends

he Current Articles pravide that if a dividend or other payment
due to members has not been claimed for twelve years atier
being declared or becorning due, 1t will be forfeited to the
Company. Arlicle 122 of the New Atticdles reduces this penod from
twelve ta six years

Paymeits of dividends and other amounts

The New Articles give the Beard greater flexbility 1o determine
the apprapriate method(s) 11 pays dividends (and cther sums)
ta sharehalders This flexibility will help the Board take account
of developments 1n market practice and keep down the
administiative cost of making payrments The New Articles

also provide that where 3 payment tannot be made because

a shareholder has nat provided vahd account details 1o the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed until the
shareholder pravides thase details

lagital Reserve

The New Articles remove Article 132 in the Old Articles, which
was included to ensure that the company qualifies as an
investment trust and 15 tregted &3 an investment company.
Following the modermisation of the investment tiust reqime ard

amendments to legislation abolishing the restaction on the ability

to distribute capital profits, this provision 1s no longer necessary

Stiarzgic r2poit ana suppigmantary maierialy

the Comparies Act 2006 and the Companies (Receipt of Accounts
and Reparts) Requistions 2013 allow the (ompany to send 3 copy
of 1ts strategic reporl with supplementary matenal instead of

its full accounts to a member wha has elecled or 1aotly agreed
Lo receve these documents, provided thal the Company 's not
prahibited from daing s0 1n 1ts articles Article 129 15 intended to
make it clear there 1s no suck prohibition. Shareholders should
riote that they can always view the full annual report on the
Campanys webstle or request & harc capy fiam the Company's
registrar

Gereder Noyat Dratung
The New Articles amend the Current Artic’es s¢ that gender
neutrai .anguage Is used

Geneta

Other changes which are cf a miner, technical or clanfying nature
of whith have been made 1o remave provisions in the Cuier!
Articles which guphicate Engiish ccmpany law are rot notec
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The half year results are announced in late November The full
year resulls are announced wn eaily june

T [N

the AGM 15 held i London in July
B L S R A

Dwidends are ysually pard on the Ordinary shares as follows:

internm- january
Fnal August

SRR ENE T ERE REH

Dividends can be paid o sharehaolders by means of BACS
{Bankers’ Autornated Cleanng Serwces), mandate forms for

this purpese are available from the Registrai Aiternatively,
shareholders can write to the Registrar {the addiess 15 given on
page 108 of this repoit) to give therr instructions; these must
include the bank account number, the bank account title and the
sort code of the bank te which payments aie o be made

e A :

IR Property investment lrust plc oifers sharehalders the
apportunity to purchase further shares 1n the Company through
the DRIP Please note that following Brexit shareholders in kurape
are no longer abie to participate i the DRIP DRIP forms imay

be obtained from Computershare investor Services PLC thraugh
their secure websie wwwinvestorcentre o uk, of by phoning
0370 707 1694 Charges do apply, dealing commission of G 75%
{subject to & mummum of £2 50) Covernment stamp duty of

U 5% also applies

S FEE I T
L

he market prices of the Carnpany’s shares are published dally

i The kinancial Times Some ¢l the infarmation s published in
other teading newspapers. The Financal Times also shows figures
for the estimated Net Asset Values and the discounts applicable

A

vry

R N : v
1SN GBOOOS9064097
SEDOL 0906409
8loomberg TRY LN
Reuters TRY.L
Datastrear 1RY

se 0}

Detalls of the bencrmark are given in the Straiegic epa
an page 24 of this Report ang Acceunts The benchmar< mdex s
published caily and can be founc on 3locmbery,

FISE EFRA/NARE.| Develcped kuraope Capped Met Total
Return Index ‘0 Slerling
2 gomberg TRORAG Index

PR .
PN v

Detalls of the market price and Net Asset valye of the
Ordinary shares can be founo cn the Company's websiie al

www trproperty com.

sharehalders who hold their shares in certificated form can check
their holdings with the Reg.strar, Camputershare investor Services
PLC, via wwwanvestorcenlie ca uk. Please note that to gain
access o your delails on the Computershare site you will need
the holder reference number stated on the top left hand corner of
yaur share cerlificate

SO ARSI e
LARATBIT: L0

Copes of this Report and Accounts and other documents 155ued
by the Company are avalable from the Company Secretary If
needed, copies can be made available n a vanety of tormats,
ncluding Bradle, audio tape of iarger type as appropiiate

You can cantact the Registiar, Compulershare Inveslor Sefvices
PLC, which has installed textphones to allow speech and hearng
impaired people who Fave their own textphone o contact

thern direclly, without the need far an intermediate operator, by
dialing 0870 702 00C5 Speciatly trained operators are available
dunng narmal business hours to answer guefies wa this service

Alteinatively, if you prefer to go through a typetalk’ operator
(provided by the Royal Naticral Institute for Deaf Peaple) you
should dial 18061 foliowed by the aumber you wish to dial

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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where notification has been provided in advance, the Campany
will arrange for coptes of shareholder communications to be
provided to the operators of nominee accounts Nominee
investors may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited to do so by the Chairman

PR B SN I A

ERFRELEN L T

Upan & dispusal of atl or part of a shareholder’s holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the sharehalder’s capital gains
tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in 2007 and the

redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 should be considered

In respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC™) to base
the apporticnment of the capital gamns tax base cost on

the praportion of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder 1n1o Sigma shares on 25 July 2007,

Iherefare, if an Qrdinary shareholder converted 20% of theyr
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 july 2007, the
capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be egual to 20% of the anginal capital gains tax base cost
of the Qrdinary shares that they heid pre-conversion. The base
cost of their remaining holding of Ordinary shares would then be
80% of the onginal capial gains tax base cost of their Ordinary
shares held pre-conversion,

As part of the re designation of the Sigma shares into Oidinary
shares in December 2012, a further shareholder’s agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains tax
base cost in their new Qrdinary shares should be equivalent o
therr capital gains base cost in the pre-existing Sigma shares
(e thewr capital gains base cost under the existing agreement if
applicable)

If sn doubt as to the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders shauld consult with their own professional advisois

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



TRE A
Ihe shares of iR Property Investment Trust plc are hsted and
traded on the London Stock kxchange Investors may purchase
shaies through their stockbroker, bank or other financial

intermediary.

AN R N R T T SPE L A o
fnvestors may hold their nvestment in certificated form Qur
ieqistrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
mvestars ta buy and sell shares quickly and easdy online without
3 braker or the need to apen a trading account Allernatively the
Investor Centre allows nvestors to manage porttehos gquitkly and
securely update details and view balances without annual chaiges
further detalls are avaslable by contacting Computershare on 0370

707 1355 of visit www computershare com

fR Property investment Trust plc now offers shareholders the
apportunity to puichase further shares in the campany thiough
the Dividend Re-investrnent Plan {"DRIP”} through the registiar,
Computershare Shareholders can obtain fuither information on
the DRIP through thelr secure website www nvestorcentse (o.uk,
of by phoning 0376 707 1694, Charges do apply Please note

that to gain access to your detalls or register for the DRIP ar the
Computershare site you wili need the holder reference number
stated on the top left hand cormer of your share certificate

- B 7 .- L - tos
A number of banks and wealth management ciqanisations
provide Savings Schemes and ISAs through which UK clients can
invest in TR Property 'nvestment Trust plc

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge dealing and other
fees for operating the accounts, and mvestars should read the
lerms and Conditions provided by these comparies and ensure
hat the charges best suit their planned investment profile Mast
schemes tarry annual charges but these vary between provider
and product Where dealing charges apply, in scme cases these
are appued as a percentage of funds invested and athers as a
Hat charge The optimum way to hord the shares will be aifferent
for each nvestor depending upar the frequency and sice of
mvestments lo be made

Cetalls are qiven below of twe providers offerng shares n
IR Property Investment Tiust, but there are mary other opliors

Interactive irvestor provide and admarister a range of self select
evestment plans, incuding tax-advantaged 1SAs and SIPPs
(Self-invested Personal Pensor), anc lrading Accounts

ko more infarmatior, irteractive invester can be contacted on
£345 607 6007, of by vis't:ng hitps //www i co uk/

interachive rvesior offer investars i TR Property arc other
investirert trusts a free cpt e onure sharehaider voting anc
rformatior service thet erables investars to receive sharercider
cormmmuricaticns and, f they wisk, ta vete or the shareroldings
peld i the raccourt

tR Property s a.s6 cr. the wntefactve super 60 rated st

BMO offer 2 number of Prvate Irvestcr Plans, Investment Trust
ana unicr 1SAs and Childrer’ Investirert Plans ‘rvestments
cer be rade as furrp sums or through teguiar sav ngs tor more

nfoimation see inside the back cover BMO can be contacted on
0800 136 420, or visil www bmogam com

Please rermember that the value of your investments and any
income from them may go down as well as up Past performance
Is not a guide to future performance. You may not get back

the amaunt that you invest. f yau are in any doubt as lo the
suitability of a pian or any investment available within a plan,
please take professionai advice

LI R PR L RO RO R e A ST i g
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Following the acquisition of Alkance tust Savings by interaclive
Investor, ATS self-dwected accounts were transferred to the

interactive investor platform on 14th Getober 2079

TR IR

In 2012 BNP Panbas closed down the part of thew business that
opesated Savings Schemes and 1SAs mnvestors were given the
choice of transferrng their schemes to Ailiance Trust Savings
{"A1S") ar to a provider of their own chaice, or to clase their
accounts and sell the holdwngs.

it investars did nat respand G the letters fram BNF Panibas, thei
accounts were transferred o AIS

Follawing the acquisiion of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
nvestor, AlS self-directed accounts were ransferred to the
nteractive investor platform on 14 Qctober 20713

T o, et 5 .
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Sharehalders in 3 Aumber of Investrment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed

ol an oppartupity 1o sell their shares as the company s

subject 10 a takeover Did 1his ts not true and 1s an alternpt to
defraud shareholders 1he shaie fraud also seeks payrment of a
“cemmission” by shareholders to the parties carrying out the fraud.

Sharefiglders shauld remain alert to this type of scam and treat
wilh suspican any cortad! by tetephone offering an altiactive
rvestment oppartumly. such as @ premumn prce for your shares,
or ap attempt 10 convince you thal paymen! s requied wn order
ta release a seltlenent for your shares hese frauds may alsc
oifer to sell your shares in cormpanies which have I'file of ng
value or may offer you bonus shares These so called "boiler
room” scams ¢an also involve an attempt to abta.n your personal
andjor banking infermatior with which to comrmit identity fraud.

ke cailer may be frendly and reassunng ot they may lake a
more urgert tore, encouraging yoL 1o act gu ckiy otherwise you
could lose mmoney or miss oct on 2 des)

if you hiave beer contacted by an unauthorsed fom regarding,
yoLi shares the FCA wou'd iike to hear from you You can report
af Lrauthaorsed fire Lsing the FCA heipline ar G800 111 6768 ar
by visiteq thei websie, which aisa has other csefur nformaet'on,
at wwwica org ux

£ you recerve gny Lsonoited nvestment acvice maxe sure you
cel the cerrect name of the perscr and organisat oo if the alis
parsist, hang L 'f you dea’ wth ap unauthor sed fom, you w.l!
rof e ehghe to raceive payment under tbe Financal Serviges
(cmpersaticr Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telepheone calls of such a nature to
shareholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with g lump sum from £100 of regular
savings from £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing ISAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BIG JUNIOR 15A {jisA}”
A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or

£25 & month. JISAs of CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO LIFETIME 1SA (LiSA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime iSA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
3 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest
with a lump sum frem €100 or reqular savings from
£25 a month.

BMG CHIL D TRUST FUND (CTF)

If yous child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

BMU GENESAL INYIRTMEMT ALTDUNT {010
This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£100 lump sum or £25 a month.

LM LR I T ALLDUNT
This is a flexible way to save for a child in our
range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficial
owney) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lumnp surn or £25 a month per account.
You can also make additional fump sum tep-ups at any
time from £100 per account.

The {TF dnd JISA eccounts are opered by parents n the child’s reme
ene they have access 1o the mgorey at age 18 " “Cal's may be iecoiced ol
mar-tored for tre (NG ¢nc quag.ty pusposes

BMOQO 0

N
Annual management charges and other charges appiy according to
the type of pian

A S T A A

5o FAO+VAT
- E40+VAI
! ro E25+VA]
You can pay the annual charge from your accaunt, or by direct debit
(in addition 10 any annuat subsciplion timts).

B A A W I N Il o
CEAR I U Y

£12 per fund {reduced to £0 for deals placed through the onling BMO
Investar Portal) far ISA/GIA/LISA/JIA and JISA. There ate no dealing
charges an a CI¥

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sald but not on the
reinvestrnent of dividends or the investment of monthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0.5% also applies on the purchase of
shares (where applicable)

The value of investments can ga down as well as up and you may

not get back your ongnal Investment Tax benefits depend an your
individual orcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change.
Please ensure you have read the fuil Terms and Conditions, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key Features docurments before investing tor
regulatary purpeses, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Documents {KiDs) far the investment trusts
you want to invest into,

SR i i’i‘::‘,_x‘:-

To open a new BMO plan, apply cnline at bmogam.comfapply
Cnline apphcations are nol avallable Jf you are ransfering an exisiing
plan with another provider 1c BMO, o7 if you are applying for a new
plan 1in more than one name but paper apphcations are available at
bmainvestments co.uk/documents of by cantacting BMO

< teoag -
R R I

Call:
Ematl

Call.
Emall
By post:

You €an also invest in the trust thiough onfine dealing platforms for
private investors that offer share dealing and 15As. Companies include
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lioyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmaoimvestments.co.uk
§ facebook com/brmainvestmentsuk

0345 600 3030, 900am - 5.00pm, weekdays, calls may be recorded
or monitored far training and quality purposes

3MO Asset Managerment Limtited 15 authensed and regu'eted by the Firencai tenduct Authorty and s o member of 3840 Giokar Asset Maragement EMEA of which the

L timate perent coimpeny s the Bank of Mortieal 737570 156 §5/8° LK
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